OZEKI NG – SMS Gateway / Product Guide /

Product:	Ozeki NG – SMS Gateway
Title:	Ozeki NG – SMS Gateway Product Guide
Editor:	Mr. János Aranyász, Miss Kitti Sandor
Number of pages:	179
Document version:	V2.6.9
Last edited:	2025.04.02.

Table of Contents

Prerequisites	
Minimum hardware requirements	3
Recommended hardware requirements	3
Software requirements	3
Download Information	4
Installation Steps	5
Service Provider Connections	5
GSM Modem Connectivity	
Installation of a Wavecom Modem	
Send SMS with GSM Modem - CMS Error codes	. 28
Send SMS using a GSM modem - Connection problems	. 31
SMPP Connection	. 32
UCP connection	. 40
CIMD2 connection	. 49
HTTP Client Connection	. 55
HTTP Server Connection	. 61
Users and Applications	68
Standard User	. 69
Database User	. 72
Microsoft SQL	. 83
Microsoft SQL Express	. 89
MySql	. 93
Oracle	. 96
Sybase / SQL Anywhere	. 98
PostgreSQL	
Date Format Strings to be used in SQL SMS configurations	104
How to schedule SMS messages for sending	
SMPP User	
How to provide SMS Service for SMPP Client Applications	114
Autoreply User	
AutoReplyEasy User	127
File user	132
HTTP Client User	
Colour SMS User	147
E-mail User	
E-mail to SMS Configuration	
SMS to E-mail Configuration	
Autoreply Database User	
Autoreply Database User installation guide	
Create database layout for SMS autoresponses	
File structure for controling SQL information query from database	
Client software	
Outlook SMS Client	
Sending SMS messages from Excel	
Ozeki SMS Client	182

Prerequisites

This page provides detailed information about the hardware and software requirements for your computer to be able to send and receive SMS messages using the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software.

To run the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software on your computer, you have to meet some essential hardware and software requirements.

Minimum hardware requirements

- CPU: Intel Pentium III, 450 Mhz
- RAM: 512 Mb
- Hard disk space: 50 Mb
- Ports: RS232 and/or USB (if you use a GSM modem)
- Network: Internet connection (if you use IP SMS connection)

Recommended hardware requirements

- CPU: Intel P4D 3Ghz
- RAM: 2 GB
- Hard disk space: 500 Mb (SATA or SCSI)
- Ports: RS232 and/or USB (if you use a GSM modem)
- Phone-to-PC data cable (<u>USB</u> or <u>RS232</u>) or
- Network: Internet connection (if you use IP SMS connection)

If you wish to use a GSM modem attached to the PC with a phone-to-PC data cable for SMS messaging, you need a suitable device. For more information about suitable telephones for SMS messaging, check out the <u>Recommended SMS Hardware</u> guide.

Software requirements

Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway runs on one of the following operating systems:

- Windows 11
- Windows 10
- Windows 7
- Windows 8

Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway for server

- Windows Server 2025
- Windows Server 2022
- Windows Server 2019
- Windows Server 2016

The following updates should be installed:

• .NET Framework 8.0

You can download Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway and the programs listed in the software requirements on the <u>Download</u> page (<u>https://ozekisms.com/p_6439-download-ozeki-ng-sms-gateway.html</u>). You should always download and use the latest version of Ozeki NG.

Download Information

You can download the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software and the necessary prerequisites from the <u>Download</u> page.

The download page URL is: https://ozekisms.com/p 6439-download-ozeki-ng-sms-gateway.html

You need to download the following packages:

• Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway

To start downloading, click the download link. You can decide whether to open or save the program. If you open it, the installation process will start immediately (Figure 1).

🗸 🍞 download ozeki ng sms gatev	va × +										- c	×
← → ♂ ℃ cozekisms.co	m/p_6439-download-oz	eki-ng-sms-gateway	.html	☆	6	M 5		6 6) 🛛 É) 4	L 🔿	Error :
🜐 OZEKI NG SM	S Gateway	Quick start	Download	Docs	License	Cont	tact	Search	this site	ρ	Sign in	
You can download below. After down	I the latest version		SMS Gateway b				SMS Click	Gatew	e Ozeki vay: here a licens	to		
 New feature (Ar phone over wifi available perforn messaging spee the Ozeki Andro 2. Bug fix (Messag) 		: In this version y nding/receiving o essaging, since yo obile networks. T p from https://and S loading from dis	device. This great ou can take advar o use this option droid-sms-gatewa sk had a bug whic	ly increases ntage of hig you need to ay.com. ch was fixed	the her download	latest SMS 10 by relea offers bette	Gate Gate click se tab bett	sion of way, c ing on o. This i er perf graphic	ou to try f Ozeki called C n the La new ve formand cal v feature	i NG Dzeki atest rsion ce, a user		
more advanced Ozeki NG SMS Gate	7. roduct activation): T way. Install this vers way v4.20.5					instru pleas	ictions e op	en o	instru Ozeki ne of ion guic	10, the		
scheduled mess 2. Bug fix (MPM di	:- led messages): The ages. The bus is fix splay): On Windows 26 days. This overt	ed. Systems the Sys	stem Timer (Envir	onment Tick	count)		Ozeki Winde Guide	ows	Installa	ation		
label) did not fu 3. Bug fix (HTTP A	nction properly. This PI): A deadlock coul stopped message of	s bug is fixed. Id happen in som Ieliery for HTTP /	e rare instances APLusers.			1	Ozeki Ubuni Instal			inux		

Figure 1 - Downloading the software

To find out how to install the program, check out the Installation Steps in the next chapter.

Installation Steps

In this guide you can learn how to install the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software. You will be instructed what to do in each dialogue box of the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway Setup Wizard to successfully finish the installation.

After you have downloaded the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software, you need to install it.

Take the following installation steps:

Step 1 - Downloading Ozeki NG SMS Gateway

The latest release of Ozeki SMS Gateway can be downloaded from the Ozeki 10 SMS Gateway download page. To download the installer in compressed format, you need to click on the first OzekiNG-SMS-Gateway_x.x.xx.zip link as Figure 1 shows below. We recommend you to always download the latest version. This version always contains all the currently available features and improvements.

v 🖗 download ozeki ng sms gatewa X +	- • ×
\leftrightarrow \rightarrow C \simeq ozekisms.com/p_6439-download-ozeki-ng-sms-gateway.html \Rightarrow \bigcirc \bigcirc	💌 🚦 🔃 🕒 🙁 🕿 🖸 🗄 🛃 Error 🗄
B OZEKI NG SMS Gateway Quick start Download Docs License	Contact Search this site 🔎 Sign in 🚍
Download You can download the latest version of Ozeki NG SMS Gateway by clicking on the link below. After download, you need to unzip it and run the installer in the zip package.	If you like Ozeki NG SMS Gateway: Click here to purchase a license!
 Ozeki NG SMS Gateway v4.21.0 Updated: 2024.08.03. Ozeki NG-SMS-Gateway.4.21.0.zip 24.31MB New feature (Android SMS support): In this version you can connect an Android mobile phone over wift to act as an SMS sending/receiving device. This greatly increases the available performance of wirless messaging, since you can take advantage of higher messaging speeds on 4G and 5G mobile networks. To use this option you need to download the Ozeki Android SMS Gateway app from https://android-sms-gateway.com. Bug fix (Message loading): The SMS loading from disk had a bug which was fixed Bug fix (Security): Some security issues have been reported, which have been fixed in this version. 	We encourage you to try the latest wersion of Ozeki NG SMS Gateway, called Ozeki 10 by clicking on the Latest release tab. This new version offers better performance, a better graphical user interface and new features.
 Ozeki NG SMS Gateway v4.20.6 Updated: 2024.02.27. Improvement (Product activation): The product activation handles proxies and firewalls in a more advanced way. Install this version, if you experinced problems with product activation. Ozeki NG SMS Gateway v4.20.5 	For installation instruction instructions of Ozeki 10, please open one of the following installation guides:
Updated: 2023.12.22. 1. Bug fix (Scheduled messages): The delivered to handset report did not work properly for scheduled messages. The bus is fixed. 2. Bug fix (MPM display): On Windows Systems the System Timer (Environment Fickcount)	Ozeki 10 Windows Installation Guide
overturns every 26 days. This overturn was not handled properly so the speed display (MPM label) did not function properly. This bug is fixed. 3. Bug fix (HTTP API): A deadlock could happen in some rare instance on the HTTP API interface. white-topped message deliary for HTTP API users. https://arxebians.com/attachments/702/nstallwindows.1722681985.OxebING-SMS-Gateway.4210.zip	Ozeki 10 Obuntu linux Installation Guide

Figure 1 - Downloading Ozeki NG SMS Gateway

Step 2 - Open the downloaded file

When the download finished, you have to open the compressed file to be able to run the installer of the software. For that, please click on the downloaded file as you can see it on Figure 2 in your browser or open the Downloads folder on your computer.



Figure 2 - Open the downloaded file

Step 3 - Run the installer

After you extracted the .zip file, just click on the executable file to start the installation process just like in Figure 3.

🖁 │ 🛃 🚽 │ installwindows_1594	Ext	tract			-		×
File Home Share View	Compressed	i Folder Tools					~ (
$\leftrightarrow \rightarrow \checkmark \uparrow$ 👔 « Do > install	~	٩ ٥	Se	arch installwindows_159	41120	70_Ozeki	NG
Name	Туре			Compressed size	Pass	word	Size
📧 OzekiNG-SM <mark>S-Qst</mark> eway_4.18.0.exe	Application	n		18,305 KB	No		
1 item						1	

Figure 3 - Run the installer

Step 4 - Install Ozeki NG SMS Gateway

As soon as you clicked on the .exe file, the installer starts with a License Agreement screen (Figure 4). Please review them then, click 'I Agree' button to continue.



Figure 4 - Run the installer

OZEKI

Step 5 - Set installation location

On the next page define the destination folder of the Ozeki NG SMS Gateway. Click install to start the installation (Figure 5).

🕞 Ozeki NG SMS Gateway 4.18.0 Setup		-		\times
Choose Install Location				
Choose the folder in which to install Ozeki NG S	MS Gateway 4.18.0			
Setup will install Ozeki NG SMS Gateway 4. 18.0 folder, dick Browse and select another folder.				ent
Destination Folder				
Destination Folder	15 Gateway	Brow	/se	
Destination Folder C:\Program Files (x86)\Ozeki\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SM	IS Gateway	Brow	/se]
	IS Gateway	Brow	/se]
C:\Program Files (x86)\Ozeki\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SM	IS Gateway	Brow	/se]
C:\Program Files (x86)\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki Space required: 43.6 MB Space available: 81.0 GB	15 Gateway	Brow	/se	
C:\Program Files (x86)\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki	IS Gateway	Brow	Can	

Figure 5 - Set installation location

Step 6 - Set admin password

During the installation you need to define the password for the admin user. You will be able to use this password to login into Ozeki NG SMS Gateway (Figure 6).

/ Create	password	NG SMS Gateway 4.18.0 is b	eing installed.			9
ccount. You will be ab ogin into Ozeki NG SM The password must be	ord for the Ozeki NG admin le to use this password to S Gateway. a minimum of 5 characters hower and upper case	les (x86)\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SM	∕IS Gateway \ozP	wdchk.exe	_	
Usemame: Password:	admin					
Confirm Password:	•••••	¥				
Password strength	_					
	Next					



Step 7 - Login to the GUI

After the installation finishes, both the Installation Complete dialog box and the login window will show up. Enter the username and the newly created password and click on the OK button to login (Figure 7).



Figure 7 - Login to the GUI

Step 8 - Ozeki NG SMS Gateway home page

Finally, the home page of the Ozeki NG SMS Gateway will appear (Figure 8).

×

Figure 8 - Ozeki NG SMS Gateway home page

Service Provider Connections

This chapter explains service provider connectivity and provides information detailing how to configure different service provider connections for SMS messaging using the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software.

In SMS messaging using Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway, a service provider is an entity that is responsible for sending and delivering SMS messages from users/applications of the program to recipient mobile phones, and responsible for sending SMS messages from mobile phones to Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway, which will deliver them to users/applications of the program.

To be able to send and receive SMS messages using Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway, you need to pay one or more GSM service providers for the service described above, and you have to connect Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway to the SMS Center of one or more service providers.

You can do this in two ways:

• You can connect directly to the SMS Center of a GSM service provider over the Internet. In this case, you need to make a contract with the service provider. In compensation for your subscription, the GSM service provider will provide you with the information required for connecting to the SMS Center over the Internet (hostname, port, username, password).

OZEKI INFORMATIKAI KFT

• You can connect to the SMS Center using a GSM modem attached to the PC with a phone-to-PC data cable. In this case you pay for the service by buying a SIM card from the service provider.

Direct connection to the SMS Center by setting up an IP SMS account with one ore more GSM service providers has several advantages, including a greater speed and reliability.

For SMS messaging with a GSM modem, you need to use a suitable GSM device. For more information, check out the following guide: <u>Recommended hardware / GSM modems</u>

The format of SMS messages exchanged between Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway and the SMS Center of the GSM service provider is governed by an SMS protocol. When you install a service provider connection, you have to select the appropriate protocol. The service provider will tell you which protocol to use and will give you the protocol-specific parameters, such as the username and password, IP address etc.

Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway allows the installation and configuration of the following protocols / service provider connections:

- <u>GSM Modem service provider connection</u>
- <u>UCP IP SMS service provider connection</u>
- <u>SMPP IP SMS service provider connection</u>
- <u>CIMD2 IP SMS service provider connection</u>
- <u>HTTP Server service provider connection</u>
- <u>HTTP Client service provider connection</u>

GSM Modem Connectivity

In this chapter you can learn how to install and configure GSM modem connectivity for SMS messaging using the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software.

Introduction

If you plan to send and receive fewer than 15 000 SMS messages per day, you can use a suitable GSM device (phone or modem) attached to your computer with a phone-to-PC data cable. For information about suitable phones, check out the <u>Supported Phones</u> page. The GSM device has to be equipped with a SIM card that charges (preferably) low rates for SMS messages.

With this setup you can use a computer program such as Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway to send and receive SMS messages. In this case, the software uses the attached device to communicate with the GSM network. If a message is sent out by the gateway running on the computer, it is first sent to the attached GSM device. Then the GSM device transmits it to the SMS Center (SMSC) of the GSM service provider, using a wireless link (Figure 1).



Figure 1 - GSM modem connectivity for SMS messaging

When a message is received, the GSM device stores the message in its memory or on the SIM card, and sends a notification to Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway. When the program receives this notification, it retrieves (reads) the message from the respective memory cell, and then deletes the message from the device to make room for the next incoming message.

The advantage of using a cellular modem is that you do not need Internet connection for SMS messaging. Sending an SMS message using a cellphone takes about 5-6 seconds. Receiving takes about the same time. Good software, such as Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway allows you to attach more than one device to your PC and to use them simultaneously to increase capacity.

The best option to connect a phone to the PC is to use a standard RS232 serial cable. To find out more about it, check out the <u>RS232 Serial Cable and Industrial Modems</u> page. USB cables, InfraRed and BlueTooth connections are not as reliable. For information about attaching the GSM device with a USB cable, visit the <u>USB Cable</u> page.

Configuration of the GSM modem connectivity

When you have installed a GSM modem driver on your computer, you can start to install and configure the GSM modem connectivity.

You can install and configure this connection using the <u>graphical user interface</u> of Ozeki NG -SMS Gateway. To start the installation, click the **Add** button in the top right-hand corner of the **Service providers** panel on the left of the **Management Console** interface. (To find out how to open this interface, check out the <u>QuickStart Guide</u>.)

You can also add a service provider connection by clicking the **Add service provider** item in the **Service providers** menu. (To find out more about the menu, visit the <u>Menu</u> page.)

After you have clicked one of these, the **Add service provider** panel will show up on the right of the interface. The panel contains a list of protocols you can install and use for communication with an SMS service provider.

To select the GSM Modem protocol, click the **Install** link in the respective entry in the list (Figure 2).



When you have installed the **GSM Modem** protocol, the **Configuration** panel will show up on the right of the interface. The first tab of the panel is the **Device settings** tab, which consists of a **Connection** and an **Identification** section (Figure 3).

Ø OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 💿 🕤 📓 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🤪
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/default?layout=MENUVIEW&MENU=D
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌 🙀 🥵
Operator1 (GSMModem2) - Configuration
Device settings General settings Logging Port settings Mess Connection Please select your GSM modem or the COM port your device is from the following list. Modem or Port: COM1 SMS service center: +36709996500
ldentification
Please specify the telephone number assigned to this connection a provider name. (The service provider name is used in the routing co
Figure 3 - The Device settings tab

In the **Modem or Port** dropdown menu in the **Connection** section, select your GSM modem or the COM port your device is attached to.

In the **SMS service center** edit box, specify the phone number of the SMS center of the GSM service provider you connect to. This address is provided by your GSM service provider. Some SMSC addresses are listed in this documentation. If you do not know the service center address of your GSM service provider, you can check out <u>Appendix C</u>.

In the **Identification** section, specify the telephone number assigned to this connection (the phone number of your GSM device) and the service provider name in the respective edit boxes.

Note that the phone number to be specified in the **Telephone number** edit box is a mandatory value. If you leave the edit box blank, the sending will be unsuccessful.

To facilitate identification and to avoid confusion, you should name the connection after the GSM service provider. E.g., if you have set up a GSM Modem connection with Vodafone, it is advisable to name it "Vodafone". Also, note that different connections should be given different names. If you have different connections from the same service provider, you can use different but similar names for them, e.g.: "Vodafone1", "Vodafone2" (or something of the like). However, some load balancing solutions require an identical name for different connections. For details, visit the Load Balancing and the Load Balancing for SMPP v3.3 page.

To perform general settings related to sending and receiving SMS messages using this protocol, click the **General Settings** tab. This will open a panel consisting of the **Send**, **receive and delivery report options** and the **Timeout handling** section.

In the upper section of the panel you can check either or both of the check boxes. Which one(s) to check depends on what you wish to use this connection for. You can choose to use the connection for only sending or only receiving SMS messages (or both sending and receiving).



In the lower section of the tab you can make choices and specifications to handle your connection to the SMS Center and the status of your SMS messages.

In the **Submit timeout** edit box you can specify the maximum waiting time for an SMS Center response confirming that your message has been successfully submitted. Successful submission means that the SMS Center has accepted the message for delivery. You can specify the waiting time by giving the number of seconds in numerical characters representing any positive whole number. If you are content with the default specification (60 seconds), leave this edit box unchanged.

You can choose how to consider a message you have sent if there is no response from the SMS Center after the specified length of time. Select one of the three radio buttons. Select **Sent** to consider a message sent even if there is no response from the SMS Center. Select **Not sent** to consider a message not sent if there is no response from the SMS Center. Select **Retry later** to make the program try to send a message later if the SMS Center has not confirmed its status as sent. Then, the message will be placed last in the outgoing message queue and sent out again when it is its turn.

To configure logging, click the **Logging** tab in the **Configuration** panel.

The tab has a **Logging** and a **Log file settings** section. Here, you can choose whether to make the program write log entries about sent and received messages in human readable format and/or log low level communication. Choosing the latter option will make the program produce logfiles containing binary codes representing the communication data.

You should check at least the **Log sent and received messages in human readable format** checkbox, as logfiles can be useful in debugging communication problems (Figure 4).



Figure 4 - Logging options

In the **Log file settings** section of the tab, you can make specifications for the size and the number of available logfiles.

Log rotation saves disk space, as it ensures that older (and probably no longer needed) logfiles will be automatically deleted from the log directory, which is specified in the **Log directory** text box. By default, the access path to the logfiles is: C:\Program Files\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\Logs

In the **Maximum log file size** text box you can specify the maximum size of a logfile. Once this size is reached, a new logfile will be created. Specify the number of kilobytes for the size of a logfile by entering a positive whole number. By default, the maximum logfile size is 2000 kB.

In the **Number of rotated files** text box, specify the maximum number of rotated logfiles that are saved. Specify this number by entering a positive whole number. By default, the number of logfiles that are saved is 4 (see Figure 4 above).

If you are content with the default specifications, leave the text boxes unchanged.

In the **Port setings** tab, you can modify the port settings and the modem initialization commands. Note, however, that most GSM devices only allow using the default settings you can see in Figure 5.



Figure 5 - The Port settings tab

In the **Message handling** tab, you can make settings related to retrieving incoming messages, sending outgoing messages, SMS coding and line feed characters (Figure 6).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explor	ег
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help	
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 🕤 📓 😭 🔎 Search 📌 Favorites	Ø
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/default?layout=MENUVIEW&MEN	√U=DRI\
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌 🖉 🕼	
Operator1 (GSMModem2) - Configuration	
Device settings General settings Logging Port settings	Messag
Preferered memory for incoming messages: Both	
Method to use to read incoming SMS:	🗌 🔲 Ini
The number of memory cells in the phone: 10	_ Line ·
The number of memory cells on the SIM:	0 DI
Delay between reading messages (sec):	OR
Leave messages on the Device.	OLe
Coutqoing messages	

Figure 6 - The Message handling tab

In the **Preferred memory for incoming messages** dropdown menu, you can select where to read incoming messages from: the **SIM** card, the **Device** or **Both**.

The most basic GSM devices are not equipped with device memory; they can only store a limited numer of SMS messages on the SIM card. Advanced devices, however, are equipped with additional memory on the device. SMS messages are stored directly on the device memory.

In the **Method to use to read incoming SMS** dropdown menu, you can select which method to use to read incoming messages: **CMT**, **CMGL** or **CMGR**.

Use the CMT method to make the GSM device send a notification about incoming messages. Use the CMGL method to request the list of incoming messages.

Use the CMGR method to read the content of memory cells one at a time. The latest standard is CMT.

In the **The number of memory cells in the phone** edit box, you can specify the number of memory cells to be checked for SMS messages in the phone.

Incoming messages are stored in different memory cells in the phone. Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway retrieves incoming messages by reading the memory cells of the phone and/or the SIM card.

The program checks the memory cells for SMS messages one by one. If a cell contains a message, the program retrieves and then deletes it from the cell and goes on to the next cell.

When it has finished checking all the cells, it returns to the first cell and starts checking again. The more memory cells the program has to check, the longer it takes to return to the first cell.

If the cells to be checked include a large number of empty ones, a considerable amount of time is wasted. Therefore, the number specified in the edit box should not be too large. When you start using the software, with your phone already containing SMS messages, set this number high enough to read all the messages, and then specify a new number.

Note that if you start using the software with your phone and/or SIM card already containing messages, the program will read and *delete* them unless you check the **Leave messages on the device** checkbox.

With the (optimal) default setting (10), the program will only check the first ten memory cells, and delete the message after reading it in each cell to make space for a new one.

In the **The number of memory cells on the SIM** edit box, you can specify the number of memory cells on the SIM.

In the **Delay between reading messages (sec)** edit box, you can specify, in seconds, a delay to wait for a specific length of time between reading messages. To have the highest performance, set this to 0.

By default, the program deletes incoming messages from the SIM card and/or the phone after they have been read. However, if you check the **Leave messages on the device** checkbox, they will not be deleted.

In the **Outgoing messages** section, there is an edit box in which you can set a delay to wait for a specific length of time between sending out messages. To have the highest performance, set this to 0.

The **Outgoing messages** section also contains two checkboxes. If you check the **Request delivery report SMS** checkbox, the SMS center will send you a delivery report after an SMS message has been delivered to the recipient phone number.

If you check the **Do not allow loopback outgoing messages** checkbox, you can prevent the program from sending SMS messages to yourself, i.e. to the phone number of your SIM card.

The SMS coding section contains the **Do not use PDU mode** and the **Include SCA in PDU** checkbox.

SMS messages can be received in two ways: by text mode and by protocol description unit (PDU) mode. If PDU mode is used, any encoding can be implemented.

In the Line feed characters section, you can select one of three radio buttons. You can choose whether to **Delete line feed (LF)**, **Replace LF with space** or **Leave LF in the message**.

The **Configuration** panel for service provider connections contains a **Connect automatically on startup** checkbox (in the bottom left-hand corner). If it is checked, Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway will automatically initiate a connection with the SMS Center when the program has started. If this checkbox is not checked, the connection has to be initiated manually.

You can connect a service provider connection by clicking the green play button beside its name in the panel of installed service provider connections (Figure 6). To disconnect a service provider connection, click the red disconnect button next to the green button.

DZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Micros	oft Internet Explorer	
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help		
🌀 Back 🔹 🕥 - 💌 🗟 🏠 🔎	Search 🤺 Favorites 🚱	🎯 🛃 🕞 🕞 😫 🖏
Address 🗃 http://localhost:9501/		
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌	w C 💭	Vir Térkép Elvira
Service providers	Inbound routing 🚮 =	► 48
BI DA VODAFONE (GSMModem0) O () Waiting for connection	Name Provider Sender defaultin ANY ANY	Receiver Keyword User Mode ANY ANY admin move
	1 route(s) installed. Outbound routing	efdi 😥
	Name Provider Serv	

Figure 6 - Connecting the service provider connection

You can also initiate the connection manually by clicking the **Connect** link in the panel of the service provider connection (Figure 7).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microso	ft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help	
🕝 Back 🔹 🕥 - 🖹 🗟 ổ 🔎 S	iearch 🤺 Favorites 🚱 🍰 🐨 👌 🔛 🗱
Address a http://127.0.0.1:9501/driverprop	s?driver=GSMModem0&mode=configure
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌	😻 🕼 🔛 😻 Vir Térkép Elvira
OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY	
File - Edit - Service providers - Users and ap	plications - View - Help
Compose Reply Forward Print Del	
VODAFONE (GSMModem0)	VODAFONE (GSMModem0) - Configuration
Configure Events Connect Disconnect Uninstall	Device settings General settings Logging Port se Connection Please select your GSM modem or the COM port y from the following list.
General	
Service provider name: VODAFONE Porotocol: GSMModern	Modem or Port COM1
Phone number: +441234567	SMS service center: +36201234567
Provider specific GSMModem connection using phone number +441234567	r Identification

Figure 7 - Links to operations

You can open the panel of a service provider connection by clicking the name of the service provider connection in the **Service providers** panel in the **Management Console**.

The panel of a service provider connection consists of three sections. In the upper section you can find the name of the service provider connection (with the name of its protocol in brackets).

You can see an icon showing if the service provider connection is connected. If it is not, the icon is marked with an "x".

To the right of the icon you can find links to perform different operations.

Configure: to configure or modify the configuration of an installed service provider connection. Clicking this link will take you back to the **Configuration** panel. **Events**: to view the logging of the latest server events related to the service provider connection. Clicking it will bring up the **Events** panel containing the logging of the latest server events.

Connect: to connect the service provider connection with the SMS Center. **Disconnect**: to disconnect the service provider connection from the SMS Center. **Uninstall**: to uninstall the service provider connection.

In the middle section of the panel you can see some of the most important configuration information.

The options that have been (re)activated during the configuration are marked with a tick. The options that have not been activated or those that have been deactivated during the configuration are marked with an "x".

In the lower section of the panel of the service provider connection you can read some information about its protocol.

Installation of a Wavecom Modem

On this page you can learn how to attach a Wavecom modem to the computer and how to install a standard modem driver for SMS messaging using a GSM modem connection with the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software.

For SMS messaging using GSM modem connectivity with Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway, you need a suitable GSM device attached to your computer with a phone-to-PC data cable. You also need a modem driver installed on your Windows Operating system. (See the <u>Prerequisites</u> page.)

If performance, reliability and continuous operation are important, you should use an industrial GSM modem for SMS messaging. The Wavecom Fastrack industrial GSM modem (Figure 1) is one of the most reliable devices for this purpose.



Figure 1 - Wavecom Fastrack

You can attach it to the computer with an RS232 serial cable, and you can install a standard modem driver to allow communication between the computer and the modem.

To attach the modem and to install the modem driver, follow the instructions below.

In Figure 2 below you can clearly see that the Wavecom Fastrack modem has a data cable that can be attached to a serial port, a SIM card slot and a SIM card. A network adapter also belongs to the modem. However, it is not included in the figure because of its large size.



Figure 2 - Wavecom GSM Modem with accessories

Attach the serial data cable and the power cable to the Wavecom, with the SIM card already inserted (Figure 3).



Figure 3 - Attaching the data cable and the power cable to the modem

Attach the data cable to the computer.

Figure 4 - Attaching the data cable to the computer

Make sure the modem works. In Figure 4 you can see the Wavecom modem attached to the computer. If you have inserted the SIM card in the modem, a red LED (light-emitting diode) is supposed to flash at the front (Figure 5).



Figure 5 - The Wavecom with a flashing red LED

When you have attached the modem to the computer, you can install the GSM modem driver on your computer's operating system.

Professional, high quality modems allow a simple installation of the modem driver. For the Wavecom modem, for instance, a Standard 56000 modem driver can be installed. If you have a different sort of modem, the steps described below will be more complicated. Then you will have

OZEKI INFORMATIKAI KFT

to select the driver provided by the manufacturer of the mobile phone or data cable when selecting the driver during the installation procedure.

Select Start Menu / Settings / Control Panel / Add hardware to open the Add Hardware Wizard window (Figure 6)

Is the hardware connected?
Have you already connected this hardware to your computer?
Yes, I have already connected the hardware
\bigcirc No, I have not added the hardware yet

Figure 6 - Add Hardware Wizard

Continue to install the standard modem driver by selecting **Add a new hardware device** (Figure 7).



Select the Advanced mode (Install the hardware that I manually select from a list). See Figure 8.

Т	he wizard can help you install other hardware
	The wizard can search for other hardware and automatically know exactly which hardware model you want to install, you
	What do you want the wizard to do?
	\odot Search for and install the hardware automatically (Rec
	Install the hardware that I manually select from a list (A)

Figure 8 - Selecting Install the hardware that I manually select from a list (Advanced)

Select the **Modems** item (Figure 9).

Add Hardware Wizard			
From the list below, select the type of hardware you are			
If you do not see the hardware category you want, click Shov			
Common <u>h</u> ardware types:			
Imaging devices			
Modems			
Multi-port serial adapters			
Network adapters			
Figure 9 - Selecting the Modems option			

Select Don't detect my modem; I will select it from a list (Figure 10).



Figure 10 - Preventing autodetection

Select the modem driver (Figure 11).



Select the port for the modem to be installed (Figure 12).



Figure 12 - Selecting the port

After you have selected the port for the modem, you can start to install and configure the GSM Modem protocol.

You can find the installation and configuration instructions on the <u>GSM Modem Connectivity</u> page.

One of the steps you need to take is to select the GSM modem or the COM port your device is attached to (Figure 13).

Ø OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 - 🖹 🛃 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🪱
Address Addres
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌 🖳
Operator1 (GSMModem2) - Configuration
Device settings General settings Logging Port settings Messag Connection Please select your GSM modem or the COM port your device is a from the following list.
Modem or Port: COM1
SMS service center: +36709996500
_ Identification
Please specify the telephone number assigned to this connection and provider name. (The service provider name is used in the routing conf Figure 13 - Selecting the port in the Device settings tab

Send SMS with GSM Modem - CMS Error codes

If you are trying to send an SMS messages with a GSM modem, the modem can return an error code in case there is a problem. The following table lists the possible error codes

CMS ERROR 1	"Unassigned (unallocated) number" This cause indicates that the destination requested by the Mobile Station cannot be reached because, although the number is in a valid format, it is not currently assigned (allocated).
CMS ERROR 8	"Operator determined barring" This cause indicates that the MS has tried to send a mobile originating short message when the MS's network operator or service provider has forbidden such transactions.
CMS ERROR 10	"Call barred" This cause indicates that the outgoing call barred service applies to the short message service for the called destination.
CMS ERROR 17	"Network failure". This cause is sent to the MS if the MSC cannot service an MS generated request because of PLMN failures, e.g. problems in MAP.
CMS ERROR 21	"Short message transfer rejected" This cause indicates that the equipment sending this cause does not wish to accept this short message, although it could have accepted the short message since the equipment sending this cause is neither busy nor incompatible.
CMS ERROR 22	"Congestion". This cause is sent if the service request cannot be actioned because of congestion (e.g. no channel, facility busy/congested etc.).
CMS ERROR 27	"Destination out of service" This cause indicates that the destination indicated by the Mobile Station cannot be reached because the interface to the destination is not functioning correctly. The term "not functioning correctly" indicates that a signalling message was unable to be delivered to the remote user; e.g., a physical layer or data link layer failure at the remote user, user equipment off line, etc.

OZEKI INFORMATIKAI KFT

CMS ERROR 28	"Unidentified subscriber" This cause indicates that the subscriber is not registered in the PLMN (i.e. IMSI not known).
CMS ERROR 29	"Facility rejected" This cause indicates that the facility requested by the Mobile Station is not supported by the PLMN.
CMS ERROR 30	"Unknown subscriber" This cause indicates that the subscriber is not registered in the HLR (i.e. IMSI or directory number is not allocated to a subscriber).
CMS ERROR 38	"Network out of order" This cause indicates that the network is not functioning correctly and that the condition is likely to last a relatively long period of time; e.g., immediately reattempting the short message transfer is not likely to be successful.
CMS ERROR 41	"Temporary failure" This cause indicates that the network is not functioning correctly and that the condition is not likely to last a long period of time; e.g., the Mobile Station may wish to try another short message transfer attempt almost immediately.
CMS ERROR 42	"Congestion" This cause indicates that the short message service cannot be serviced because of high traffic.
CMS ERROR 47	"Resources unavailable, unspecified" This cause is used to report a resource unavailable event only when no other cause applies.
CMS ERROR 50 "Requested facility not subscribed" This cause indicates that the requested service could not be provided by the network because the user has not connecessary administrative arrangements with its supporting networks.	
CMS ERROR 69	"Requested facility not implemented" This cause indicates that the network is unable to provide the requested short message service.
CMS ERROR 81	"Invalid short message transfer reference value" This cause indicates that the equipment sending this cause has received a message with a short message reference which is not currently in use on the MS network interface.
CMS ERROR 95	"Invalid message, unspecified" This cause is used to report an invalid message event only when no other cause in the invalid message class applies.
CMS ERROR 96	"Invalid mandatory information" This cause indicates that the equipment sending this cause has received a message where a mandatory information element is missing and/or has a content error (the two cases are indistinguishable).
CMS ERROR 97	"Message type non existent or not implemented" This cause indicates that the equipment sending this cause has received a message with a message type it does not recognize either because this is a message not defined or defined but not implemented by the equipment sending this cause.
CMS ERROR 98	"Message not compatible with short message protocol state" This cause indicates that the equipment sending this cause has received a message such that the procedures do not indicate that this is a permissible message to receive while in the short message transfer state.
CMS ERROR 99	"Information element non existent or not implemented" This cause indicates that the equipment sending this cause has received a message which includes information elements not recognized because the information element identifier is not defined or it is defined but not implemented by the equipment sending the cause. However, the information element is not required to be present in the message in order for the equipment sending the cause to process the message.
CMS ERROR 111	"Protocol error, unspecified" This cause is used to report a protocol error event only when no other cause applies.
CMS ERROR 127	"Interworking, unspecified" This cause indicates that there has been interworking with a network which does not provide causes for actions it takes; thus, the precise cause for a message which is being send cannot be ascertained.
CMS ERROR 128	Telematic interworking not supported x
CMS ERROR 129	Short message Type 0 not supported x x
CMS ERROR 130	Cannot replace short message x x
CMS ERROR 143	Unspecified TP PID error x x

CMC EDDOD 144	
CMS ERROR 144	Data coding scheme (alphabet) not supported x
CMS ERROR 145	Message class not supported x
CMS ERROR 159	Unspecified TP DCS error x x
CMS ERROR 160	Command cannot be actioned x
CMS ERROR 161	Command unsupported x
CMS ERROR 175	Unspecified TP Command error x
CMS ERROR 176	TPDU not supported x x
CMS ERROR 192	SC busy x
CMS ERROR 193	No SC subscription x
CMS ERROR 194	SC system failure x
CMS ERROR 195	Invalid SME address x
CMS ERROR 196	Destination SME barred x
CMS ERROR 197	SM Rejected Duplicate SM x
CMS ERROR 198	TP VPF not supported X
CMS ERROR 199	TP VP not supported X
CMS ERROR 208	SIM SMS storage full x
CMS ERROR 209	No SMS storage capability in SIM x
CMS ERROR 210	Error in MS x
CMS ERROR 211	Memory Capacity Exceeded X
CMS ERROR 212	SIM Application Toolkit Busy x x
CMS ERROR 255	Unspecified error cause
128255	Other values in this range are reserved, defined by GSM 03.40 subclause 9.2.3.22 values
CMS ERROR 300	ME failure
CMS ERROR 301	SMS service of ME reserved
CMS ERROR 302	operation not allowed
CMS ERROR 303	operation not supported
CMS ERROR 304	invalid PDU mode parameter
CMS ERROR 305	invalid text mode parameter
CMS ERROR 310	SIM not inserted
CMS ERROR 311	SIM PIN required
CMS ERROR 312	PH SIM PIN required
CMS ERROR 313	SIM failure
CMS ERROR 314	SIM busy
CMS ERROR 315	SIM wrong
CMS ERROR 316	SIM PUK required
CMS ERROR 317	SIM PIN2 required
CMS ERROR 318	SIM PUK2 required
CMS ERROR 320	memory failure
CMS ERROR 321	invalid memory index
CMS ERROR 330	SMSC address unknown
CMS ERROR 331	no network service
CMS ERROR 332	network timeout
CMS ERROR 340	no +CNMA acknowledgement expected
	no crimit achievited generie expected

CMS ERROR 500	unknown error
256511	Other values in this range are reserved
512	manufacturer specific

Send SMS using a GSM modem - Connection problems

In this page I give some information about what to do if your modem is not recognized by the software.

In some situations Ozeki NG SMS Gateway will not detect your GSM phone. In this case you can test whether you phone responds using Hyper Terminal. Hyper Terminal is built into windows. It is a good tool to test modem connectivity.

To start hyperterminal, select Start->All programs->Accessories->Communications->HyperTerminal. When Hyperterminal starts, you must provide a name for the connection. Type any name you like to get to the "Connect To" form (Figure 1).

🎝 sdfs - HyperTerminal		
File Edit View Call Transfer H	leip	
06 93 08 6		
-	Connect To	
	A	
	S solts	
	Enter details for t	he phone number that you want to dial:
	Country/region:	Hungary (36)
	Area code:	36
	Phone number:	
Figure 1 - Hyper Terminal connect to for		СОМ1 🖊

Figure 1 - Hyper Terminal, connect to form

In the "Connect To" configuration form you can select the COM port your device is attached to. If you use a USB cable, a PCMCIA modem, a BlueTooth connection or an Infrared port, you need to install a driver supplied by the manufacturer of the device. The driver will register a virtual serial port. In hyper terminal select the virtual port created by the driver of your device.

When the port is selected click Ok, to get to the Port configuration form. On this form specify the port settings. The most common port speeds for GSM phones and modems are 9600, 19200, 57600 and 115200. The Data bits should be set to 8. The Parity to none the Stop bits to 1 and the flow control should be hardware.

After all configurations are made the terminal window will open. You can use this window to test the communication. The communication can be tested by typing AT into the terminal window. If your GSM phone or modem is working the AT will appear and an OK response will be returned. If your GSM phone or modem is not working then you will not see the AT command after typing it in (Figure 2).

OZEKI INFORMATIKAI KFT



Figure 2 - AT command and OK response

If the test is successful, which means you have seen the OK response from your GSM phone or modem please close HyperTerminal and the "Autodetect" option in Ozeki NG will work.

If the test is not successful, one of the following problems need to be resolved:

- Some other software uses your device. Sometime 3rd party phone manager applications, or SMS solutions block the device. Try to shut down or remove these applications from your system.

- Your device is not a GSM modem. Please check the manual of your device, to see if it has a built in modem and can be operated with AT commands. Ozeki NG uses AT commands to control your device.

- The driver supplied with your device is not working. Try to find another driver.

SMPP Connection

This chapter provides detailed instructions on how to install and configure an SMPP service provider connection for SMS messaging using the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software.

As you can read on the <u>Service Provider Connections</u> page, you need to install and configure one or more service provider connections for SMS messaging using Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway. One of the service provider connections supported by the software is the Short Message Peer-to-Peer (SMPP) connection.

The SMPP protocol can be used to connect your computer directly to the Short Message Service Center (SMSC) of the service provider. This way you can send and receive SMS messages over the Internet or over a private IP network.

You can install and configure this connection using the <u>graphical user interface</u> of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway.

To start installing and configuring an SMPP connection, click the **Add** button in the top righthand corner of the **Service providers** panel on the left of the **Management Console** interface. (To find out how to open this interface, check out the <u>QuickStart Guide</u>.) You can also add a service provider connection by clicking the **Add service provider** item in the **Service providers** menu.

After you have clicked one of these, the **Add service provider** panel will show up on the right of the interface. The panel contains a list of protocols you can install and use for communication with an SMS service provider.

To select the SMPP protocol, click the Install link in the respective entry in the list (Figure 1).

CZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microso	oft Internet Explorer	
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help		
🕝 Back 🝷 🕥 - 💌 🗟 🏠 🔎 s	Search 🤺 Favorites 🚱 🖉	-
Address 🗃 http://127.0.0.1:9501/default?lay	yout=MENUVIEW&MENU=DRIVE	RS&MAI
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌	w ¢🚍	
OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY	Nietiane View Hele	
File - Edit - Service providers - Users and ap Add service provider Add service provider Reply Forward Print Del		
Service providers	Add service provider	
Currently there are no SMS service providers added. To be able to send or receive SMS	Please select the protocol you wish protocol name to create the connect	
messages, you need to add at least one SMS service provider to the list! Add service provider	SMPP Connection SMPP (Short Mes Message Center the Internet or over	sage Pe (SMSC) (
	HTTP Server Ins The HTTP Server service using HT	protocol

Figure 1 - Starting to install the SMPP connection

When you have installed the **SMPP Connection**, the **Configuration** panel will show up on the right of the interface. The first tab of the panel is the **SMPP settings** tab, which consists of a **Connection** and an **Identification** section.

In the **Connection** section, specify the SMPP server settings. This information is provided by the GSM service provider whose service you have subscribed to. The connection parameters are the host name (sometimes only an IP address is given), the port number, a username and a password. Service providers often use the phone number of the service or the port number as the username. Enter the information in the respective edit boxes (Figure 2).

File Edit View Favo	rites Tools Help						
🔇 Back 🔹 🕥 - [🖹 🖻 🏠 🔎	Search 🤸	Favorites	0	- 🎍 i	w - 🗔	
Address 🕘 http://127.0.	0.1:9501/driverprop	s?driver=9	MPP0&mod	e=configure			
OZEKI Google 💌		wé			p	Térkép	E
DZEKI NG - SMS GAT	EWAY						
File - Edit - Service prov	iders • Users and ap	plications	View Hel	lp			
SMPPO (SMPPO)		SMPPO	(SMPP0) - (Configurat	ion		
Configure Events Connect Disconnect			PP settings	General	settings	Logging	17
Connect		Γ	And and a state of the local division of the local division of the local division of the local division of the	cify the SMF	P server	settings. (Th
General Service provider name:	SMPPO	Γ	Connection · Please spec	cify the SMF	P server er, when	settings. (you subsc	Th
General Service provider name: Porotocol:	SMPP0 SMPP	Γ	Connection · Please spec	ify the SMF vice provid	P server er, when 127.0.	settings. (you subsc	Th
General	SMPPO	Γ	Connection · Please spec	tify the SMF vice provid Hos	PP server er, when 127.0.	settings. (you subsc	Th

Figure 2 - Specifying the server settings

In the **Identification** section, specify the telephone number assigned to this connection and the service provider connection name. To facilitate identification and to avoid confusion, you should name the connection after the GSM service provider. E.g., if you have set up an SMPP connection with Vodafone, it is advisable to name it "Vodafone". Also, note that different connections should be given different names. If you have different connections from the same service provider, you can use different but similar names for them, e.g.: "Vodafone1", "Vodafone2" (or something of the like). However, some load balancing solutions require an identical name for different connections. For details, visit the Load Balancing and the Load Balancing for SMPP v3.3 page.

Enter the information in the respective edit boxes. Remember to enter the phone number in international format: starting with "+". You can check the **overridable** checkbox to the right of the **Telephone number** edit box. This ensures that you can replace the phone number specified in the **Telephone number** edit box with a different one to be displayed as the sender of an outgoing message. You can also replace the number with (alphanumeric) text consisting of a maximum of eleven (11) characters. Therefore, when a message is sent out, e.g. using the <u>Database user</u>, you can specify any different phone number or a name to be displayed as the sender of the message.

Note that the phone number to be specified in the **Telephone number** edit box is a mandatory value. If you leave the edit box empty, the sending will be unsuccessful.

To perform general settings related to sending and receiving SMS messages using this protocol, click the **General Settings** tab. This will open a panel consisting of the **Send**, **receive and delivery report options** and the **Timeout handling** section.

In the upper section of the panel you can check any or all of the checkboxes. Which one(s) to check depends on what you wish to use this connection for and whether you need a delivery report. You can choose to use the connection for only sending or only receiving SMS messages (or both sending and receiving), and you can choose to request a delivery report for outgoing messages (Figure 3).

SMPP settings	General settings Logging Advanced
┌ Send, receive	and delivery report options
Use this co	onnection for sending outgoing messages
🗌 Use this co	onnection for receiving incoming messages
Request d	elivery report for outgiong messages
☐ Timeout hand	palive packets to maintain connection.
Keepalive per	riod: 30 sec.
	e is received for a message until a given time, so en. These messages should be handled the follo
Submit timeou	ut: 60 sec. gure 3 - The General settings tab

In the lower section of the tab you can make choices and specifications to handle your connection to the SMS Center and the status of your SMS messages.

If you check the checkbox at the top of the **Timeout handling** section, you can make the program send keepalive packets to maintain connection. Proxy servers will drop a connection after a short period of time if there is no activity on it. Keepalive packets are sent during idle periods to keep the connection open.

In the **Keepalive period** edit box you can specify the maximum length of idle connection between the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway and the SMSC. You can specify it by giving the number of seconds in numerical characters representing any positive whole number. If you are content with the default specification (30 seconds), leave this edit box unchanged.

In the **Submit timeout** edit box you can specify the maximum waiting time for an SMS Center response confirming that your message has been successfully submitted. Successful submission means that the SMS Center has accepted the message for delivery. You can specify the waiting time by giving the number of seconds in numerical characters representing any positive whole number. If you are content with the default specification (60 seconds), leave this edit box unchanged.

You can choose how to consider a message you have sent if there is no response from the SMS Center after the specified length of time. Select one of the three radio buttons.

Select **Sent** to consider a message sent even if there is no response from the SMS Center. Select **Not sent** to consider a message not sent if there is no response from the SMS Center. Select **Retry later** to make the program try to send a message later if the SMS Center has not confirmed its status as sent. Then, the message will be placed last in the outgoing message queue and sent out again when it is its turn.

To configure logging, click the Logging tab in the Configuration panel.

The tab has a **Logging** and a **Log file settings** section. Here, you can choose whether to make the program write log entries about sent and received messages in human readable format and/or log low level communication. Choosing the latter option will make the program produce logfiles containing binary codes representing the communication data.

You should check at least the **Log sent and received messages in human readable format** checkbox, as logfiles can be useful in debugging communication problems (Figure 4).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 🔄 🛋 💋 Search 🧙 Favorites 🚱
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/driverprops?driver=SMPP1&mode=conf
OZEKI 🖉 Google 👻
SMPP1 (SMPP1) - Configuration
SMPP settings General settings Logging Logging A detailed communication log can be maintaned for this connection the logging options. Enabling this feature helps in resolving problet Image: Imag

Figure 4 - Logging options

In the **Log file settings** section of the tab, you can make specifications for the size and the number of available logfiles.

Log rotation saves disk space, as it ensures that older (and probably no longer needed) logfiles will be automatically deleted from the log directory, which is specified in the **Log directory** text box. By default, the access path to the logfiles is: C:\Program Files\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\Logs
In the **Maximum log file size** text box you can specify the maximum size of a logfile. Once this size is reached, a new logfile will be created. Specify the number of kilobytes for the size of a logfile by entering a positive whole number. By default, the maximum logfile size is 2000 kB.

In the **Number of rotated files** text box, specify the maximum number of rotated logfiles that are saved. Specify this number by entering a positive whole number. By default, the number of logfiles that are saved is 4 (see Figure 4 above).

If you are content with the default specifications, leave the text boxes unchanged.

In the **Advanced** tab of the **Configuration** panel, you can define detailed protocol-specific options (in the left section) and specify NPI and TON settings (in the right section).

Selecting either of the radio buttons (v3.3 or v3.4), you can specify the protocol version.

You can specify the system type by entering its name in the **System type** text box. The system type is for assigning the protocol standard of the other side (SMSC). It is specified by the service provider.

To specify the bind mode, select one of the three radio buttons: **Transmitter**, **Receiver** or **Transceiver**.

The bind mode describes the way of communication between Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway and the SMS Center of a service provider.

Select Transmitter if you use this connection only for sending SMS messages.

Select Receiver if you use this connection only for receiving messages.

Select Transceiver if you use this connection for both sending and receiving messages (Figure 5).

In the SMSC Charset dropdown menu, you can select the character set you wish to use for SMS messaging with this connection.

You can check the **Encode text into GSM 7bit** checkbox to make the program encode the text of your SMS messages into text composed of characters of the GSM 7bit character set (Figure 5).





Figure 5 - Advanced configuration settings

In the right section of this configuration panel there are six text boxes for NPI and TON settings. NPI is short for Network Protocol Identification. TON is short for Type Of Number. In each of them, you can enter numbers. This information is provided by the GSM service provider.

In the bottom left-hand corner of this section you can check the **Remove leading plus signs** checkbox to make the program remove "+" at the beginning of phone numbers. It may be necessary, as some CDMA providers do not allow leading plus in phone numbers.

The **Configuration** panel for service provider connections contains a **Connect automatically on startup** checkbox (in the bottom left-hand corner). If it is checked, Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway will automatically initiate a connection with the SMS Center when the program has started. If this checkbox is not checked, the connection has to be initiated manually.

To initiate the connection manually, click the **Connect** link in the panel of the service provider connection (Figure 6).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATE	WAY - Micros	oft Int	ernet Explo	rer			
File Edit View Favorite	s Tools Help						
🌀 Back 🔹 🕥 · 💌	2 6	Search	📌 Favorite	s 🚱	Ø• 🎍	w · 🔜	12
Address (a) http://127.0.0.1	1:9501/driverpro	ps?drive	r=SMPP0				
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌		w	ĉ,		w Vir	Térkép	Elvire
DZEKI NG - SMS GATEV	WAY					weilen einen einen einen	
File Bdit Service provide	rs 🔹 Users and a	plication	is • View • H	Help			
Compose Reply Forward	Print Del	J					
SMPPO (SMPPO)		SMP	PO (SMPPO)	- Event	ts		
Configure Events Connect Disconnect Uninstall		2/1/2 2/1/2 2/1/2 2/1/2 2/1/2	007 12:10:34 007 12:10:35 007 12:10:35 007 12:10:35 007 12:10:55	4 PH - 0 5 PH - 7 5 PH - 1 5 PH - 1 5 PH - 1 0 PH - 0	CRROR 1805: N Connecting to FCP connection R connection CRROR 1805: N Connecting to FCP connection	127.0.0.1: n error: 18 could be m o TCP conne 127.0.0.1:	9876 02 ERR ade be ction 9876
General					to connection		
Service provider name:	SMPPO				CRROR 1805: N		
Porotocol: Phone number:	SMPP +441234567				Connecting to CCP connectio		
Provider specific	+44123450/				to connection		
SMPP connection using phone +441234567 at 127.0.0.1:9876	number	2/1/2	007 12:11:22	2 PM - 0	CRROR 1805: N Connecting to FCP connectio	127.0.0.1:	9876
Logging					To connection CRROR 1805: N		
Log low level communication: Log messages:	×	2/1/2	007 12:11:38	8 PM - 0	Connecting to CCP connectio	127.0.0.1:	9876

Figure 6 - Links to operations

You can open the panel of a service provider connection by clicking its name in the **Service providers** panel in the **Management Console**.

The panel of a service provider connection consists of three sections.

In the upper section you can find the name of the service provider connection (with the name of its protocol in brackets).

You can see an icon showing if the service provider connection is connected. If it is not, the icon is marked with an "x".

To the right of the icon you can find links to perform different operations.

Configure: to configure or modify the configuration of an installed service provider connection. Clicking this link will take you back to the **Configuration** panel. **Events**: to view the logging of the latest server events related to the service provider connection. Clicking it will bring up the **Events** panel containing the logging of the latest server events.

Connect: to connect the service provider connection with the SMS Center. **Disconnect**: to disconnect the service provider connection from the SMS Center. **Uninstall**: to uninstall the service provider connection.

In the middle section of the panel you can see some of the most important configuration information.

The options that have been (re)activated during the configuration are marked with a tick. The options that have not been activated or those that have been deactivated during the configuration are marked with an "x".

In the lower section of the panel of the service provider connection you can read some information about its protocol.

Flash SMS support in SMPP SMS Services

The FLASH SMS functionality is implemented in Ozeki NG SMS Gateway. If you use the SMPP protocol, you have to configure your SMPP service provider connection to support FLASH SMS messages.

Configure your SMPP service provider connection

You can use FLASH SMS in SMPP connections in two ways:

1.) The first option:

If your SMPP provider does not support TLV fields, you can encode the FLASH SMS message class setting in the DCS field of the SMPP PDU. To use this option, make sure the "Put UDH in message instead of TLVs" checkbox is checked in the Advanced tab of the SMPP service provider connection form. On the same tab set the "Server charset:" to "Default"! After this is configured you can send GSM 7 bit charset messages as flash SMS.

SMPP settings General settings Logging A	dvanced Charse
C Detailed SMPP communication	☐ Number format
Protocol version: Ov3.3 Ov3.4	Source
System type: SMPP	Source
Bind mode: O Transmitter	Destination
OReceiver	Destination
Address range:	
Server charset: Default	Handle uns
Service Type: 00 [Hex String)	Internationa
Override DCS with: 00 Hex et	PI

note, that if you use UNICODE characters in SMPP 3.3 or SMPP 3.4 the only way you can use FLASH SMS is if your provider supports the TLV fields.

2.) The second option:

If your SMPP provider supports TLV fields, here is what you should do: Make sure the "Put UDH in message instead of TLVs" checkbox is **NOT** checked. If TLVs are supported by your service provider, both GSM 7bit and UCS2 messages can be sent as FLASH.

UCP connection

In this chapter you can find out how to install and configure the UCP IP SMS protocol for SMS messaging using the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software. In addition to an

introduction containing general information about this protocol, this page provides detailed installation and configuration instructions.

Introduction

As you can read on the <u>Service Provider Connections</u> page, you need to install and configure one or more service provider connections for SMS messaging using Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway. One of the service provider connections supported by the software is the Universal Computer Protocol (UCP) connection.

This protocol is often used by GSM service providers for IP SMS connectivity. The currently used protocol versions (v3, v3.5, v4.0) can be used to transfer high volumes of SMS traffic. It is used for both premium rate and normal rate SMS messages.

One of the advantages of using UCP connections is that you can specify the sender address of the message. The sender address can be a custom phone number or a short word containing alphanumeric characters. (See the instructions about the **overridable** checkbox below.) Note, however, that some GSM service providers restrict the use of this option.

Another advantage of UCP is that it allows sending messages of every type the GSM network can carry. It can be used to send binary SMS messages (operator logos, ringtones), WAP Push messages, as well as other types of messages. (Check out the <u>Appendix</u> for links to pages about different message types.) Concatenated SMS messages and various alphabets can also be used.

In order to use UCP to connect to an SMSC over the Internet or other private TCP/IP network, you need to subscribe to the service of a service provider.

If you wish to use UCP to connect to your service provider, you need the following information from the service provider:

IP address of the SMSC Port number of the SMSC User name Password

Some service providers require you to set up an IPSEC VPN tunnel to connect to their SMSC (Figure 1).



In most cases you need a fix IP address, which you have to let the GSM service provider know so that they can give you access through their firewall. In some situations, the service provider does not want you to be able to set up more than one UCP connection from your computer to their service. If this is the case, they might ask you to use a specific source port for the connection.

Installation and configuration

You can install and configure this connection using the <u>graphical user interface</u> of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway.

To start installing and configuring a UCP service provider connection, click the **Add** button in the top right-hand corner of the **Service providers** panel on the left of the **Management Console** interface. (To find out how to open this interface, check out the <u>QuickStart Guide</u>.)

You can also add a service provider connection by clicking the **Add service provider** item in the **Service providers** menu.

After you have clicked one of these, the **Add service provider** panel will show up on the right of the interface. The panel contains a list of protocols you can install and use for communication with an SMS service provider.

To select the UCP protocol, click the Install link in the respective entry in the list (Figure 2).



When you have installed the UCP Connection, the Configuration panel will show up on the right of the interface. The first tab of the panel is the UCP settings tab, which consists of a Connection and an Identification section.

In the **Connection** section, specify the UCP server settings. This information is provided by the GSM service provider whose service you have subscribed to. The connection parameters are the host name (or IP address), the port number, a username and a password. Service providers often use the phone number of the service or the port number as the username. Enter the information in the respective edit boxes (Figure 3).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 🐇 🛃 🏠 🔎 Search 🦕 Favorites 🚱
Address 🕘 http://localhost:9501/default?layout=MENUVIEW&MENU=DRIV{
ozeki 🖉 Google 💌 🗰 🙀
UCP0 (UCP0) - Configuration
UCP settings General settings Logging Connection Please specify the UCP server settings. (This information is provider the SMS service provider when you subscribe to the service.) Host: 127.0.0.1
Port: 9876 Username: Server re Password:
_ Identification

Figure 3 - Specifying the server settings

In the **Identification** section, specify the telephone number assigned to this connection and the service provider name. To facilitate identification and to avoid confusion, you should name the connection after the GSM service provider. E.g., if you have set up an SMPP connection with Vodafone, it is advisable to name it "Vodafone". Also, note that different connections should be given different names. If you have different connections from the same service provider, you can use different but similar names for them, e.g.: "Vodafone1", "Vodafone2" (or something of the like). However, some load balancing solutions require an identical name for different connections. For details, visit the Load Balancing and the Load Balancing for SMPP v3.3 page.

Some UCP servers require login. If this is the case, check the Server requires login checkbox.

Enter the information in the respective edit boxes. Remember to enter the phone number in international format: starting with "+". You can check the **overridable** checkbox to the right of the **Telephone number** edit box. This ensures that you can replace the phone number specified in the **Telephone number** edit box with a different one to be displayed as the sender of an outgoing message. You can also replace the number with (alphanumeric) text consisting of a maximum of eleven (11) characters. Therefore, when a message is sent out, e.g. using the **Database user**, you can specify any different phone number or a name to be displayed as the sender of the message.

Note that the phone number to be specified in the **Telephone number** edit box is a mandatory value. If you leave the edit box empty, and if the outgoing SMS message does not carry a sender phone number either, the sending will be unsuccessful.

To perform general settings related to sending and receiving SMS messages using this protocol, click the **General Settings** tab. This will open a panel consisting of the **Send**, **receive and delivery report options** and the **Timeout handling** section.

In the upper section of the panel you can check any or all of the checkboxes. Which one(s) to check depends on what you wish to use this connection for and whether you need a delivery report. You can choose to use the connection for only sending or only receiving SMS messages (or both sending and receiving), and you can choose to request a delivery report for outgoing messages (Figure 4).



Figure 4 - The General settings tab

In the lower section of the tab you can make choices and specifications to handle your connection to the SMS Center and the status of your SMS messages.

If you check the checkbox at the top of the **Timeout handling** section, you can make the program send keepalive packets to maintain connection. Proxy servers will drop a connection after a short period of time if there is no activity on it. Keepalive packets are sent during idle periods to keep the connection open.

In the **Keepalive period** edit box you can specify the maximum length of idle connection between the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway and the SMSC. You can specify it by giving the number

of seconds in numerical characters representing any positive whole number. If you are content with the default specification (30 seconds), leave this edit box unchanged.

In the **Submit timeout** edit box you can specify the maximum waiting time for an SMS Center response confirming that your message has been successfully submitted. Successful submission means that the SMS Center has accepted the message for delivery. You can specify the waiting time by giving the number of seconds in numerical characters representing any positive whole number. If you are content with the default specification (60 seconds), leave this edit box unchanged.

You can choose how to consider a message you have sent if there is no response from the SMS Center after the specified length of time. Select one of the three radio buttons. Select **Sent** to consider a message sent even if there is no response from the SMS Center. Select **Not sent** to consider a message not sent if there is no response from the SMS Center. Select **Retry later** to make the program try to send a message later if the SMS Center has not confirmed its status as sent. Then, the message will be placed last in the outgoing message queue and sent out again when it is its turn.

🕘 OZEKI NG - SA	AS GATEWAY - A	Microsoft Internet Expl	orer
File Edit View	Favorites Tools	Help	
G Back 🝷 📀) - 💌 🛢 🎸) 🔎 Search 🤺 Favorit	es 🚱
Address 🔕 http://	localhost:9501/def	ault?layout=MENUVIEW&MB	ENU=DRIV
OZEKI Google	•	🗑 🖗 🕼	
UCPO (UCPO) - Co	onfiguration		
the logging	options. Enabling t nt and received me v level communicati ings	can be maintaned for this cor his feature helps in resolving ssages in human readable fo on . Please specify the maximum	problems. prmat

Figure 5 - Logging options

To configure logging, click the Logging tab in the Configuration panel.

The tab has a **Logging** and a **Log file settings** section. Here, you can choose whether to make the program write log entries about sent and received messages in human readable format and/or log

low level communication. Choosing the latter option will make the program produce logfiles containing binary codes representing the communication data.

You should check at least the **Log sent and received messages in human readable format** checkbox, as logfiles can be useful in debugging communication problems (Figure 5).

In the **Log file settings** section of the tab, you can make specifications for the size and the number of available logfiles.

Log rotation saves disk space, as it ensures that older (and probably no longer needed) logfiles will be automatically deleted from the log directory, which is specified in the **Log directory** text box. By default, the access path to the logfiles is: C:\Program Files\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\Logs

In the **Maximum log file size** text box you can specify the maximum size of a logfile. Once this size is reached, a new logfile will be created. Specify the number of kilobytes for the size of a logfile by entering a positive whole number. By default, the maximum logfile size is 2000 kB.

In the **Number of rotated files** text box, specify the maximum number of rotated logfiles that are saved. Specify this number by entering a positive whole number. By default, the number of logfiles that are saved is 4 (see Figure 5 above).

If you are content with the default specifications, leave the text boxes unchanged.

The **Configuration** panel for service provider connections contains a **Connect automatically on startup** checkbox (in the bottom left-hand corner). If it is checked, Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway will automatically initiate a connection with the SMS Center when the program has started. If this checkbox is not checked, the connection has to be initiated manually.

To initiate the connection manually, click the **Connect** link in the panel of the service provider connection (Figure 6).

You can open the panel of a service provider connection by clicking its name in the **Service providers** panel in the **Management Console**.

The panel of a service provider connection consists of three sections.

In the upper section you can find the name of the service provider connection (with the name of its protocol in brackets).

You can see an icon showing if the service provider connection is connected. If it is not, the icon is marked with an "x".

OZEKI NG - SMS GATE	WAY - Micros	oft Internet Explorer	
File Edit View Favorite	s Tools Help		
🕝 Back 🔹 🕥 🐇 💌	2 🟠 🔎	Search 쑭 Favorites 🏼	3 🗟 - 🕹 🖂 🔂 🥸
Address 💩 http://localhost:	9501/driverprop	s?driver=UCP0	
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌		w C	Vir Térkép Elvire
ZEKI NG - SMS GATE	VAY		
File . Edit . Service provide	rs 🔹 Users and a	oplications . View . Help	
Compose Reply Forward	Print Del	J	
UCPO (UCPO)		UCP0 (UCP0) - Event	5
Configure Events Connect Disconnect Uninstall		3/9/2007 9:54:24 AM - 3/9/2007 9:54:40 AM - 3/9/2007 9:54:41 AM - 3/9/2007 9:54:41 AM -	ERROR 1805: No TCP connection the ERROR 1805: No TCP connection t Connecting to 127.0.0.1:9876 ERROR 1812: TCP Connection error ERROR 1805: No TCP connection t ERROR 1805: No TCP connection t
General	ž		Connecting to 127.0.0.1:9876
Service provider name:	UCP0		ERROR 1312: TCP Connection erro ERROR 1805: No TCP connection t
Protocol:	UCP		ERROR 1805: No TCP connection t
Phone number:	+441234567		Connecting to 127.0.0.1:9876
Provider specific			ERROR 1312: TCP Connection error ERROR 1805: No TCP connection t
UCP connection using phone n +441234567 at 127.0.0.1:9876	umber	3/9/2007 9:55:13 AM -	ERROR 1805: No TCP connection to Connecting to 127.0.0.1:9876
Logging		3/9/2007 9:55:29 AM -	ERROR 1312: TCP Connection erro
Log low level communication:	×		ERROR 1805: No TCP connection t
Log messages:	×	0/0/ 0001 0100100 Pat	ERROR 1805: No TCP connection t

Figure 6 - Links to operations

To the right of the icon you can find links to perform different operations.

Configure: to configure or modify the configuration of an installed service provider connection. Clicking this link will take you back to the **Configuration** panel. **Events**: to view the logging of the latest server events related to the service provider connection. Clicking it will bring up the **Events** panel containing the logging of the latest server events.

Connect: to connect the service provider connection with the SMS Center. **Disconnect**: to disconnect the service provider connection from the SMS Center. **Uninstall**: to uninstall the service provider connection.

In the middle section of the panel you can see some of the most important configuration information.

The options that have been (re)activated during the configuration are marked with a tick. The options that have not been activated or those that have been deactivated during the configuration are marked with an "x".

In the lower section of the panel of the service provider connection you can read some information about its protocol.

OZEKI INFORMATIKAI KFT

CIMD2 connection

In this chapter you can find out how to install and configure the UCP IP SMS protocol for SMS messaging using the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software. In addition to an introduction containing general information about this protocol, this page provides detailed installation and configuration instructions.

Introduction

As you can read on the <u>Service Provider Connections</u> page, you need to install and configure one or more service provider connections for SMS messaging using Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway. One of the service provider connections supported by the software is the CIMD2 connection.

The Computer Interface Message Distribution (CIMD) protocol was introduced by Nokia. The Nokia SMS Center includes an CIMD2 interface that transfers messages between applications and the Nokia Short Message Service Center (SMSC).

CIMD2 is version 2 of the Computer Interface to Message Distribution protocol. The CIMD2 interface is suitable for client applications that send and retrieve messages over TCP/IP sockets, such as **Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway**.

One of the advantages of using CIMD2 connections is that you can specify the sender address of the message. The sender address can be a custom phone number or a short word containing alphanumeric characters. (See the instructions about the **overridable** checkbox below.) Note, however, that some GSM service providers restrict the use of this option.

Another advantage of CIMD2 is that it allows sending messages of every type the GSM network can carry. It can be used to send binary SMS messages (operator logos, ringtones), WAP Push messages, as well as other types of messages. (Check out the <u>Appendix</u> for links to pages about different message types.) Concatenated SMS messages and various alphabets can also be used.

A CIMD2 connection can be used through an IP link. This link can be a leased line or the Internet. Optionally the link can be protected by VPN.

If you wish to use CIMD2 to connect to your service provider, you need to receive the following information from the service provider:

IP address of the SMSC
Port number of the SMSC
User name
Password

Installation and configuration

You can install and configure this connection using the <u>graphical user interface</u> of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway.

To start installing and configuring a UCP service provider connection, click the **Add** button in the top right-hand corner of the **Service providers** panel on the left of the **Management Console** interface. (To find out how to open this interface, check out the <u>QuickStart Guide</u>.)

You can also add a service provider connection by clicking the **Add service provider** item in the **Service providers** menu.

After you have clicked one of these, the **Add service provider** panel will show up on the right of the interface. The panel contains a list of protocols you can install and use for communication with an SMS service provider.

To select the CIMD2 protocol, click the Install link in the respective entry in the list (Figure 1).



Figure 1 - Starting to install the CIMD2 connection

When you have installed the **CIMD2 Connection**, the **Configuration** panel will show up on the right of the interface. The first tab of the panel is the **CIMD2 settings** tab, which consists of a **Connection** and an **Identification** section.

In the **Connection** section, specify the CIMD2 server settings. This information is provided by the GSM service provider whose service you have subscribed to. The connection parameters are the host name (or IP address), the port number, a username and a password. The hostname refers to the server that Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway will connect to. This specification allows you to customize a connection. The valid values of the port parameter range from 0 to 65535. The username and the password are text attributes which can also include numerical characters. Service providers often use the phone number of the service or the port number as the username. These specifications are an essential part of the SMSC authentication method. Enter the information in the respective edit boxes (Figure 2).

In the **Use source port** edit box you can specify the source port. Only use a value other than 0 if your operator prompts you to do so.

OZEKING - SMS GATEWAY	- Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites To	ols Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 🔹 🛃	🏠 🔎 Search 🤺 Favorites 🤣
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501	./driverprops?driver=CIMD20&mode=cor
ozeki 🖉 Google 💌	w ¢_
CIMD20 (CIMD20) - Configurati	on
Connection Please specify the CIMD2	tings Logging Advanced Charsets 2 server settings. (This information is pro- when you subscribe to the service.) 127.0.0.1 9876 Use sour (Optional

Figure 2 - Specifying the server settings

In the **Identification** section, specify the telephone number assigned to this connection and the service provider name. To facilitate identification and to avoid confusion, you should name the connection after the GSM service provider. E.g., if you have set up an SMPP connection with Vodafone, it is advisable to name it "Vodafone". Also, note that different connections should be given different names. If you have different connections from the same service provider, you can use different but similar names for them, e.g.: "Vodafone1", "Vodafone2" (or something of the like). However, some load balancing solutions require an identical name for different connections. For details, visit the Load Balancing and the Load Balancing for SMPP v3.3 page.

Enter the information in the respective edit boxes. Remember to enter the phone number in international format: starting with "+". You can check the **overridable** checkbox to the right of the **Telephone number** edit box. This ensures that you can replace the phone number specified in the **Telephone number** edit box with a different one to be displayed as the sender of an outgoing message. You can also replace the number with (alphanumeric) text consisting of a maximum of eleven (11) characters. Therefore, when a message is sent out, e.g. using the **Database user**, you can specify any different phone number or a name to be displayed as the sender of the message.

To perform general settings related to sending and receiving SMS messages using this protocol, click the **General Settings** tab. This will open a panel consisting of the **Send**, receive and **delivery report options** and the **Timeout handling** section.

In the upper section of the panel you can check any or all of the checkboxes. Which one(s) to check depends on what you wish to use this connection for and whether you need a delivery report. You can choose to use the connection for only sending or only receiving SMS messages (or both sending and receiving), and you can choose to request a delivery report for outgoing messages (Figure 3).



Figure 3 - The General settings tab

In the lower section of the tab you can make choices and specifications to handle your connection to the SMS Center and the status of your SMS messages.

If you check the checkbox at the top of the **Timeout handling** section, you can make the program send keepalive packets to maintain connection. Proxy servers will drop a connection after a short period of time if there is no activity on it. Keepalive packets are sent during idle periods to keep the connection open.

In the **Keepalive period** edit box you can specify the maximum length of idle connection between the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway and the SMSC. You can specify it by giving the number of seconds in numerical characters representing any positive whole number. If you are content with the default specification (30 seconds), leave this edit box unchanged.

In the **Submit timeout** edit box you can specify the maximum waiting time for an SMS Center response confirming that your message has been successfully submitted. Successful submission means that the SMS Center has accepted the message for delivery. You can specify the waiting

time by giving the number of seconds in numerical characters representing any positive whole number. If you are content with the default specification (60 seconds), leave this edit box unchanged.

You can choose how to consider a message you have sent if there is no response from the SMS Center after the specified length of time. Select one of the three radio buttons. Select **Sent** to consider a message sent even if there is no response from the SMS Center. Select **Not sent** to consider a message not sent if there is no response from the SMS Center. Select **Retry later** to make the program try to send a message later if the SMS Center has not confirmed its status as sent. Then, the message will be placed last in the outgoing message queue and sent out again when it is its turn.

Ø OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🝷 🕥 🗧 🛋 🛃 🌮 Search 👷 Favorites 🪱
Address a http://127.0.0.1:9501/driverprops?driver=CIMD20&mode=con
ozeki 🔮 Google 👻 🐨 🐨
CIMD20 (CIMD20) - Configuration
CIMD2 settings General settings Logging Advanced Charsets Logging A detailed communication log can be maintained for this connection. Pl the logging options. Enabling this feature helps in resolving problems. Log sent and received messages in human readable format Log low level communication Log file settings Log rotation saves disk space. Please specify the maximum size for the log files and the number of rotated files.
Log directory: C:\Program Files\Ozeki\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\Log

Figure 4 - Logging options

To configure logging, click the **Logging** tab in the **Configuration** panel. The tab has a **Logging** and a **Log file settings** section. Here, you can choose whether to make the program write log entries about sent and received messages in human readable format and/or log low level communication. Choosing the latter option will make the program produce logfiles containing binary codes representing the communication data.

You should check at least the **Log sent and received messages in human readable format** checkbox, as logfiles can be useful in debugging communication problems (Figure 4).

The Advanced tab includes a Flow Control and an Operator-Specific Settings section.

The windowing feature of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway enables the program to initiate more than one operation before receiving responses. For stop-and-wait flow control, use window size 1. (The maximum window size is 128.) You can set how many protocol messages can be sent out before the SMS Center responds to them. Protocol messages can include SMS messages, keepalive packets, etc. The default value is 1. If you set this number too high, your SMS messages may be discarded, as most GSM service providers try to prevent their networks from being overloaded (Figure 5).

Ø OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 - 💌 🗟 🏠 🔎 Search 🤺 Favorites 🪱
Address 🗃 http://127.0.0.1:9501/driverprops?driver=CIMD20&mode=con
OZEKI Google 👻
CIMD20 (CIMD20) - Configuration
CIMD2 settings General settings Logging Advanced Charsets Flow Control The windowing feature enables the program to initiate more than receiving responses. For stop-and-wait flow control, use window s (The maximum window size is 128.) Window size: 1
Operator-Specific Settings Include checksum field for protocol messages.
 Replace STX and ETX to operate with custom protocol implement On't include the originator address when submitting messages.

Figure 5 - The Advanced tab

The Operator-Specific Settings section contains three checkboxes.

The **Include checksum field for protocol messages** checkbox allows you to make the program use a checksum to check the integrity of an SMS message. By default, this checkbox is checked. Check the **Replace STX and ETX to operate with custom protocol implementations** checkbox to avoid using the STX character, and to replace the ETX with the CR/LF (newline) character.

Check the Don't include the originator address when submitting messages checkbox

HTTP Client Connection

This chapter provides detailed instructions on how to install and configure the HTTP Client service provider connection for SMS messaging using the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software.

As you can read on the <u>Service Provider Connections</u> page, you need to install and configure one or more service provider connections for SMS messaging using Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway. One of the service provider connections supported by the software is the HTTP Client connection.

The HTTP Client protocol can be used to connect your PC directly to the SMSC for sending SMS messages over the Internet. For each outgoing message an HTTP GET or HTTP POST request is used. Text and binary SMS message types are supported.

You can install and configure this connection using the <u>graphical user interface</u> of Ozeki NG -SMS Gateway. To start installing and configuring an HTTP Client connection, click the **Add** button in the top right-hand corner of the **Service providers** panel on the left of the **Management Console** interface. (To find out how to open this interface, check out the <u>QuickStart Guide</u>.)

You can also add a service provider connection by clicking the **Add service provider** item in the **Service providers** menu.



After you have clicked one of these, the **Add service provider** panel will show up on the right of the interface. The panel contains a list of protocols you can install and use for communication with an SMS service provider.

OZEKI INFORMATIKAI KFT

To select the HTTP Client protocol, click the **Install** link in the respective entry in the list (Figure 1).

When you have installed the **HTTP Client** protocol, the **Configuration** panel will show up on the right of the interface. The first tab of the panel is the **HTTP settings** tab, which consists of a **Connection** and an **Identification** section.

File Ed	I NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer dit View Favorites Tools Help
	ck • 🕥 · 🖹 🗟 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🚱
Address	Attp://127.0.0.1:9501/default?layout=MENUVIEW&MENU=DRI
OZEKI	Google 👻 🕼 🙀
HTTPCI	ient1 (HTTPClient1) - Configuration
	Please specify the HTTP Client settings. (This information is prov the SMS service provider, when you subscribe for the service.) Target URL:
	http://localhost:8000/sms/getresponse.php? receiver=\$recipient&sender=\$originator&msg=\$messagedata&id=\$

Figure 2 - The HTTP settings tab

In the **Connection** section, specify the HTTP Client settings. This information is provided by the SMS service provider when you subscribe to the service (Figure 2).

In the **Target URL** template you can specify the URL of the HTTP server. This URL can contain certain keywords that will be replaced before the URL is called. The following keywords can be used:

Keyword	Description	
\$originator	This denotes the sender telephone number.	
\$recipient	This denotes the recipient telephone number.	
\$messagedata This denotes the first 1024 characters of the message text.		
\$messageid	This is the unique identifier string of the message. This identifier is generated by Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway.	

In the **Identification** section, specify the telephone number assigned to this connection and the service provider connection name. To facilitate identification and to avoid confusion, you should name the connection after the GSM service provider. E.g., if you have set up an HTTP Client

connection with Vodafone, it is advisable to name it "Vodafone". Also, note that different connections should be given different names. If you have different connections from the same service provider, you can use different but similar names for them, e.g.: "Vodafone1", "Vodafone2" (or something of the like). However, some load balancing solutions require an identical name for different connections. For details, visit the Load Balancing and the Load Balancing for SMPP v3.3 page.

Enter the information in the respective edit boxes. Remember to enter the phone number in international format: starting with "+". You can check the **overridable** checkbox to the right of the **Telephone number** edit box. This ensures that you can replace the phone number specified in the **Telephone number** edit box with a different one to be displayed as the sender of an outgoing message. You can also replace the number with (alphanumeric) text consisting of a maximum of eleven (11) characters. Therefore, when a message is sent out, e.g. using the <u>Database user</u>, you can specify any different phone number or a name to be displayed as the sender of the message.

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🕞 Back 🔹 🕥 🔹 📓 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🧭
Address 💩 http://127.0.0.1:9501/driverprops?driver=HTTPClient1&mode=
ozeki 🖉 Google 💌 🙀 🕵
HTTPClient1 (HTTPClient1) - Configuration
HTTP settings General settings Logging Advanced Send, receive and delivery report options HTTP Client connections are mainly used for sending messages. How to set up HTTP polling to download incoming messages from a HTTP Use this connection for sending outgoing messages Outgoing messages Use this connection for receiving incoming messages Polling interval: 2 Sec. Timeout handling If no response is received for a message until a given time, some action

Figure 3 - The General settings tab

Note that the phone number to be specified in the **Telephone number** edit box is a mandatory value. If you leave the edit box blank, the sending will be unsuccessful.

To perform general settings related to sending and receiving SMS messages using the HTTP Client connection, click the **General Settings** tab. This will open a panel consisting of the **Send**, **receive and delivery report options** and the **Timeout handling** section (Figure 3).

OZEKI INFORMATIKAI KFT

In the upper section of the panel you can check either or both of the checkboxes. Which one(s) to check depends on what you wish to use this connection for. You can choose to use the connection for only sending or only receiving SMS messages (or both sending and receiving). Note that HTTP Client connections are mainly used for sending messages. However, it is possible to set up HTTP polling to download incoming messages from an HTTP server. In the **Polling interval** edit box at the bottom of this section, you can specify the polling interval in seconds by entering a positive whole number in numerical format. If you are content with the default specification (2 seconds), leave this edit box unchanged.

In the lower section of the tab you can make choices and specifications to handle your connection to the SMS Center and the status of your SMS messages.

In the **Submit timeout** edit box you can specify the maximum waiting time for an SMS Center response confirming that your message has been successfully submitted. Successful submission means that the SMS Center has accepted the message for delivery. You can specify the waiting time by giving the number of seconds in numerical characters representing any positive whole number. If you are content with the default specification (60 seconds), leave this edit box unchanged.

You can choose how to consider a message you have sent if there is no response from the SMS Center after the specified length of time. Select one of the three radio buttons. Select **Sent** to consider a message sent even if there is no response from the SMS Center. Select **Not sent** to consider a message not sent if there is no response from the SMS Center. Select **Retry later** to make the program try to send a message later if the SMS Center has not confirmed its status as sent. Then, the message will be placed last in the outgoing message queue and sent out again when it is its turn.

To configure logging, click the Logging tab in the Configuration panel.

The tab has a **Logging** and a **Log file settings** section. Here, you can choose whether to make the program write log entries about sent and received messages in human readable format and/or log low level communication. Choosing the latter option will make the program produce logfiles containing binary codes representing the communication data.

You should check at least the **Log sent and received messages in human readable format** checkbox, as logfiles can be useful in debugging communication problems (Figure 4).

Ø OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🛛 🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 🔹 📓 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🪱
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/driverprops?driver=HTTPClient1&mode
OZEKI 🖉 Google 🔽
HTTPClient1 (HTTPClient1) - Configuration
HTTP settings General settings Logging Advanced Logging A detailed communication log can be maintaned for this connection. P the logging options. Enabling this feature helps in resolving problems.
Log file settings Log rotation saves disk space. Please specify the maximum size for the log files and the number of rotated files.
Figure 4 - Logging options

In the **Log file settings** section of the tab, you can make specifications for the size and the number of available logfiles.

Log rotation saves disk space, as it ensures that older (and probably no longer needed) logfiles will be automatically deleted from the log directory, which is specified in the **Log directory** text box. By default, the access path to the logfiles is: C:\Program Files\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\Logs

In the **Maximum log file size** text box you can specify the maximum size of a logfile. Once this size is reached, a new logfile will be created. Specify the number of kilobytes for the size of a logfile by entering a positive whole number. By default, the maximum logfile size is 2000 kB.

In the **Number of rotated files** text box, specify the maximum number of rotated logfiles that are saved. Specify this number by entering a positive whole number. By default, the number of logfiles that are saved is 4 (see Figure 4 above).

If you are content with the default specifications, leave the text boxes unchanged.

The **Configuration** panel for service provider connections contains a **Connect automatically on startup** checkbox (in the bottom left-hand corner). If it is checked, Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway

will automatically initiate a connection with the SMS Center when the program has started. If this checkbox is not checked, the connection has to be initiated manually.

To initiate the connection manually, click the **Connect** link in the panel of the service provider connection(Figure 5).

DZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microso	oft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help	
🌀 Back 🔹 🕥 - 📓 🗟 🏠 🔎 s	Search 👷 Favorites 🥝 🎯 📲 🔛 🔛 🗱 -
Address ahttp://127.0.0.1:9501/driverprop	os?driver=HTTPClient1
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌	😻 😋 booking 😻 Vir Térkép Elvira
OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY	
• File • Edit • Service providers • Users and ap	plications - View - Help
Compose Reply Forward Print Del)
Vodafone (HTTPClient1)	Vodafone (HTTPClient1) - Events
Configure Events Connect Disconnect Uninstall	2/19/2007 7:55:15 AM - Service started. 2/19/2007 7:55:15 AM - SMSC (HTTPClientl) Variables 2/19/2007 7:55:15 AM - + 2/19/2007 7:55:15 AM - Name 2/19/2007 7:55:15 AM - + 2/19/2007 7:55:15 AM - +
General	2/19/2007 7:55:15 AM - CHARSETHANDLING 2/19/2007 7:55:15 AM - HTTPAUTHORIZATIONMETHOD
Service provider name:	2/19/2007 7:55:15 AM - HTTPAUTHORIZATIONPASSWORD
Porotocol:	2/19/2007 7:55:15 AM - HTTPAUTHORIZATIONUSER
Phone number:	2/19/2007 7:55:15 AM - IDOVERRIDE 2/19/2007 7:55:15 AM - KEEPALIVEPERIOD
Provider specific	2/19/2007 7:55:15 AM - KEEPALIVEREQUEST
HTTPClient connection using phone number +441	
http://localhost.8000/sms/getresponse.php? receiver=\$recipient&sender=\$originator&msg=\$rr	2/19/2007 7:55:15 AM - LOGDIRECTORY 2/19/2007 7:55:15 AM - LOGHISTORYCOUNT
Logging	2/19/2007 7:55:15 AM - LOGLINESBEFORECHECKSIZE
Log low level communication:	2/19/2007 7:55:15 AM - LOGMAXFILESIZE 2/19/2007 7:55:15 AM - LOGMESSAGES

Figure 5 - Links to operations

You can open the panel of a service provider connection by clicking its name in the **Service providers** panel in the **Management Console**.

The panel of a service provider connection consists of three sections.

In the upper section you can find the name of the service provider connection (with the name of its protocol in brackets).

You can see an icon showing if the service provider connection is connected. If it is not, the icon is marked with an "x".

To the right of the icon you can find links to perform different operations.

Configure: to configure or modify the configuration of an installed service provider connection. Clicking this link will take you back to the **Configuration** panel. **Events**: to view the logging of the latest server events related to the service provider

connection. Clicking it will bring up the **Events** panel containing the logging of the latest server events.

Connect: to connect the service provider connection with the SMS Center. **Disconnect**: to disconnect the service provider connection from the SMS Center. **Uninstall**: to uninstall the service provider connection.

In the middle section of the panel you can see some of the most important configuration information.

The options that have been (re)activated during the configuration are marked with a tick. The options that have not been activated or those that have been deactivated during the configuration are marked with an "x".

In the lower section of the panel of the service provider connection you can read some information about its protocol.

Variables for HTTP Client Service Provider Connection

The following table lists the variables you can use in the HTTP requests sent to HTTP Client service provider connections.

recipient	The recipient of the message	
originator	The sender of the message	
messagedata	The message text (or message data for binary messages)	
messagedataHEX	The message text encoded as a hexadecimal string	
messagetype	The message type. For more information please take a look at the <u>SMS Message Types page</u> .	
messageid	A unique string for the message.	
dcs	The GSM data codeing scheme	
username	The Ozeki User name of the user who submitted the message	
password	The Ozeki Password of the user who submitted the message. Please handle this parameter with great care, as it can expose the user information of the SMS gateway!	

HTTP Server Connection

This chapter provides detailed instructions on how to install and configure the HTTP Server connection for SMS messaging using the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software.

As you can read on the <u>Service Provider Connections</u> page, you need to install and configure one or more service provider connections for SMS messaging using Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway. One of the service provider connections supported by the software is the HTTP Server connection.

The HTTP Server protocol makes it possible for service providers to pass incoming messages to your service using an HTTP request for each incoming SMS message and they optionally accept a reply message in the HTTP response. This technology is often used by premium-rated SMS services. This connection option can also be used as a "Virtual phone" for software development purposes.

You can install and configure the HTTP Server connection using the <u>graphical user interface</u> of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway. To start installing and configuring an HTTP Server connection, click

the Add button in the top right-hand corner of the Service providers panel on the left of the Management Console interface. (To find out how to open this interface, check out the QuickStart Guide.)

You can also add a service provider connection by clicking the Add service provider item in the Service providers menu.

After you have clicked one of these, the **Add service provider** panel will show up on the right of the interface. The panel contains a list of protocols you can install and use for communication with an SMS service provider.

To select the HTTP Server protocol, click the **Install** link in the respective entry in the list (Figure 1).



Figure 1 - Starting to install the HTTP Server connection

When you have installed the **HTTP Server** protocol, the **Configuration** panel will show up on the right of the interface. The first tab of the panel is the **HTTP settings** tab, which consists of a **Connection** and an **Identification** section.

In the **Connection** section, specify the HTTP Server settings. This information is provided by the SMS service provider when you subscribe to the service (Figure 2).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 🐁 📓 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🥝
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/driverprops?driver=HTTPServer0&mode
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌 🛛 👷 🍘 booking
HTTPServer0 (HTTPServer0) - Configuration HTTP settings General settings Logging Advanced Connection Please specify the HTTP Server settings. (This information is pro the SMS service provider, when you subscribe for the service.) Base URL: http://127.0.0.1:9400/ Identification

Figure 2 - The HTTP settings tab

In the Base URL template, specify the base URL.

In the **Identification** section, specify the telephone number assigned to this connection and the service provider connection name. To facilitate identification and to avoid confusion, you should name the connection after the GSM service provider. E.g., if you have set up an HTTP Server connection with Vodafone, it is advisable to name it "Vodafone". Also, note that different connections should be given different names. If you have different connections from the same service provider, you can use different but similar names for them, e.g.: "Vodafone1", "Vodafone2" (or something of the like). However, some load balancing solutions require an identical name for different connections. For details, visit the Load Balancing and the Load Balancing for SMPP v3.3 page.

Enter the information in the respective edit boxes. Remember to enter the phone number in international format: starting with "+". You can check the **overridable** checkbox to the right of the **Telephone number** edit box. This ensures that you can replace the phone number specified in the **Telephone number** edit box with a different one to be displayed as the sender of an outgoing message. You can also replace the number with (alphanumeric) text consisting of a maximum of eleven (11) characters. Therefore, when a message is sent out, e.g. using the

<u>Database user</u>, you can specify any different phone number or a name to be displayed as the sender of the message.

Note that the phone number to be specified in the **Telephone number** edit box is a mandatory value. If you leave the edit box blank, the sending will be unsuccessful.

To perform general settings related to sending and receiving SMS messages using the HTTP Server connection, click the **General Settings** tab. This will open a panel consisting of the **Send**, **receive and delivery report options** and the **Timeout handling** section (Figure 3).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 - 📓 🛃 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🥝
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/driverprops?driver=HTTPServer0&mode
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌 🛛 👷 🍘 booking
Vodafone (HTTPServer0) - Configuration
HTTP settings General settings Logging Advanced Send, receive and delivery report options HTTP Client connections are mainly used for sending messages. How to set up HTTP polling to download incoming messages from a HTTP Use this connection for sending outgoing messages Use this connection for receiving incoming messages Polling interval: 2 sec. Timeout handling If no response is received for a message until a given time, some action

In the upper section of the panel you can check either or both of the checkboxes. Which one(s) to check depends on what you wish to use this connection for. You can choose to use the connection for only sending or only receiving SMS messages (or both sending and receiving). Note that HTTP Server connections are mainly used for sending messages. However, it is possible to set up HTTP polling to download incoming messages from a HTTP server. In the **Polling interval** edit box at the bottom of this section, you can specify the polling interval in seconds by entering a positive whole number in numerical format. If you are content with the default specification (2 seconds), leave this edit box unchanged.

In the lower section of the tab you can make choices and specifications to handle your connection to the SMS Center and the status of your SMS messages.

In the **Submit timeout** edit box you can specify the maximum waiting time for an SMS Center response confirming that your message has been successfully submitted. Successful submission means that the SMS Center has accepted the message for delivery. You can specify the waiting time by giving the number of seconds in numerical characters representing any positive whole number. If you are content with the default specification (60 seconds), leave this edit box unchanged.

You can choose how to consider a message you have sent if there is no response from the SMS Center after the specified length of time. Select one of the three radio buttons. Select **Sent** to consider a message sent even if there is no response from the SMS Center. Select **Not sent** to consider a message not sent if there is no response from the SMS Center. Select **Retry later** to make the program try to send a message later if the SMS Center has not confirmed its status as sent. Then, the message will be placed last in the outgoing message queue and sent out again when it is its turn.

To configure logging, click the Logging tab in the Configuration panel.

The tab has a **Logging** and a **Log file settings** section. Here, you can choose whether to make the program write log entries about sent and received messages in human readable format and/or log low level communication. Choosing the latter option will make the program produce logfiles containing binary codes representing the communication data.

You should check at least the **Log sent and received messages in human readable format** checkbox, as logfiles can be useful in debugging communication problems (Figure 4).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 - 🖹 🗟 🏠 🔎 Search 🤶 Favorites 🧭
Address ahttp://127.0.0.1:9501/driverprops?driver=HTTPServer0&mode
OZEKI 🖉 Google 👻 🛛 🗤 🕅 🙀 booking
Vodafone (HTTPServer0) - Configuration
HTTP settings General settings Logging Advanced Logging A detailed communication log can be maintaned for this connection. Pl the logging options. Enabling this feature helps in resolving problems.
Log sent and received messages in human readable format Log low level communication
Log file settings Log rotation saves disk space. Please specify the maximum size for th log files and the number of rotated files.

Figure 4 - Logging options

In the **Log file settings** section of the tab, you can make specifications for the size and the number of available logfiles.

Log rotation saves disk space, as it ensures that older (and probably no longer needed) logfiles will be automatically deleted from the log directory, which is specified in the **Log directory** text box. By default, the access path to the logfiles is: C:\Program Files\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\Logs

In the **Maximum log file size** text box you can specify the maximum size of a logfile. Once this size is reached, a new logfile will be created. Specify the number of kilobytes for the size of a logfile by entering a positive whole number. By default, the maximum logfile size is 2000 kB.

In the **Number of rotated files** text box, specify the maximum number of rotated logfiles that are saved. Specify this number by entering a positive whole number. By default, the number of logfiles that are saved is 4 (see Figure 4 above).

If you are content with the default specifications, leave the text boxes unchanged.

The **Configuration** panel for service provider connections contains a **Connect automatically on startup** checkbox (in the bottom left-hand corner). If it is checked, Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway will automatically initiate a connection with the SMS Center when the program has started. If this checkbox is not checked, the connection has to be initiated manually.

To initiate the connection manually, click the **Connect** link in the panel of the service provider connection (Figure 5).



Figure 5 - Links to operations

You can open the panel of a service provider connection by clicking its name in the **Service providers** panel in the **Management Console**.

The panel of a service provider connection consists of three sections.

In the upper section you can find the name of the service provider connection (with the name of its protocol in brackets).

You can see an icon showing if the service provider connection is connected. If it is not, the icon is marked with an "x".

To the right of the icon you can find links to perform different operations.

Configure: to configure or modify the configuration of an installed service provider connection. Clicking this link will take you back to the **Configuration** panel. **Events**: to view the logging of the latest server events related to the service provider connection. Clicking it will bring up the **Events** panel containing the logging of the latest server events.

Connect: to connect the service provider connection with the SMS Center. **Disconnect**: to disconnect the service provider connection from the SMS Center. **Uninstall**: to uninstall the service provider connection.

In the middle section of the panel you can see some of the most important configuration information.

The options that have been (re)activated during the configuration are marked with a tick. The options that have not been activated or those that have been deactivated during the configuration are marked with an "x".

In the lower section of the panel of the service provider connection you can read some information about its protocol.

Users and Applications

This section explains the terms user/application in SMS messaging using the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software, and provides links to different pages detailing how to install and configure different users and applications.

In SMS messaging using Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway, a user or application is an entity provided with service with the help of the software. For instance, a user (human person) can log in to Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway to send and receive SMS messages using the graphical user interface (GUI) of the program.

An application allows automated SMS messaging, without human involvement, though with human configuration. For example, a database user inserts incoming messages into a database, and periodically checks the database for messages to be sent out.

For reasons of simplicity, applications are also often referred to as users in the documentation and the GUI of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway.

Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway allows you to install and configure a large number of and different types of users and applications using the graphical user interface of the software.

At present, the program supports the installation and configuration of the following users and applications:

- <u>Standard user</u>
- <u>E-mail user</u>
- <u>Autoreply user</u>
- <u>AutoReplyEasy user</u>
- Colour SMS user
- Database user
- <u>File user</u>
- HTTP Client user
- <u>SMPP user</u>

OZEKI INFORMATIKAI KFT

Standard User

This chapter explains how to install and configure a standard user for SMS messaging using the graphical user interface of the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software.

Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway allows, among others (see the <u>Users and Applications</u> page), the installation and configuration of a Standard user.

A standard user can use the HTTP user interface to log in to the program to send and receive SMS messages.

You can use the <u>graphical user interface</u> of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway to install and configure a standard user.

To start installing and configuring a standard user, click the Add button in the top right-hand corner of the Users and Applications panel on the right of the Management Console. You can also add a user by clicking the Add user item in the Users and applications menu (Figure 1).

CZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microso	oft Inte	ernet	Explo	rer					
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help		W.							
🚱 Back 🔹 🌍 🔹 📓 💋 🔎 S	Search	Tr.	avorites	•	8-6		w -		12
Address 🗃 http://127.0.0.1:9501/							Ed	dit	
ozeki 👷 Google 💌	w	Ĉ	leheta	iség	w	Vir	Térk	ép	Elvira
Compose Reply Forward Print Del	Inbo	und ro	uting	6%) -	▶ 82.				() E
SMPPO (SMPPO) O	Name		vider	Sender	Receiver	Key	word	User	Mode
Idle, waiting for messages	default	in AN	Y	ANY	ANY	AND	(admin	move

Figure 1 - Adding a user

This will bring up an interface consisting of two panels.

The panel on the left contains a list of users that have been installed. In the bar at the bottom of the panel you can read how many users have been installed.

The panel on the right contains a list of users that can be installed.

Each user in the left-hand panel is listed with a unique name (and the user type stated in brackets).

Each user in the right-hand panel is listed with the name of its type and a brief description of what it can be used for.

To add a standard user, click the **Install** link in the respective entry in the list (Figure 2).

File Edit View Favorites Tools Help					
G Back ● ≥ ≥ > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > > <	Search 📌 Favorit	es 🚱 💈	3- 🕹	.) (1
OZEKI Google Calgary	w ĉp		w Vir	Térkép	o Elvi
• File • Edit • Service providers • Users and ap		Help			
File Edit Service providers Users and ap			æ		6
File Edit Service providers Users and ap Service providers Add user Add user admin (Stand Teddy (Stand Teddy (Stand	fard)	g 📆 🖚	beiver 130250987	bear 1	User M Teddy m admin m

Figure 2 - Installing a standard user

When installing a user (type), you need to give it a unique username. Clicking the **Install** link will bring up the **Standard user installation** panel. Here, you need to enter a unique username in the **Username** field.

This will take you to the Authentication tab of the Configuration panel.

The **Username** field contains the unique username you have provided in the previous panel. The **Password** field contains a password offered by the program. You can and should change it. Your password should be a combination of letters and digits (at least one or two of the latter). From now on, the username and password you have provided can be used to log in to the program (Figure 3).

CZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microso	oft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help	
🌀 Back 🔹 🕥 - 💽 🗟 🏠 🔎 s	search 📌 Favorites 🚱 🎯 😼 🗟 🔹 🤤 🎇 💈
Address Address Address Address Address Google -	😻 💏 megbízható 😻 Vir Térkép Elvira
OZEKING - SMS GATEWAY • File • Edit • Service providers • Users and ap Compose Reply Reply Image: Compose	Teddy (Standard) - Configuration Authentication Login information The standard user can login to send and receive SMS user interface. Standard users have admin privileges. Username:
	Password:

Figure 3 - User authentication

The name of the logged-in user can be read on the right of the title bar of the graphical user interface of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway. (See Figure 1 on <u>The Menu</u> page.)

To configure logging related to the user, click the **Logging** tab in the **Configuration** panel. The tab has a **Logging** and a **Log file settings** section. Here, you can choose whether to make the program write log entries about sent and received messages in human readable format and/or log HTTP communication.

You should check at least the **Log sent and received messages in human readable format** checkbox, as logfiles can be useful in debugging communication problems (Figure 4).

Ø OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🝷 🕗 - 💌 🗟 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🪱
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/userprops?user=admin&mode=configur
ozeki 🖉 Google 👻
Authentication Logging Logging A detailed communication log can be maintaned for this user. Please sp the logging options. Enabling logging helps in resolving problems. Use Log sent and received messages in human readable format Log HTTP Communication
Log file settings Log rotation saves disk space. Please specify the maximum size for the log files and the number of rotated files.

In the **Log file settings** section of the tab, you can make specifications for the size and the number of available logfiles.

Log rotation saves disk space, as it ensures that older (and probably no longer needed) logfiles will be automatically deleted from the log directory, which is specified in the **Log directory** text box. By default, the access path to the logfiles is: C:\Program Files\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\Logs

In the **Maximum log file size** text box in the **Logfile settings** section, you can specify the maximum size of a logfile. Once this size is reached, a new logfile will be created. Specify the number of kilobytes for the size of a logfile by entering a positive whole number. By default, the maximum logfile size is 2000 kB.

In the **Number of rotated files** text box, specify the maximum number of rotated logfiles that are saved. Specify this number by entering a positive whole number. By default, the number of logfiles that are saved is 4 (see Figure 4 above).

If you are content with the default specifications, leave the text boxes unchanged.

To modify the configuration or to view server events related to an installed user, open the panel of the user's account. To do this, click the name of the user in the **Users and Applications** panel of the **Management Console.** In the panel of the user's account, click the link of the task you wish to perform (Figure 5).



Figure 5 - Clicking a user-related task link

To configure or modify the configuration of a user, click **Configure**. To view the latest server events related to a user, click **Events**. To uninstall the user, click the **Uninstall** link.

Database User

This guide explains how you can setup Ozeki NG SMS Gateway to communicate with your database server. If the steps in this guide are followed, you will be able to send (or receive) SMS messages from a database application. All you have to do is insert data (or read data) from the appropriate database tables.

This guide gives you the simple steps for the configuration.

Introduction
Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway can be used to send and receive SMS messages using a database server with the help of SQL queries. This is possible because database servers allow the sharing of database tables between two applications.

To be able to send SMS messages from a database application you need to create a database table called <u>ozekimessageout</u>. You can put an outgoing message into this database table using an SQL INSERT command. Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway will periodical check (poll) the ozekimessagout table with an SQL SELECT command, and if it finds a new entry, it will send the SMS message.

You can receive SMS messages in a similar way. You need to setup a database table called <u>ozekimessagein</u>. If an SMS message is received from a mobile phone, it is inserted by Ozeki NG SMS gateway into the ozekimessagein database table (Figure 1). You can use an SQL SELECT to read this message.



Figure 1 - SMS messaging using a database server

In order to get this configuration working, you need to have a database server (such as *Oracle, Access, MySql, MS SQL, Postgres, Sybase,* etc.) installed, and you need to create two database tables: ozekimessageout and ozekimessagein. The ozekimessageout table is used for sending, while ozekimessagein is used for receiving SMS messages. To find out how to create the ozekimessagein and the ozekimessageout table for different database servers, read the respective pages related to the different database users. Check out the links at the end of this introduction.

Once you have created the database structure, you need to connect Ozeki NG SMS Gateway to your database. To establish a connection you can use an ODBC connection or an OLEDb connection. (To setup the connection you might have to install and configure an OleDB or an ODBC driver. For example MySQL requires the <u>MyODBC Database driver</u> to be installed. For Microsoft SQL Express, Microsoft SQL Server and Oracel, Microsoft Windows has a built in OleDb drier, so you do not have to install a driver separately).

The connection can be configured with a database connection string. This connection string includes the database driver name, the ip address, the username and the password and the name of the database. More information about the database connection string can be found in our "Database connection strings" manual.

If you have figured out the connection string for your database server, you need to install and configure a database user in Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway. This is a virtual user that will communicate with a specified database server and will provide you the SQL SMS Gateway functionality.

For more information about different databases, check out any of the following links:

Oracle User MSSQL User MySQL User Sybase SQLAnywhere User PostgreSQL User

How to install a database user

You can install and configure a database user with the graphical user interface of Ozeki NG -SMS Gateway. Follow the instructions below.

To start installing and configuring a database user, click the **Add** button in the top right-hand corner of the Users and Applications panel on the right of the Management Console. (To open the Management Console interface, click the Management Console tab. For more information, check out the User Interface page.) You can also add a user by clicking the Add user item in the Users and applications menu. (Figure 2).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microso	oft Intern	et Explo	orer				
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help	11515						
🌀 Back 🔹 🔘 🕤 📓 😭 🔎 S	Search 👷	Favorite	es 🚱	3- 🎍	. 1		1
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/							
ozeki 🖉 Google 💌 calgary	w 6	_			ir Térk	ép E	lvira
File - Edit - Service providers - Users and ap Service providers - Users and ap Add user admin (Stand Teddy (Stand Service providers	lard)	View	Help				
Idle, waiting for messages Idle, waiting for messages Idle, waiting for messages Idle, waiting for messages Idle, waiting for messages	Name inbound0 defaultin	Provider SMPPO ANY	Sender ANY ANY	Receiver +3630256987 ANY	Keyword bear ANY	User Teddy admin	Mod mov mov
Figure	2 - Addi	no a use	r				

Figure 2 - Adding a user

This will bring up an interface consisting of two panels.

The panel on the left contains a list of users that have been installed. In the bar at the bottom of the page you can read how many users have been installed.

The panel on the right contains a list of users that can be installed.

Each user in the left-hand panel is listed with a unique name (and the user type stated in brackets).

Each user in the right-hand panel is listed with the name of its type and a brief description of what it can be used for.

To add a database user, click the **Install** link in the respective entry in the list of installable users and applications (Figure 3).



This will open a panel asking you to give the database user a unique name (Figure 4).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 🐇 📓 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🧭
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/default?layout=MENUVIEW&MENU=USE
OZEKI 🖉 Google 🔽 🙀 🚱
SQL user installation
To install a SQL user, first you need to provide a unique username!
User name: sql2

Figure 4 - Naming the database user

Enter a unique name in the **User name** edit box, and click **OK**. Then the installation is finished, and the name of the database user will show up in the list of users on the left in the panel.

How to configure a database user

Once you have installed a database user, you can start to configure it. After you have provided a unique name for the database user and clicked **OK** (see Figure 4 above), the **Configuration** panel will open.

The first tab that will show up is the **Database connection** tab (Figure 5).

In the **Connection** section, select the connection string type in the **Connection string type** dropdown menu. Make sure that the connection you specify is accessible for the system user account.

For Open Database Connectivity, select Odbc.

For Object Linking and Embedding Database, select **OleDb**.

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 - 💽 🛃 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🤣
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/default
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌 🗰 🕼
sql2 (SQL) - Configuration
Database connection SQL for sending SQL for receiving Logging
Please specify the database connection string. You can use both OleDE connection strings s. Please make sure that the connection you specify i for the system user account. (This SMS software runs in the background, as a system service. Services by default log on as the system user.)
Connection string type: Odbc
Connection string:
Driver={MySQL 0DBC 3.51 Driver};Server=localhost;Database=ozekisms;User=root;Password=al

Figure 5 - The Database connection tab

In the **Connection string** template, modify any variables if necessary. For instance, as you have probably changed the username and password, you will need to modify them in the template. If Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway and the database reside on the same server, "localhost" can be used

to describe the database location. If they do not reside on the same server, you need to specify the database location by replacing "localhost" with the IP address.

Different database servers require different connection strings. By default, this template contains the connection string of the MySQL database server. For information about connection strings of other database servers, check out Appendix B - Connection Strings.

The connection string for the Oracle SQL server is: Provider=MSDAORA.1;Password=YourPassword;User ID=YourUserID;Persist Security Info=True

The connection string for the MS SQL server is:

Provider=SQLNCLI;Server=YourServer;Database=YourDatabase;UID=YourUsername; **PWD=YourPassword;**

The connection string for the Sybase / SQL Anywhere Server is: Provider=ASAProv.90;UID=MyUsername;PWD=MyPassword;DatabaseFile=DatabaseFile LocationOnYourComputer.db; EngineName=Yourdbenginename;Start=YourDatabaseBinaryLocation.exe -c 32M;AutoStop=Yes

The connection string for the Postgre SQL server is: DRIVER={PostgreSQL};SERVER=YourServerIP;port=5432;DATABASE= YourDatabaseName;UID=YourUsername;PWD=YourPassword;

Additional connection strings can be found in Appendix B - Connection Strings.

In the Date format section, specify - in the Date format string edit box - the date format string used to create the date value for the SQL statements.

The default date format string is yyyy-MM-dd HH:mm:ss.

In the date format string, **yyyy** stands for the year as a four-digit number. If the year has more than four digits, only the four low-order digits appear in the result. If the year has fewer than four digits, the number is padded with leading zeroes to achieve four digits. (Note that for the Thai Buddhist calendar, which can have five-digit years, this format specifier renders all five digits.) MM stands for the month as a number from 01 through 12. A single-digit month is formatted with a leading zero.

The **dd** string stands for the day of the month as a number from 01 through 31. A single-digit day is formatted with a leading zero.

HH stands for the hour as a number from 00 through 23, that is, the hour as represented by a zero-based 24-hour clock that counts the hours since midnight. A single-digit hour is formatted with a leading zero.

The mm string stands represents the minute as a number from 00 through 59. The minute represents whole minutes passed since the last hour. A single-digit minute is formatted with a leading zero.

The ss string stands for the seconds as a number from 00 through 59. The second represents whole seconds passed since the last minute. A single-digit second is formatted with a leading zero.

If you are content with this date format, leave the default date format string unchanged. If you wish to change it, rearrange the format specifiers. For example, you can put dd-MM-yyyy HH:mm:ss instead of the default arrangement. For information, about the different date format strings you can use, check out the Date Format Strings page.

When you have finished configuring the database connection, click **OK**.

To send SMS messages using this connection, you need to make settings in the SQL for sending tab.

Click the **SQL for sending** tab (Figure 6).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 🛛 📓 😭 🔎 Search 🥎 Favorites 🧭
Address 🙆 http://127.0.0.1:9501/userprops?user=sql2&mode=configure
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌 hama 🗤 🌾
sql2 (SQL) - Configuration Database connection SQL for sending SQL for receiving Logging Sending messages Sending messages Sending messages Sending messages Check ozekimessageout table every 2 seconds for outgoing messages Sending messages Sending messages Sending messages
SQL SELECT statement used for polling messages SELECT * FROM ozekimessageout WHERE status='send'
SQL UPDATE statement used when the polling was successful
UPDATE ozekimessageout SET status='sending' WHERE id='\$id' SQL UPDATE statement used when the message was accepted by the
Figure 6 - The SQL for sending tab

In the upper section of the panel you have opened, you can see a checkbox. By default, it is checked, and it should be checked if you use this database connection for sending outgoing messages. (To stop using this connection for sending outgoing messages, uncheck the checkbox.)

Below this checkbox you can specify how often Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway should check the ozekimessageout table for outgoing messages. Specify the frequency in seconds by entering a positive whole number in numerical form.

If you are content with the default value (2), leave this edit box unchanged (Figure 7).

	ZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File	e Edit View Favorites Tools Help
G	Back 🔹 🕥 🔄 📓 🏠 🔎 Search 📌 Favorites 🧭
Add	iress 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/userprops?user=sql2&mode=configure
OZE	Ki 🔮 Google 💌 hama 🛛 🙀 🦿
sql	2 (SQL) - Configuration
	Sending messages Use this database connection for sending outgoing messages Check ozekimessageout table every 2 seconds for outgoing m
	Sending messages
	SQL SELECT statement used for polling messages
	SELECT * FROM ozekimessageout WHERE status='send'
	SELECT * FROM ozekimessageout WHERE status='send' SQL UPDATE statement used when the polling was successful

Figure 7 - Specifying the frequency of queries and the SQL statements

In the lower section, you can specify SQL statements related to the polling and the status of outgoing messages.

Modify any variables in the templates, or if you are content with them, leave them unchanged.

The statement in the first template describes the way of selecting outgoing messages.

The statement in the second template is used if the polling has been successful.

The statement in the third template is used if the message has been accepted by the service provider.

The statement in the fourth template is used if the message has not been sent.

The statement in the fifth template is used if the message has been delivered to the recipient phone number.

To receive SMS messages using this connection, you need to make settings in the SQL for receiving tab.

Click the **SQL for receiving** tab (Figure 8).

B OZ File	ZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer Edit View Favorites Tools Help
G	Back 🔹 🕥 🐇 📓 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🧐
Addre OZEKI	ress 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/userprops?user=sql2&mode= <mark>Favorites</mark>
	(SQL) - Configuration Database connection SQL for sending SQL for receiving Logging Receiving messages Use this database connection for receiving incoming messages Receiving messages SQL INSERT statement used for inserting incoming messages into the
	SQLInsertReceivedString INSERT INTO ozekimessagein (status, ser receivedtime, msgtype, operator, callbackid) VALUES ('received','\$originator','\$recipient','\$messagedata','\$receivedtime','\$ ornames','\$callbackid')

Figure 8 - The SQL for receiving tab

In the upper section of the panel you have opened, you can see a checkbox. By default, it is checked, and it should be checked if you use this database connection for receiving incoming messages. (To stop using this connection for receiving incoming messages, uncheck the checkbox.)

In the lower section of the panel, you can see a template containing an SQL INSERT statement used for inserting incoming messages into the database. If necessary, modify any valuables in the statement. If not, leave it unchanged.

Below the template you can find three pairs of edit boxes that allow you to make the program prepare the message prior to insert. This may be useful to handle messages containing special characters.

Each pair consists of one edit box (on the left) for the character to be replaced, and one (on the right) for the characters that will replace the character on the left.

By default, the boxes contain the most problematic special characters to be replaced and those to be used instead. Modify these settings if you wish to specify different characters.

You can also configure the logging related to the database user.

Click the **Logging** tab to open the panel for logging settings.

In the **Logging** section of the panel, you can find three checkboxes. You can choose to check any or all (or none) of them. Your choice depends on whether you want the program to log sent and received messages in human readable format, to log SQL SELECT statements and/or to log SQL UPDATE statements (Figure 9).

a c	ZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File	e Edit View Favorites Tools Help
G	Back 🔹 🕥 🕤 📓 🐔 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🧐
Add	iress 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/userprops?user=sql2&mode=configure
OZE	KI 🖉 Google 💌 hama 👷 🚱
sql	2 (SQL) - Configuration
	A detailed communication log can be maintaned for this user. Please spectra the logging options. Enabling logging helps in resolving problems.
	✓ Log sent and received messages in human readable format
	Log SQL SELECT statements
	Log SQL UPDATE statments
	Log file settings
	Log rotation saves disk space. Please specify the maximum size for the log files and the number of rotated files.

Figure 9 - The Logging tab

In the **Log file settings** section of the tab, you can make specifications for the size and the number of available logfiles.

Log rotation saves disk space, as it ensures that older (and probably no longer needed) logfiles will be automatically deleted from the log directory, which is specified in the **Log directory** text box. By default, the access path to the logfiles is: C:\Program Files\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\Logs

In the **Maximum log file size** text box you can specify the maximum size of a logfile. Once this size is reached, a new logfile will be created. Specify the number of kilobytes for the size of a logfile by entering a positive whole number. By default, the maximum logfile size is 2000 kB.

In the **Number of rotated files** text box, specify the maximum number of rotated logfiles that are saved. Specify this number by entering a positive whole number. By default, the number of logfiles that are saved is 4.

If you are content with the default specifications, leave the text boxes unchanged (Figure 10).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 🐇 📓 🐔 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🧭
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/userprops?user=sql2&mode=configure
ozeki 🖉 Google 👻 hama 🙀 🐑
sql2 (SQL) - Configuration Database connection SQL for sending SQL for receiving Logging Logging A detailed communication log can be maintaned for this user. Please spithe logging options. Enabling logging helps in resolving problems. Log sent and received messages in human readable format Log SQL SELECT statements Log SQL UPDATE statements
Log file settings Log rotation saves disk space. Please specify the maximum size for the log files and the number of rotated files.

Figure 10 - Log file settings

To modify the configuration or to view server events related to a database user, open the panel of the user's account. To do this, click the name of the user in the **Users and Applications** panel of the **Management Console.** In the panel of the user's account, click the link of the task you wish to perform (Figure 11).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Micros	oft Internet Explorer	
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help		
🔇 Back 🔹 🔘 🐇 📓 🏠 🔎	Search 👷 Favorites 🕢 🔗 🖓 🐨 🕞	íd.
Address 🗃 http://127.0.0.1:9501/default?la	yout=MENUVIEW8MAIN=USERMAIN8MENU=USERMENU	18iuse
ozeki 🖉 Google 💌	😻 🕼	Elvir
OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY		
📑 💱 😒 🍰 🗙		
Compose Reply Forward Print Del		
Compose Reply Forward Print Del	sql1 (SQL) - Events 2/8/2007 7:45:52 AM - Service started.	
Compose Reply Forward Print Del sql1 (SQL) User sql1 This is a standard user, who can	2/8/2007 7:45:52 AM - Service started. 2/8/2007 7:45:53 AM - USER (SQL:sql1) Variables	
Compose Reply Forward Print Del sql1 (SQL) User sql1 This is a standard user, who can use the browser-based user interface for messaging.	2/8/2007 7:45:52 AM - Service started.	1 1
Compose Reply Forward Print Del sql1 (SQL) User sql1 This is a standard user, who can use the browser-based user	2/8/2007 7:45:52 AM - Service started. 2/8/2007 7:45:53 AM - USER (SQL:sql1) Variables 2/8/2007 7:45:53 AM - +	11
Compose Reply Forward Print Del sql1 (SQL) User sql1 This is a standard user, who can use the browser-based user interface for messaging.	2/8/2007 7:45:52 AM - Service started. 2/8/2007 7:45:53 AM - USER (SQL:sql1) Variables 2/8/2007 7:45:53 AM - +	
Compose Reply Forward Print Del sql1 (SQL) User sql1 This is a standard user, who can use the browser-based user interface for messaging. Configure Events Uninstall	2/8/2007 7:45:52 AM - Service started. 2/8/2007 7:45:53 AM - USER (SQL:sql1) Variables 2/8/2007 7:45:53 AM - +	V 0 0

Figure 11 - Clicking a user-related task link

To configure or modify the configuration of a user, click **Configure**. To view the latest server events related to a user, click **Events**. To uninstall the user, click the **Uninstall** link.

Microsoft SQL

In this chapter you can learn how to send and receive SMS messages using the Microsoft SQL database server. The solution uses the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software installed on your PC. The solution uses the following database connection string to connect to the database server:

Provider=SQLNCLI;Server=YourServer;Database=YourDatabase;UID=YourUsername;PWD=YourPassword;

Here is a quick overview of how this solution is going to work: First you create two database tables: **ozekimessageout** and **ozekimessagein** in MS SQL. Then you install and configure Ozeki NG SMS Gateway, to connect to MS SQL and to use these database tables for sending and receiving messages. Once you have the configuration completed, you can send an SMS message by creating a record in the ozekimessageout database table using an SQL INSERT. Ozeki NG will read this record using an SQL SELECT and will send your SMS message using a GSM modem attached to the PC or using an IP SMS connection.

Step 1 - Create your database tables in Microsoft SQL Server

MS SQL create table script:

```
CREATE TABLE
ozekimessagein (
id int IDENTITY (1,1),
sender varchar(30),
receiver varchar(30),
msg varchar(160),
senttime varchar(100),
received time varchar(100),
operator varchar(30),
msgtype varchar(30),
reference varchar(30),
);
CREATE TABLE
ozekimessageout (
id int IDENTITY (1,1),
sender varchar(30),
receiver varchar(30),
msg varchar(160),
senttime varchar(100),
received time varchar(100),
operator varchar(100),
msgtype varchar(30),
reference varchar(30),
status varchar(30),
errormsg varchar(250)
);
```

Figure 1 - SQL Create table script

You can optionally create an index in the database for the 'id' field of the outgoing SMS table to support SQL updates.

Step 2 - Create an SQL User in Ozeki NG

To do this you have to <u>Download and Install Ozeki NG SMS Gateway</u>. After installation you have to log into the SMS gateway using an Internet Explorer (or Firefox) Browser by typing http://127.0.0.1:9501/ and supplying **admin** as the login name and **abc123** as the password. (Hint: do not forget to change your password!). After login, go to the "Users and Applications/Add User" menu item and click on Install next to the database user (Figure 2).



Figure 2 - Install database user

The last step of the installation is to enter a name for this user. For example enter **sql1** (Figure 3). You can type any name here.

Inttp://127.0.0.1:9501/default	layout=MEN	UVIEW8/MENU	=USERS	SEMAIN:	=USEI ¥
coogle 👻	w 6🚍			VIR	Origo
🖌 🎲 Ø OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY					
OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY					
File Edit Service provider connections L	Isers and appl	ications • View	- Help		
Compose Raply Forward Print Del					
)				
osers and Applications up	SQL user	installation			
admin (Standard)	To install a S	QL user, first yo	u need to	provide	a unique
	User name:	sql1			0
		Alaman .			_

Step 3 - Configure the database connection for this SQL User in Ozeki NG

Ozeki NG uses an ADO/OleDB connection to access you SQL Database server. To setup this connection select **OleDb** as the connection type and enter the following connection string into the connection string textbox.

Connection string:

Provider=SQLNCLI;Server=YourServer;Database=YourDatabase;UID=YourUsername;PWD=YourPassword;

Please note, that you must modify the variables in the connection string according to your system.

Ø OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 🐇 📓 🏠 🔎 Search 🤺 Favorites 🤗 👔
Address 🙆 http://127.0.0.1:9501/userprops?user=sql2&mode=configure
OZEKI 🖉 Google 🔽
sql2 (SQL) - Configuration Database connection SQL for sending SQL for receiving Logging Connection Please specify the database connection string. You can use both OleDE connection strings s. Please make sure that the connection you specify i for the system user account. (This SMS software runs in the background, as a system service. Services by default log on as the system user.) Connection string type: OleDb Image: Connection string:
Provider=SQLNCLI;Server=YourServer;Database=YourDatabase;UID PWD=YourPassword;

Figure 4 - Specifying the connection string for the MS SQL database

After you have configured the SQL connection string, click OK. By clicking OK Ozeki NG SMS Gateway will try to connect to your database server. You can verify the connection results in the **events** form. The events form can be accessed by clicking on the appropriate link (Figure 5).

 ttp://127.0.0.1:9501/userpr 	ops						
Ki 👷 Google 💌	w	Cp			VIR	Origo	Elvira
🔗 ØZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY							
ZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY							
File • Edit • Service provider connections •	Users	and appli	cations • View	 Help 			
A G S A X							
Compose Reply Forward Print Del	J						
sql1 (SQL)	sql	1 (SQL)	- Configuratio	on			
User sql1							
- user set			and the second	1 manual		successful response	
This user allows using a			ase connection	SOL	for sen	ding S(2L for receivi
This user allows using a database server for SMS messaging. It connects to a		Cor	nection —			1222	
This user allows using a database server for SMS messaging. It connects to a database server and periodically checks a database table to the server and periodically checks a database table table to the server and periodically checks a database table		Cor Ple cor	ase specify the nection strings.	databa Make s	se con ure tha	nection st	ring. You can ection you sp
This user allows using a database server for SMS messaging. It connects to a database server and periodically		Ple cor for	ase specify the	databa Make s accour	se con ure tha it (This	nection st t the conn SMS soft	ring. You can ection you sp ware runs as
This user allows using a database server for SMS messaging. It connects to a database server and periodically checks a database table for outgoing messages. It server an outgoing messages are users incoming messages into a	-	Cor Ple coi for ba	nection ase specify the nection strings, the system user ckground. By de	databa Make s accour fault, se	se con ure tha it (This irvices	nection st t the conn SMS soft log on as	ring. You can ection you sp ware runs as system user:
This user allows using a database server for SMS messaging. It connects to a database server and periodically checks a database table fourgoing messages. It server an outgoing messages are userts	-	Cor Ple col for ba	nection ase specify the inection strings. the system user ckground. By de nnection string ty	databa Make s accour fault, se	se con ure tha it (This	nection st t the conn SMS soft log on as	ring. You can ection you sp ware runs as
This user allows using a database server for SMS messaging. It connects to a database server and periodically checks a database table for outgoing messages. It server and outgoing messages are users incoming messages are users incoming messages are users. Configure Events Uninstall	-	Cor Ple col for ba Co	inection ase specify the inection strings. the system user ckground. By de nnection string ty nnection string:	databa Make s accour fault, se pe:	se con ure tha it (This rvices OleDi	nection st the conn SMS soft log on as	ring. You can ection you sp ware runs as system user
This user allows using a database server for SMS messaging. It connects to a database server and periodically checks a database table to outgoing messages. It server and outgoing messages are userts incoming messages are userts incoming messages are userts. Configure Events Uninstall	-	Cor Ple col for ba Co	nection ase specify the inection strings. the system user ckground. By de nnection string ty	databa Make s accour fault, se pe:	se con ure tha it (This rvices OleDi	nection st the conn SMS soft log on as	ring. You car ection you sy ware runs as system user
This user allows using a database server for SMS messaging. It connects to a database server and periodically checks a database table for outgoing messages. It server and outgoing messages are users incoming messages are users incoming messages are users incoming messages are users	-	Cor Ple col for ba Co	inection ase specify the inection strings. the system user ckground. By de nnection string ty nnection string:	databa Make s accour fault, se pe:	se con ure tha it (This rvices OleDi	nection st the conn SMS soft log on as	ring. You car ection you sy ware runs as system user

Figure 5 - SQL Server events.

If the connection is successful, you can send an SMS message by placing a record into the ozekimessageout database table.

Step 4 - Enable detailed SQL loggin

At this point you are ready to send your first SMS, but before you do, you should enable SQL logging to see what the SMS Gateway is doing to get your message. You can enable SQL logging on the Logging tab of the SQL User configuration form (Figure 6).

Ø OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Windows In	ternet Explorer	
- http://127.0.0.1:9501/userprops	?user=sql1&mode=cor	nfgure
OZEKIQ Google 💌	0 C	W VIR Origo Elvira
🚖 🕸 🕫 🗇 Chapter 3: SQL Serv 🌾 S	MS Gateway - MSSQL	BOZEKI NG - SMS G X
OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY		
File • Edit • Service provider connections • Use	is and applications • vie	ew • Help
Compose Reply Forward Price Del		
	ql1 (SQL) - Configura	ation
User sql1 This user allows using a " database server for SMS		n SQL for sending SQL for receiv
messaging. It connects to a database server and periodically	Logging	
checks a database table for		inication log can be maintained for this s. Enabling logging helps in resolving
outgoing messages. It sends out outgoing messages and inserts	✓ Log sent and	I received messages in hyman readab
incoming messages into a database table created for them.	Log SQL SEL	LECT statements.
Configure Events Uninstall	Log SQL UP	DATE statements.
- inbox (0)	Log file settings -	
Cutbox (0)		
* Sent (1) * Not sent (0)		s disk space. Please specify the maxi umber of rotated files.
Tig Unprocessed (0)		
Deleted items (0)	Log directory:	C:\Program Files\Ozeki\Ozeki\OzekiNG · S

Figure 6 - Enable SQL Logging

Step 5 - Send your first SMS message

To send your first SMS message you should insert a record into the ozekimessagout database table using the following SQL command:

```
insert into ozekimessageout (receiver,msg,status) values
("+44111223465","Hello world","Send");
```

Step 6 - Check the logs in Ozeki NG

After you have inserted the record into the database, you should be able to verify that Ozeki NG has picked up the message for sending. You can do this by taking a look in the events form of the user (Figure 7).

Google 👻	w 🕼 VIR Origo E
🛠 🖾 • 🗇 Chapter 3: SQL S 🎉 SM	nS Gateway - M 🖉 OZEKI NG - SM ×
DZEKING - SMS GATEWAY File • Edit • Service provider connections • U	Jsers and applications • View • Help
Compose Reply Forward Print Dat	
sql1 (SQL) User sql1 This user allows using a database server for SMS messaging. It connects to a database server and periodically checks a database table for outgoing messages. It sends out outgoing messages and inserts incoming messages into a database table created for them. <u>Configure Events Uninstall</u>	sql1 (SQL) - Events 2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - LOGUPDATES 2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - PASSWORD 2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - PASSWORD 2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - POLLINTERVAL 2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - SQLDATETIMEFORMAT 2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - SQLDATETIMEFORMAT 2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - SQLUPDATEDELIVEREDSTRING 2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - SQLUPDATEDELIVEREDSTRING 2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - SQLUPDATEDELIVEREDSTRING 2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - SQLUPDATESENDINGSTRING 2007.08.09. 9:2
 Inbox (0) Outbox (0) 	2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - SQLVALUEREPLACEFROM1 2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - SQLVALUEREPLACEFROM2 2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - SQLVALUEREPLACEFO1
Sent (1) Not sent (0) Unprocessed (0)	2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - SQLVALUEREPLACETO2 2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - TYPE 2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - USERNAME

Figure 7 - User events after successful sending

If everything goes well you should see the following entries in the log:

2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - INFO 3500: Opening OleDb connection to database server using connection string ... 2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - INFO 3501: Successfully connected to database. 2007.08.09. 9:20:53 - User connected. 2007.08.09. 9:20:55 - SQL Command: 'SELECT id,sender,receiver,msg,msgtype,operator FROM ozekimessageout WHERE status='send'' returned 1 rows. 2007.08.09. 9:20:55 - SQL Command: 'UPDATE ozekimessageout SET status='sending' WHERE id='2'' affected 1 row. 2007.08.09. 9:20:55 - > Sending message (dataBase id:2): ';SMS:TEXT;VVMSUDVX;;+44111223465;Hello world;' 2007.08.09. 9:20:55 - INFO 3098: Message sql1;SMS:TEXT;VVMSUDVX;sql1;+44111223465;Hello world; ' 2007.08.09. 9:20:55 - INFO 3099: Message successfully sent. sql1;SMS:TEXT;VVMSUDVX;sql1;+44111223465;Hello world; 2007.08.09. 9:20:55 - SQL Command: 'UPDATE ozekimessageout SET status='sent', senttime='2007-08-09 09:20:56' WHERE id='2'' affected 1 row. 2007.08.09. 9:20:55 - Command: 'UPDATE ozekimessageout SET status='sent', senttime='2007-08-09 09:20:56' WHERE id='2'' affected 1 row. 2007.08.09. 9:20:55 - <</pre>

Microsoft SQL Express

On this page you can learn how to send and receive SMS messages using the Microsoft SQL Express database server. The solution uses the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software installed on your PC. The solution uses the following database connection string to connect to the database server:

Provider=SQLNCLI;Server=.\SQLEXPRESS;User ID=ozekiuser;password=ozekipass;Database=ozeki;Persist Security Info=True

Here is a quick overview of how this solution is going to work: First you create two database tables: **ozekimessageout** and **ozekimessagein** in SQL Express. Then you install and configure Ozeki NG SMS Gateway, to connect to SQL Express and to use these database tables for sending and receiving messages. Once you have the configuration completed, you can send an SMS message by using an SQL INSERT statement to create a record in the ozekimessageout database table. Ozeki NG will read this record using an SQL SELECT and will send your SMS message using a GSM modem attached to the PC or using an IP SMS connection.

Step 1 - Create your database tables in Microsoft SQL Express

You can create a database and the appropriate database tables by opening a windows command prompt (Start->Run->cmd.exe), and starting the SQL Command interpreter by typing:

C:\sqlcmd -S .\SQLExpress

Once the SQL command interpreter is running, you should enter the following commands

```
create database ozeki
GO
use database ozeki
GO
CREATE TABLE
ozekimessagein (
id int IDENTITY
(1,1),
sender varchar(30),
receiver varchar(30),
msg varchar(160),
senttime
varchar(100),
receivedtime
varchar(100),
operator varchar(30),
msgtype varchar(30),
reference
varchar(30),
);
CREATE TABLE
ozekimessageout (
 id int IDENTITY
(1,1),
 sender varchar(30),
 receiver varchar(30),
msg varchar(160),
 senttime
varchar(100),
receivedtime
varchar(100),
operator
varchar(100),
msgtype varchar(30),
```

```
reference
varchar(30),
status varchar(30),
errormsg varchar(250)
);
GO
sp_addLogin
'ozekiuser',
'ozekipass'
GO
sp_addsrvrolemember
'ozekiuser',
'sysadmin'
GO
```

Figure 1 - SQL Create table script

Step 2 - Make Microsoft SQL Express ready to accept your username and password

Unless you have mixed mode authentication configured in SQL express, you will not be able to connect to your database from Ozeki NG because Ozeki NG runs as a system service in the background. To enable mixed - mode authentication, you should open the registry editor (Start->run->regedit.exe) and in the Registry you should change the LoginMode value from 1 to "2", here:

```
HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINE\SOFTWARE\Microsoft\Microsoft
SQL Server\MSSQL.1\MSSQLServer
LoginMode =2
```

After this change you might have to restart the SQL Express to make sure the changes take effect.

Step 3 - Connect your SMS Gateway to use your SQL Express database

The steps for connecting Ozeki NG to MS SQL EXpress are similar to connecting it to MS SQL. Please take a look at this page: <u>Sending SMS Messages from MSSQL</u> for more information on how you can connect Ozeki NG to your database server.

The only difference is that you have to use the following connection string to connect to the database:

Provider=SQLNCLI;Server=.\SQLEXPRESS;User ID=ozekiuser;password=ozekipass;Database=ozeki;Persist Security Info=True

Step 4 - Send your first SMS message

To send your first SMS message you should insert a record into the ozekimessagout database table. You can use the following SQL command to achieve this:

insert into
ozekimessageout
(receiver,msg,status)
values
("+44111223465","Hello
world","Send");
GO

Hint: You can download SQLExpress free of charge from the following URL: https://www.microsoft.com/en-gb/download/details.aspx?id=101064

A FAQ question related to SQL Express - SMS gateway:

I cannot connect to the database server. I have received this errormessage, what should I do?

Connecting to database (Provider=SQLOLEDB.1;Persist Security Info=False;User ID=myuser;Initial Catalog=mydb;Data Source=mydsn) : 2007-07-25 11:38:25 356:Database plugin 1 : Connection error: Login failed for user 'myuser'. (Provider=SQLOLEDB.1;Persist Security Info=False;User ID=myuser;Initial Catalog=mydb;Data Source=mdsn) :

This means, that the software cannot connect to your database server. Based on the connection string I assume you use Microsoft SQL server. In this case, please use the following connection string:

Provider=SQLNCLI;Server=YourServer;Database=YourDatabase;UID=YourUsername;PWD=YourPassword;

There is a good chance, that the software will be able to connect to your database server as soon as you use this connection string. You might notice, that there is no DSN in this connection string. This is because, you need to connect with username/password authentication.

If the connection is not established after switching to this connection string, probably the username and password authentication is not enabled in your registry for MSSQL. To enable it, you should set the following setting in your registry:

HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINE\SOFTWARE\Microsoft\Microsoft SQL Server\MSSQL.1\MSSQLServer

LoginMode =2

To create a username and a password in Microsoft SQL Server, issue the following command:

sp_addLogin 'ozekiuser', 'ozekipass' GO

sp_addsrvrolemember 'ozekiuser', 'sysadmin' GO

This will solve the problem.

MySql

In this chapter you can learn how to send and receive SMS messages using a MySQL database with the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software. You will be provided with the connection string for the MySQL database, instructions on the ODBC driver installation, with a link to a MyODBC database driver download page, and the create table script.

Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway allows you to send and receive SMS messages using a database server with the help of SQL queries. The software supports, among others, the MySQL database.

For SMS messaging with a MySQL database you need to install and appropriately configure a database user in the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway program. Also, you need a MySQL database server, in which you have to create an **ozekimessageout** and an **ozekimessagein** table for outgoing and incoming messages.

You can install and configure a MySQL user on the graphical user interface of the software. The installation and configuration of a MySQL user is similar to that of any other database user.

To find out how to install and configure a database user, check out the Database User page.

As the MySQL database requires Open DataBase Connectivity (ODBC), select **Odbc** in the **Connection string type** dropdown menu.

The default database connection string in the **Connection string** template is the connection string for MySQL (Figure 1):

Driver={MySQL ODBC 3.51 Driver};Server=localhost;Database= ozekisms;User=root;Password=abc123;Option=4;

If you wish to use unicode (international) characters, you should use **MySQL ODBC Driver v5**! Version v3.51 does not support unicode characters for .NET

For MySQL ODBC Driver v5, the connection string is:

DRIVER={MySQL Connector/ODBC v5};Server=localhost;Database=ozeki;UID=root;PWD=abc123

Modify the variables in the connection string according to your needs.

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🛛 🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 - 💽 🛃 🏠 🔎 Search 📌 Favorites 🧭
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/userprops?user=sql1&mode=configure
OZEKI 🖉 Google 👻 🗰 🙀
Database connection SQL for sending SQL for receiving Logging Connection Please specify the database connection string. You can use both OleDI connection strings s. Please make sure that the connection you specify for the system user account. (This SMS software runs in the background as a system service. Services by default log on as the system user.) Connection string type: Odbc Connection string:
Driver={MySQL ODBC 3.51 Driver};Server=localhost;Database=ozekisms;User=root;Password=a

Figure 1 - Specifying the connection string for the MySQL database

ODBC Driver Installation and Configuration

As mentioned above, for using a MySQL database you need Open DataBase Connectivity between your database server and Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway.

For this connectivity, you need to set up an ODBC driver. The MySQL ODBC driver is called MyODBC.

MyODBC installation

Download the MyODBC v5 database driver from the Internet. You can use the following link: <u>https://dev.mysql.com/downloads/connector/odbc/5.0.html</u>

For the old MyODBC v3.51 you can use the following link: <u>https://dev.mysql.com/downloads/connector/odbc/3.51.html</u>

Install the downloaded MyODBC database driver by launching the downloaded exe file. The

installation is similar to that of any Windows application. To move from one dialog box to the next, just click the **Next** and the **OK** buttons during the setup.

To find out more about how to install and configure a MyODBC driver, check out the <u>MyODBC</u> <u>Driver Installation and Configuration</u> page.

You can create the ozeki message tables in MySQL using the following script.

MySQL create table script:

CREATE TABLE ozekimessagein (id int(11) NOT NULL auto increment, sender varchar(30) default NULL. receiver varchar(30) default NULL. msg varchar(160) default NULL, senttime varchar(100) default NULL, received time varchar(100) default NULL, operator varchar(100) default NULL, msgtype varchar(160) default NULL, reference varchar(100) default NULL, PRIMARY KEY (id)); ALTER TABLE ozekimessagein ADD INDEX (id); CREATE TABLE ozekimessageout (id int(11) NOT NULL auto increment, sender varchar(30) default NULL. receiver varchar(30) default NULL, msg varchar(160) default NULL, senttime varchar(100) default NULL, received time varchar(100) default NULL,

OZEKI INFORMATIKAI KFT

reference varchar(100) default

NULL, status varchar(20) default NULL, msgtype varchar(160) default NULL, operator varchar(100) default NULL, errormsg varchar(250) default NULL, PRIMARY KEY (id)); ALTER TABLE ozekimessageout ADD INDEX (id);

It is strongly recommended to maintain an index in the database for the 'id' field of the outgoing SMS table to support SQL updates.

Oracle

In this chapter you can learn how to send and receive SMS messages using an Oracle database with the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software. You will be provided with the connection string and the create table script.

Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway allows you to send and receive SMS messages using a database server with the help of SQL queries. The software supports, among others, the Oracle database.

For SMS messaging with an Oracle database you need to install and appropriately configure a database user in the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway program. Also, you need an Oracle database server, in which you have to create an **ozekimessageout** and an **ozekimessagein** table for outgoing and incoming messages.

You can install and configure an Oracle user with the help of the graphical user interface of the software. The installation and configuration of an Oracle user is similar to that of any other database user.

To find out how to install and configure a database user, check out the Database User page.

As the Oracle database does not require Open DataBase Connectivity (ODBC), select **OleDb** in the **Connection string type** dropdown menu.

Replace the default database connection string with the one for the Oracle database in the **Connection string** template (Figure 1):

Provider=MSDAORA.1;Password=YourPassword;User ID=YourUserID;Persist Security Info=True

Modify the variables in the connection string according to your needs.

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 🐇 📓 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🤣 👔
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/userprops?user=sql1&mode=configure
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌 🖉 👷 determine
sql1 (SQL) - Configuration Database connection SQL for sending SQL for receiving Logging Connection Please specify the database connection string. You can use both OleDE connection strings s. Please make sure that the connection you specify is for the system user account. (This SMS software runs in the background, as a system service. Services by default log on as the system user.) Connection string type: OleDb
Connection string:
Provider=MSDAORA.1;Password=YourPassword;User ID=YourUserIE Info=True

Figure 1 - Specifying the connection string for the Oracle database

You can create the ozekimessageout and ozekimessagein tables in Oracle using the following script.

Oracle create table script:

```
CREATE TABLE ozekimessagein (
id int,
sender varchar(30) default NULL,
receiver varchar(30) default NULL,
msg varchar(160) default NULL,
senttime varchar(100) default NULL,
receivedtime varchar(100) default NULL,
operator varchar(120) default NULL,
msgtype varchar(160) default NULL,
reference varchar(100) default NULL
);
```

```
CREATE index index id1 ON ozekimessagein(id);
CREATE SEQUENCE X;
CREATE TRIGGER ozekimessagein auto BEFORE INSERT
on ozekimessagein
for each row
when (new.id is null)
begin
 SELECT x.nextval INTO :new.id FROM DUAL;
end;
/
CREATE TABLE ozekimessageout (
 id int,
 sender varchar(30) default NULL,
 receiver varchar(30) default NULL,
 msg varchar(160) default NULL,
 senttime varchar(100) default NULL,
 received time varchar(100) default NULL,
 operator varchar(120) default NULL,
 msgtype varchar(160) default NULL,
 reference varchar(100) default NULL,
 status varchar(20) default NULL,
 errormsg varchar(250) default NULL
);
CREATE index index id2 ON ozekimessageout(id);
CREATE SEQUENCE Y;
CREATE TRIGGER ozekimessageout auto BEFORE INSERT
on ozekimessageout
for each row
when (new.id is null)
begin
 SELECT y.nextval INTO :new.id FROM DUAL;
end;
/
```

It is strongly recommended to maintain an index in the database for the 'id' field of the outgoing SMS table to support SQL updates.

Sybase / SQL Anywhere

In this chapter you can learn how to send and receive SMS messages using a Sybase SQL Anywhere database with the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software. You will be provided with the connection string and the create table script.

Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway allows you to send and receive SMS messages using a database server with the help of SQL queries. The software supports, among others, the Sybase SQL Anywhere database.

For SMS messaging with a Sybase SQL Anywhere database you need to install and appropriately configure a database user in the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway program. Also, you need a Sybase SQL Anywhere database server, in which you have to create an **ozekimessageout** and an **ozekimessagein** table for outgoing and incoming messages.

You can install and configure a Sybase SQL Anywhere user on the graphical user interface of the software. The installation and configuration of a Sybase SQL Anywhere user is similar to that of any other database user.

To find out how to install and configure a database user, check out the Database User section.

As the Sybase SQL Anywhere database does not require Open DataBase Connectivity (ODBC), select **OleDb** in the **Connection string type** dropdown menu.

Replace the default database connection string with the one for the Sybase SQL Anywhere database in the **Connection string** template (Figure 1):

Provider=ASAProv.90;UID=MyUsername;PWD=MyPassword;DatabaseFile= DatabaseFileLocationOnYourComputer.db;EngineName=Yourdbenginename;Start= YourDatabaseBinaryLocation.exe -c 32M;AutoStop=Yes

Modify the variables in the connection string according to your needs.

OZEKI N	G - SMS GATE	WAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit	View Favorites	is Tools Help
G Back	• 🕤 • 💌	🖹 🏠 🔎 Search 🤺 Favorites 🧭
🕴 Address 🙆	http://127.0.0.1	1:9501/userprops?user=sql1&mode=configure
озекі 🖉 🛛 🖓	ioogle 💌	w C_
Databas Conne Pleas conne for the as a Conn Conn Prov 90;U pute	ection se specify the dat ection strings s. P e system user acc system service. S ection string type ection string: vider=ASAProv. JID=MyUsername	SQL for sending SQL for receiving Logging tabase connection string. You can use both OleDi Please make sure that the connection you specify count. (This SMS software runs in the background Services by default log on as the system user.)

Figure 1 - Specifying the connection string for the Oracle database

You can create the ozekimessageout and ozekimessagein tables in Sybase SQL Anywhere using the following script.

Sybase SQL Anywhere create table script:

```
CREATE TABLE "ozekimessagein"
(
"id"
       integer NOT NULL DEFAULT
autoincrement,
"sender"
             varchar(160) NULL,
"receiver"
             varchar(160) NULL,
"msg"
         varchar(160) NULL,
              varchar(100) NULL,
"senttime"
"receivedtime"
               varchar(100) NULL,
"operator"
              varchar(100) NULL,
```

```
"msgtype"
              varchar(160) NULL,
"reference"
              varchar(100) NULL,
PRIMARY KEY ("id"),
)
go
commit work
go
CREATE TABLE "ozekimessageout"
(
"id"
       integer NOT NULL DEFAULT
autoincrement,
"sender"
             varchar(160) NULL,
"receiver"
             varchar(160) NULL,
"msg"
        varchar(160) NULL,
             varchar(100) NULL,
"senttime"
"received time" varchar(100) NULL,
"operator"
             varchar(100) NULL,
"status" varchar(20) NULL,
"msgtype"
            varchar(160) NULL,
"reference"
              varchar(100) NULL,
"errormsg"
             varchar(250) NULL,
PRIMARY KEY ("id"),
)
go
commit work
go
CREATE INDEX "ozekimessageinindex" ON
"ozekimessagein"
(
"id" ASC
)
go
commit work
go
CREATE INDEX "ozekimessageoutindex" ON
"ozekimessageout"
(
"id" ASC
)
go
commit work
go
```

It is strongly recommended to maintain an index in the database for the 'id' field of the outgoing SMS table to support SQL updates.

PostgreSQL

In this chapter you can learn how to send and receive messages using a PostgreSQL database with the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software. You will be provided with the connection string for the PostgreSQL database, instructions on the ODBC driver installation, with a link to a PostgreSQL database driver download page, and the create table script.

Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway allows you to send and receive SMS messages using a database server with the help of SQL queries. The software supports, among others, the PostgreSQL database.

For SMS messaging with a PostgreSQL database you need to install and appropriately configure a database user in the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway program. Also, you need a PostgreSQL database server, in which you have to create an **ozekimessageout** and an **ozekimessagein** table for outgoing and incoming messages.

You can install and configure a PostgreSQL user on the graphical user interface of the software. The installation and configuration of a PostgreSQL user is similar to that of any other database user.

To find out how to install and configure a database user, check out the Database User page.

As the PostgreSQL database requires Open DataBase Connectivity (ODBC), select **Odbc** in the **Connection string type** dropdown menu (Figure 1).

Replace the default database connection string with the one for the PostgreSQL database in the **Connection string** template (Figure 1):

DRIVER={PostgreSQL};SERVER=YourServerIP;port=5432;DATABASE= YourDatabaseName;UID=YourUsername;PWD=YourPassword

Modify the variables in the connection string according to your needs.

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 - 📓 🗟 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🤣
Address 🗃 http://127.0.0.1:9501/userprops?user=sql1&mode=configure
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌 🗰 🕵
sql1 (SQL) - Configuration
Database connection SQL for sending SQL for receiving Logging
Connection —
Please specify the database connection string. You can use both OleDE connection strings s. Please make sure that the connection you specify i
for the system user account. (This SMS software runs in the background, as a system service. Services by default log on as the system user.)
Connection string type: Odbc
Connection string:
{PostgreSQL};SERVER=YourServerIP;port=5432;DATABASE=YourD urUsername;PWD=YourPassword

Figure 1 - Specifying the connection string for the MySQL database

ODBC Driver Installation

As mentioned above, for using a PostgreSQL database you need Open DataBase Connectivity between your database server and Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway.

For this connectivity, you need to set up an ODBC driver. The PostgreSQL driver is called psqlODBC.

Installation of the psqlODBC driver

Download the psqlODBC database driver from the Internet. You can use the following link:

https://pgfoundry.org/projects/psqlodbc/

Install the downloaded psqlODBC database driver by launching the downloaded exe file. The installation is similar to that of any Windows application. To move from one dialog box to the next, just click the **Next** and the **OK** button during the setup.

You can create the ozeki message tables in Postgre SQL using the following script.

Postgre SQL create table script:

CREATE TABLE ozekimessagein id serial. sender varchar(30), receiver varchar(30), msg varchar(160), senttime varchar(100), receivedtime varchar(100), operator varchar(100), msgtype varchar(160), reference varchar(100)); CREATE TABLE ozekimessageout (id serial, sender varchar(30), receiver varchar(30), msg varchar(160), senttime varchar(100), receivedtime varchar(100), reference varchar(100), status varchar(20), operator varchar(100), errormsg varchar(250), msgtype varchar(160));

It is strongly recommended to maintain an index in the database for the 'id' field of the outgoing SMS table to support SQL updates. Postgre SQL creates index fields by default.

Date Format Strings to be used in SQL SMS configurations

This page provides you with date format strings you can use if you want to change the default date format string in the configuration of the Database user of the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software.

When configuring the Database user of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway, you can specify the date format string used to create the date value for the SQL statements. (See Figure 5 and the instructions below it on the <u>Database User</u> page.)

If you would like to change the default date format string (dd/mm/yyyy hh:mm:ss) in the **Database connection** tab of the Database user, you can use any of the date format strings below.

You can use a hyphen (-), a period (.), a slash (/) or a space () character to separate format specifiers.

The following	g formatting characters can be used for date and time formatting:
d	Represents the day of the month as a number from 1 through 31. A single-digit day is formatted without a leading zero.
dd	Represents the day of the month as a number from 01 through 31. A single-digit day is formatted with a leading zero.
ddd	Represents the abbreviated name of the day of the week: "Sun", "Mon", "Tue", "Wed", "Thu", "Fri", and "Sat".
dddd (plus any number of additional "d" specifiers)	Represents the full name of the day of the week: "Sunday", "Monday", "Tuesday", "Wednesday", "Thursday", "Friday", and "Saturday".
f	Represents the most significant digit of the seconds fraction.
ff	Represents the two most significant digits of the seconds fraction.
fff	Represents the three most significant digits of the seconds fraction.
ffff	Represents the four most significant digits of the seconds fraction.
fffff	Represents the five most significant digits of the seconds fraction.
ffffff	Represents the six most significant digits of the seconds fraction.
fffffff	Represents the seven most significant digits of the seconds fraction.
F	Represents the most significant digit of the seconds fraction. Nothing is displayed if the digit is zero.
FF	Represents the two most significant digits of the seconds fraction. However, trailing zeros, or two zero digits, are not displayed.
FFF	Represents the three most significant digits of the seconds fraction. However, trailing zeros, or three zero digits, are not displayed.
FFFF	Represents the four most significant digits of the seconds fraction. However, trailing zeros, or four zero digits, are not displayed.
FFFFF	Represents the five most significant digits of the seconds fraction. However, trailing zeros, or five zero digits, are not displayed.
FFFFFF	Represents the six most significant digits of the seconds fraction. However, trailing zeros, or six zero digits, are not displayed.
FFFFFF	Represents the seven most significant digits of the seconds fraction. However, trailing zeros, or seven zero digits, are not displayed.
g or gg (plus	Represents the period or era (A.D. for example). This specifier is ignored if the date to

be formatted does not have an associated period or era string.
Represents the hour as a number from 1 through 12, that is, the hour as represented by a 12-hour clock that counts the whole hours since midnight or noon. Consequently, a particular hour after midnight is indistinguishable from the same hour after noon. The hour is not rounded, and a single-digit hour is formatted without a leading zero. For example, given a time of 5:43, this format specifier displays "5".
Represents the hour as a number from 01 through 12, that is, the hour as represented by a 12-hour clock that counts the whole hours since midnight or noon. Consequently, a particular hour after midnight is indistinguishable from the same hour after noon. The hour is not rounded, and a single-digit hour is formatted with a leading zero. For example, given a time of 5:43, this format specifier displays "05".
Represents the hour as a number from 0 through 23, that is, the hour as represented by a zero-based 24-hour clock that counts the hours since midnight. A single-digit hour is formatted without a leading zero.
Represents the hour as a number from 00 through 23, that is, the hour as represented by a zero-based 24-hour clock that counts the hours since midnight. A single-digit hour is formatted with a leading zero.
Represents the minute as a number from 0 through 59. The minute represents whole minutes passed since the last hour. A single-digit minute is formatted without a leading zero.
Represents the minute as a number from 00 through 59. The minute represents whole minutes passed since the last hour. A single-digit minute is formatted with a leading zero.
Represents the month as a number from 1 through 12. A single-digit month is formatted without a leading zero.
Represents the month as a number from 01 through 12. A single-digit month is formatted with a leading zero.
Represents the abbreviated name of the month: "Jan", "Feb", "Mar", "Apr", "May", "Jun", "Jul", "Aug", "Sep", "Oct", "Nov" and "Dec".
Represents the full name of the month: "January", "February", "March", "April", "May", "June", "July", "August", "September", "October", "November" and "December".
Represents the seconds as a number from 0 through 59. The second represents whole seconds passed since the last minute. A single-digit second is formatted without a leading zero.
Represents the seconds as a number from 00 through 59. The second represents whole seconds passed since the last minute. A single-digit second is formatted with a leading zero.
Represents the first character of the A.M./P.M. designator. The A.M. designator is used

	used.
tt, tt (plus any number of additional "t" specifiers)	Represents the A.M./P.M. designator. The A.M. designator is used if the hour in the time being formatted is less than 12; otherwise, the P.M. designator is used.
У	Represents the year as at most a two-digit number. If the year has more than two digits, only the two low-order digits appear in the result. If the year has fewer than two digits, the number is formatted without a leading zero.
уу	Represents the year as a two-digit number. If the year has more than two digits, only the two low-order digits appear in the result. If the year has fewer than two digits, the number is padded with leading zeroes to achieve two digits.
ууу	Represents the year as a three-digit number. If the year has more than three digits, only the three low-order digits appear in the result. If the year has fewer than three digits, the number is padded with leading zeroes to achieve three digits.
	Note that for the Thai Buddhist calendar, which can have five-digit years, this format specifier displays all five digits.
уууу	Represents the year as a four-digit number. If the year has more than four digits, only the four low-order digits appear in the result. If the year has fewer than four digits, the number is padded with leading zeroes to achieve four digits.
	Note that for the Thai Buddhist calendar, which can have five-digit years, this format specifier renders all five digits.
yyyyy (plus any number of additional "y"	Represents the year as a five-digit number. If the year has more than five digits, only the five low-order digits appear in the result. If the year has fewer than five digits, the number is padded with leading zeroes to achieve five digits.
y specifiers)	If there are additional "y" specifiers, the number is padded with as many leading zeroes as necessary to achieve the number of "y" specifiers.
Z	Represents the signed time zone offset of your system from Greenwich Mean Time (GMT) measured in hours. For example, the offset for a computer in the Pacific Standard Time zone is "-8".
	The offset is always displayed with a leading sign. A plus sign (+) indicates hours ahead of GMT and a minus sign (-) indicates hours behind GMT. The offset ranges from -12 through +13. A single-digit offset is formatted without a leading zero. The offset is affected by daylight savings time.
ZZ	Represents the signed time zone offset of your system from Greenwich Mean Time (GMT) measured in hours. For example, the offset for a computer in the Pacific Standard Time zone is "-08".
	The offset is always displayed with a leading sign. A plus sign $(+)$ indicates hours ahead of GMT and a minus sign $(-)$ indicates hours behind GMT. The offset ranges from -12 through $+13$. A single-digit offset is formatted with a leading zero. The offset is affected by daylight savings time.
zzz, zzz (plus any number of additional	Represents the signed time zone offset of your system from Greenwich Mean Time (GMT) measured in hours and minutes. For example, the offset for a computer in the Pacific Standard Time zone is "-08:00".
"z" specifiers)	The offset is always displayed with a leading sign. A plus sign (+) indicates hours ahead of GMT and a minus sign (-) indicates hours behind GMT. The offset ranges from -12 through +13. A single-digit offset is formatted with a leading zero. The offset is affected by daylight savings time.

:	The time separator.
/	The date separator.
"	Quoted string (quotation mark). Displays the literal value of any string between two quotation marks (").
,	Quoted string (apostrophe). Displays the literal value of any string between two apostrophe (') characters.
\c	The escape character. Displays the character "c" as a literal when that character is preceded by the escape character (\).
Any other character	Any other character is copied to the result string, and does not affect formatting.

Related page:

Database User

How to schedule SMS messages for sending

If you use the SQL-SMS gateway configuration of Ozeki NG SMS Gateway, you can schedule your SMS message sendings in a very simple way. Scheduling means that you set a specific date and time for a message to determine when should it be sent.

Setup scheduled SMS sending (table layout)

To configure this option, first you need to modify your ozekimessageout table definition to include an extra column for the scheduled delivery time. You can call this column "scheduledtime". To modify the table definition issue the following SQL command in an SQL console:

alter table ozekimessageout add column scheduledtime

Setup scheduled SMS sending (configure Ozeki NG)

After the table layout has been modified, you need to open the database user configuration of Ozeki NG. The configuration modification is simple: you need to modify the SQL query used for selecting messages to be sent (Figure 1). This can be done by clicking on the "SQL for Sending" tab of the SQL user configuration form and changing the "Polling" query to this:



Notice the added where condition that will only select messages that can be sent from the database.
	-	nessages is detebes	se connection for s	ondina outr	noina maa	
			se connection for si sageout table ever		sec. for c	- S
	QL temp	lates		. 1		
	1.	0.01	An and a link of the second	arminata m	ith the data	In second second
a te	ction nee mplate	eds to be ta are replaca	templates to comr aken, the appropria ed with the corresp can be modified if	ate SQL ter onding ele	nplate is si ments in th	elected e mess
a te	ction nee mplate he SQL	eds to be t are replace templates	aken, the appropria ed with the corresp	ate SQL ter onding ele the structur	nplate is s ments in th e of the tab	elected e mess Iles is d

Figure 1 - How to configure scheduled SMS sending

After this is configured, to send a scheduled SMS message all you have to do is specify the datetime value in the ozekimessagout table.

SMPP User

This page explains how to install and configure an SMPP user for SMS messaging using the graphical user interface of the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software.

Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway allows, among others (see the <u>Users and Applications</u> page), the installation and configuration of an SMPP user.

The software enables all users to connect to the gateway through the Listener port and to exercise their user functions. The creation of an SMPP user account means enabling connection to the Gateway using the SMPP protocol. Anyone who knows the username and the password of a given SMPP user account can connect to the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway if their IP address is authorized for connection. Once the Gateway has authenticated the user, they are enabled to send and receive messages. Consequently, the creation of an SMPP user allows the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway to be fully authorized to act as an SMS Center.

You can use the <u>graphical user interface</u> of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway to install and configure any user or application.

To start installing and configuring an SMPP user, click the **Add** button in the top right-hand corner of the **Users and Applications** panel on the right of the **Management Console**. You can also add a user by clicking the **Add user** item in the **Users and applications** menu. (Figure 1).

CZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microso							
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help							
🚱 Back 🔹 🌍 🔹 🛋 💋 🔎 S	Search	👷 Favorite	es 🚱	8-3			11
Address 🗃 http://127.0.0.1:9501/					6	Edit	
ozeki 🖉 Google 💌	w	Ces lehet	löség		Vir Téi	rkép	Elvin
OZEKING - SMS GATEWAY							
- File - Edit - Service providers - Users and ap	plications	- View - I	Help				
)						
Compose Reply Forward Print Del)						
Compose Reply Forward Print Del	Inbou	and routing	1 1 1 1	s 52			
Compose Reply Forward Print Del Service providers	-	ind routing	-		Variant	Ibere	•
Compose Reply Forward Print Del Service providers	Inbou Name defaultio	Provider	Sender ANY	Receiver	Keyword	User admin	Moc
Compose Reply Forward Print Del Service providers	Name	Provider	Sender	Receiver		-	Mc
Compose Reply Forward Print Del Service providers 🙀 🕀Add 🗒 🖉 🗛 SMPPO (SMPPO) 🛇 🕼	Name	Provider	Sender	Receiver		-	Mc
Compose Reply Forward Print Del Service providers 🙀 🕀Add 🗒 🖉 🗛 SMPPO (SMPPO) 🛇 🕼	Name	Provider	Sender	Receiver		-	Mc
Compose Reply Forward Print Del Service providers	Name	Provider	Sender	Receiver		-	Mo
Compose Reply Forward Print Del Service providers	Name	Provider	Sender	Receiver		-	Mo

Figure 1 - Adding a user

This will bring up an interface consisting of two panels.

The panel on the left contains a list of users that have been installed. In the bar at the bottom of the page you can read how many users have been installed.

The panel on the right contains a list of users that can be installed.

Each user in the left-hand panel is listed with a unique name (and the user type stated in brackets).

Each user in the right-hand panel is listed with the name of its type and a brief description of what it can be used for.

An SMPP user allows you to connect SMPP clients to Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway to send and receive SMS messages. Clients can use the SMPP protocol. For connection the clients should use the following settings:

Host:	The ip address of the computer where Ozeki NG is installed.
Port:	9500
Username:	specified when you create an SMPP user
Password:	specified when you create an SMPP user
System type:	Ozeki
Bind mode:	Transceiver
Protocol version:	v3.4

To add an SMPP user, click the Install link in the respective entry in the list (Figure 2).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 • 💽 🗟 🏠 🔎 Search 🤺 Favorites 🧭
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/default?layout=MENUVIEW&MENU=USE
OZEKI 🖉 Google 🖵 🛛 🙀 🐑
Add user or application
Standard user install This plugin generates random outgoing SMS messages. Good for de
Autoreply user install The autoreply user makes it possible to reply to incoming messages to various phone numbers based on the sender address and the mes
AutoReplyEasy user install The AutoReplyEasy user makes it easy to reply to incoming message
Colour SMS user install The colour SMS protocol was introduced by the Hungarian GSM service incoming SMS messages to 3rd party content providers in HTTP requires the content providers return a response SMS message in each HTTP this functionality.
Database user install With the help of this option you can use a database server to send and user connects to a database server and checks a database table period an incoming message arrives it inserts it into another table. Figure 2 - Installing an SMPP user

When installing a user (type), you need to give it a unique username. Clicking the **Install** link will bring up the **SMPP user installation** panel. Here, you need to enter a unique username in the **Username** field.

This will take you to the Authentication tab of the Configuration panel.

The **Username** field contains the unique username you have provided in the previous panel. The **Password** field contains a password offered by the program. You can and should change it. Your password should be a combination of letters and digits (at least one or two of the latter). From now on, the username and password you have provided can be used to log in to the program (Figure 3).

8	OZEK	I NG - SM	S GATEW	VAY - Micros	oft Int	ernet Explo	огег
F	ile Ec	dit View	Favorites	Tools Help			
(🕃 Bad	ck • 🕥	- 💌	2 🟠 🔎	Search	📌 Favorite	es 🥝
Ac	Idress	🕘 http://1	127.0.0.1:	9501/default			
oz	ЕКІ	Google	•		QQ	ĉ,	
Pe	er (SN	MPP) - Cor	nfiguratio	'n			
			ation	l ngin to send and nd ∨3.4 can be u Username:			-
				Password:		METRE	

Figure 3 - User authentication

To configure logging related to the SMPP user, click the **Logging** tab in the **Configuration** panel.

The tab has a **Logging** and a **Log file settings** section. Here, you can choose whether to make the program write log entries about sent and received messages in human readable format and/or log low level communication (SMPP Protocol).

You should check at least the **Log sent and received messages in human readable format** checkbox, as logfiles can be useful in debugging communication problems (Figure 4).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🝷 🕥 🐇 📓 🏠 🔎 Search 🤺 Favorites 🧐
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/default
ozeki 🖉 Google 👻 🖉 🙀
Peer (SMPP) - Configuration
Authentication Logging Logging A detailed communication log can be maintaned for this user. Please s options. Enabling logging helps in resolving problems.
Log low level communication (SMPP Protocol)
Log file settings Log rotation saves disk space. Please specify the maximum size for th number of rotated files.
Log directory C\Program Files\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki\G - SMS Gatewa\Al Figure 4 - Logging options

In the **Log file settings** section of the tab, you can make specifications for the size and the number of available logfiles.

Log rotation saves disk space, as it ensures that older (and probably no longer needed) logfiles will be automatically deleted from the log directory, which is specified in the **Log directory** text box. By default, the access path to the logfiles is: C:\Program Files\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\Logs

In the **Maximum log file size** text box in the **Logfile settings** section, you can specify the maximum size of a logfile. Once this size is reached, a new logfile will be created. Specify the number of kilobytes for the size of a logfile by entering a positive whole number. By default, the maximum logfile size is 2000 kB.

In the **Number of rotated files** text box, specify the maximum number of rotated logfiles that are saved. Specify this number by entering a positive whole number. By default, the number of logfiles that are saved is 4 (see Figure 4 above).

If you are content with the default specifications, leave the text boxes unchanged.

To modify the configuration or to view server events related to an SMPP user, open the panel of the user's account. To do this, click the name of the user in the **Users and Applications** panel of the **Management Console.** In the panel of the user's account, click the link of the task you wish to perform (Figure 4).



Figure 5 - Clicking a user-related task link

To configure or modify the configuration of the user, click **Configure**. To view the latest server events related to the user, click **Events**. To uninstall the user, click the **Uninstall** link.

How to provide SMS Service for SMPP Client Applications

If you have Ozeki NG SMS Gateway installed on your server, you can provide SMS service for your applications (or your customers). Your applications can connect to Ozeki NG SMS Gateway over the SMPP protocol. This is possible because Ozeki NG SMS Gateway has a built in SMPP SMSC. In this guide you can read about how you can configure your Ozeki NG SMS Gateway to provide SMPP Service.

1. Introduction

In this example, we configure Ozeki NG SMS gateway to provide SMS service over the SMPP protocol for two SMS Client Applications (User John and User Paul). These applications will connect to the built in SMSC of Ozeki NG SMS Gateway (Figure 1). I assume the Ozeki NG SMS Gateway software was installed on a server that has an IP address of: 192.168.1.1.



Figure 1 - SMPP Clients connect to the build int SMSC of Ozeki NG SMS Gateway

After installation Ozeki NG SMS Gateway will automatically start the build in SMSC on port 9500. This means that the SMPP Client Applications (User John and User Paul) will connect to **192.168.1.1** on port **9500**. The SMPP Protocol they will use is **SMPP v3.4** and the connection type will be **Transceiver**.

2. How to setup an SMPP user account for SMPP Client Application (User John)

To make it possible for User John to connect to the built in SMSC of the Ozeki NG SMS Gateway, you have to create an SMPP User account. To do this you should click on Add user in the Management console (Figure 2).

 Image: Market Market (Market 19501) 	
🔗 🖉 OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY 2.5	5.3 - 127.0
ZEKING - SMS GATEWAY	
File - Edit - Service provider connections	Users and applications View Help
1 9 9 9 AX	
Compose Reply Forward Print De	e
Service providers	🕬 Inbound routing 📆 👄 🍇 🛛 🕫
SMPPO (SMPPO) O O	Name Provider Sender Receiver Keyword User Mode
	Name Provider Sender Receiver Keyword User Mode defaultin ANY ANY ANY ANY ANY admin move
But Data SMPP0 (SMPP0) 🔕 🕲 Waiting for connection	defaultin ANY ANY ANY ANY admin move
	defaultin ANY ANY ANY ANY any admin move

Figure 2 - Click on Add user.

OZEKI INFORMATIKAI KFT

The next step is to select the SMPP User type and click on install (Figure 3).



Figure 3 - Select user type SMPP User.

Then you have to provide the username and password. The username should be: **john** (Figure 4). The password can be **wpsd123** (Figure 5).



Figure 4 - SMPP Client username: john



Figure 5 - SMPP Client password: wpsd123

After clicking OK on the SMPP user configuration form, your SMPP user account is successfully created. Following this your SMPP client application can connect to the build in SMSC of your Ozeki NG SMS Gateway using the following connection information. This connection information should be configured in the SMPP Client Application of User John:

SMPP Connection Information for User John:

SMPP Host:	192.168.1.1
Port:	9500
Username:	john
Password:	wpsd123
SMPP version:	3.4
SMPP bind:	transceiver
SMPP system type:	SMPP

More detailed information on how to create accounts for SMPP client connections, can be found in the <u>How to add an SMPP user guide</u>. If you repeat the same steps for the client application user Paul, he will also be able to connect to the built in SMSC over SMPP. For example if you specify the password **wp44sd55** for user Paul, he can connect to your Ozeki NG SMS Gateway using the following parameters:

SMPP Host:	192.168.1.1
Port:	9500
Username:	paul

Password:	wp44sd55
SMPP version:	3.4
SMPP bind:	transceiver
SMPP system type:	SMPP

3. Configuring an SMPP Service Provider connection

Setting up client connections of course, is not enough to get the SMS messages to the wireless network. To make it possible to deliver SMS messages to mobile users, you have to configure an SMS Service Provider connection. You can use IP SMS connections such as <u>SMPP</u>, <u>UCP</u>, <u>CIMD2</u> to connect to your SMS service provider over the Internet or you can simply <u>attach a</u> <u>GSM modem</u> to your computer with a phone-to-pc data cable to send and receive the SMS messages. In our example (presented on Figure 1.), we attach to the SMS service provider using the SMPP IP SMS protocol. We configure our Ozeki NG SMS Gateway to connect using SMPP to host 223.122.122.45, port 3456.

To configure this connection, please add an SMPP service provider connection by clicking on "Add" in the management console (Figure 6).



Figure 7 - Click add to start the service provider connection installtion procedure

From the list, you have to select the **SMPP Connection**, then you have to click on install. This will install an SMPP service provider connection (Figure 7).



Figure 7 - Install an SMPP service provider connection

After you have clicked install, you will be presented with the configuration form of the SMPP service provider configuration. On this form you have to configure the connection details of the SMS Service provider connection. The connection details are provided by the SMS Service provider. For example if the GSM network operator Vodafone provides you the SMS Service, they will give you a data sheet with the following information:

Connection details provided by your SMS Service provider (e.g.: Vodafone):

SMPP Host:	223.122.122.45
Port:	3456
Username:	accnt
Password:	ER32wp

You reacieve the information presented in above table when you sign up for their service. This information can be entered on the SMPP Service provider configuration form (Figure 8).



Figure 8 - Configure the SMPP connection details.

After the configuration details are entered you can click connect to start the service. That's all you have to do.

4. More information

With Ozeki NG SMS Gateway you can add more then one service provider connection. If more then one connection is available you can use <u>inbound SMS routing</u> and <u>outbound SMS routing</u> to adjust the system according to your needs. You may also want to keep track of all the SMS Messages sent or received for accounting puproses. If this is a requirement, you can configure <u>SQL logging</u> to save a record of all outgoing and incoming messages into a database.

Autoreply User

This page explains how to install and configure an autoreply user for SMS messaging using the graphical user interface of the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software. You will be provided with step-by-step installation and configuration instructions, including explanations of configuration examples.

Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway supports the installation and configuration of an autoreply user (among several other users and applications, see the <u>Users and Applications</u> page).

The autoreply user allows you to automatically reply to and forward incoming messages to various phone numbers, based on the sender address and the message content.

You can use the <u>graphical user interface</u> of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway to install and configure an autoreply user.

Installation

To start installing and configuring an autoreply user, click the Add button in the top right-hand corner of the Users and Applications panel on the right of the Management Console. You can also add a user by clicking the Add user item in the Users and applications menu (Figure 1).

🗿 OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microso	oft Inte	ernet	Explor	er				
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help								
🚱 Back 🔹 🌍 🔹 🛋 🛃 💋 S	Search	The Fa	avorites	ø	₿•	a	8 - 💭	12
Address 🗃 http://127.0.0.1:9501/							Edit	
ozeki 👷 Google 💌	w	Ĉ	lehetö	ség	w	Vir	Térkép	Elvira
OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY								
Compose Service providers	Inbo	und ro	outing	<u>6"1</u> -	⊳ &			•
SMPPO (SMPPO) O	Name		ovider	Sender ANY	Receive	r Keyw	ord User	Mode
Idle, waiting for messages	Geraun	an An		AAT	641	Ant	aomin	move

Figure 1 - Adding a user

This will bring up an interface consisting of two panels.

The panel on the left contains a list of users that have been installed. In the bar at the bottom of the panel you can read how many users have been installed.

The panel on the right contains a list of users that can be installed.

Each user in the left-hand panel is listed with a unique name (and the user type stated in brackets).

Each user in the right-hand panel is listed with the name of its type and a brief description of what it can be used for.

To start installing an autoreply user, click the **Install** link in the respective entry in the list (Figure 2).



When installing a user (type), you need to give it a unique username. Clicking the **Install** link will bring up the **Autoreply user installation** panel. Here, you need to enter a unique username in the **Username** field.

Configuration

The **Autoreply script** tab of the **Configuration** panel will show up after you have specified a unique username for the autoreply user (Figure 3).



This panel contains two edit boxes. The upper edit box is for the name of the autoreply script file. The default name includes the unique name you have given the autoreply user in the **Autoreply user installation** panel.

If you are content with the default name, leave this edit box unchanged. If not, rename the default autoreply script file.

In the lower edit box, you can edit a script for one or more automatic reply and message forwarding rules. To maintain readability, you can include comments in your script. Indicate them with a hashmark (#) at the beginning of each line of a comment. The edit box contains a configuration script, which you can use as a template to edit your script.

Each automatic reply or message forwarding rule consists of a part called filter and a part called action. The filter decides whether the action should be applied to an incoming message. The filter can be used to identify certain phone numbers or incoming message text and react accordingly. The action part of the rule can be used to create a reply or to forward the message to another GSM phone number.

Example configurations

Replying to all incoming messages Rule:

n.*

SENDER Thank you for your message

Interpretation: Reply to the sender of every incoming message.

Explanation: In the filter of the rule, **n**.* means that this rule should be applied to all incoming messages (**n** means that the filter applies to the sender phone number, and .* means that every number is accepted.)

In the action of the rule, **SENDER** means that the sender of the incoming message is the recipient of the reply message. **Thank you for your message** is the text of the reply message.

Forwarding all incoming messages to a specified phone number

Rule:		
n.*		
+36203105366	MSG	

Interpretation: Forward all incoming messages to +36203105366.

Explanation: In the filter of the rule, **n.*** means that this rule should be applied to all incoming messages (see the previous example).

In the action of the rule, +36203105366 means the recipient phone number that the reply message will be sent to. (Make sure you specify the phone number in international format, starting with a leading plus sign (+). MSG means that the text of the incoming message will be inserted into the outgoing message. To forward an incoming SMS message to more than one phone number, add a new line to the rule, containing another phone number and MSG (e.g.: +36205222245 MSG) You need to specify each recipient phone number in a separate line.

Forwarding to a specific number if the sender phone number matches

```
Rule:
n^+36209937723
+36205222245 MSG
```

Interpretation: If an incoming SMS message is from the +36209937723 phone number, forward it to +36205222245.

Explanation: In the filter of the rule, **n.**^+**36209937723** means that this rule should be applied if the phone number is +36209937723.

In the action of the rule, +36205222245 means the recipient phone number that the reply message will be sent to. MSG means that the text of the incoming message will be inserted into the outgoing message. To forward an incoming SMS message to more than one phone number, add a new line to the rule, containing another phone number and MSG (eg.:+36205722246 MSG). You need to specify each recipient phone number in a separate line.

Forwarding to one or more phone numbers based on the keyword of the incoming message

```
Rule:
# If the message starts with the word "important",
forward it
# to +36205222245 and +36203105366
```

```
OZEKI INFORMATIKAI KFT
```

```
m^important.*
+36203105366 SENDER: MSG
```

+36205222245 MSG

Interpretation: If the message starts with the word "important", forward it to +36205222245 and +36203105366 including the sender phone number in the text of the message. Explanation: Above the rule there is a comment written in two lines, each starting with a hashmark sign (#). The comment describes what the rule means. In the filter of the rule, m^important.* means that this rule should be applied if the message starts with the word "important".

In the action of the rule, +36203105366 SENDER: MSG means that the incoming message will be forwarded to +36203105366 including the sender phone number in the text of the message. The +36205222245 MSG line means that the incoming message will be forwarded to +36205222245. The message forwarded to this number will *not* include the sender phone number of the incoming message.

To configure logging related to the autoreply user, click the **Logging** tab in the **Configuration** panel.

The tab has a **Logging** and a **Log file settings** section. Here, you can choose whether to make the program write log entries about sent and received messages in human readable format and/or log SMS messaging related to rules that have been applied (see the section about the **Autoreply** script tab above).

You should check one or both of the checkboxes, as logfiles can be useful in debugging communication problems (Figure 4).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 - 💽 🗟 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🧭
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/userprops?user=Autoreply1&mode=cor
ozeki 🔮 Google 💌 🖉 👷
Autoreply1 (AutoReply) - Configuration
A detailed communication log can be maintaned for this user. Please sp options. Enabling logging helps in resolving problems.
 Log sent and received messages in human readable format Log applied matching rules
Log file settings Log rotation saves disk space. Please specify the maximum size for the the number of rotated files.
Log directons Figure 4 - Logging options

In the **Log file settings** section of the tab, you can make specifications for the size and the number of available logfiles.

Log rotation saves disk space, as it ensures that older (and probably no longer needed) logfiles will be automatically deleted from the log directory, which is specified in the **Log directory** text box. By default, the access path to the logfiles is: C:\Program Files\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\Logs

In the **Maximum log file size** text box in the **Logfile settings** section, you can specify the maximum size of a logfile. Once this size is reached, a new logfile will be created. Specify the number of kilobytes for the size of a logfile by entering a positive whole number. By default, the maximum logfile size is 2000 kB.

In the **Number of rotated files** text box, specify the maximum number of rotated logfiles that are saved. Specify this number by entering a positive whole number. By default, the number of logfiles that are saved is 4 (see Figure 4 above).

If you are content with the default specifications, leave the text boxes unchanged.

To modify the configuration or to view server events related to an installed user, open the panel of the user's account. To do this, click the name of the user in the **Users and Applications** panel of the **Management Console.** In the panel of the user's account, click the link of the task you wish to perform (Figure 5).

File Edit View Favorites Tools Help						
🔇 Back 🔹 🕥 - 💌 😰 🏠 🔎 S	Search 👷 Favorites 🥝 🎯 🗣 璗 🔟 🐇 💹					
Address Address Address Address Address	?user=Autoreply 18.mode=configure					
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌	😻 📽 💭 😻 Vir Térkép Elvire					
DZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY						
File - Edit - Service providers - Users and ap	plications - View - Help					
Compose Reply Forward Print Del	Autoreply1 (AutoReply) - Configuration					
This is a standard user, who can	Autoreply script Logging					
Use the browser-based user interface for messaging. <u>Configure</u> Events Uninstall	AutoReply script file: autoreply_Autoreply1.txt					
Configure Events Uninstall						
Inbox (0)	# Reply to sender on all incoming messages					
	# Reply to sender on all incoming messages n.* SENDER Thank you for your message					
	n.* SENDER Thank you for your message					
(0) <u>xodini</u>	n.*					

Figure 5 - Clicking a user-related task link

AutoReplyEasy User

This page explains how to install and configure an AutoReplyEasy user for SMS messaging using the graphical user interface of the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software.

Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway supports the installation and configuration of an AutoReplyEasy user (among several other users and applications, see the <u>Users and Applications</u> page).

The AutoReplyEasy user allows you to automatically reply to incoming messages, sending a reply message to the sender phone number of the incoming message.

This feature makes the AutoReplyEasy user similar to the <u>Autoreply User</u>. However, there are some differences between them.

The Autoreply user allows you to reply to and forward incoming messages to various phone numbers, based on the sender address and the message content. The AutoReplyEasy user, however, only allows you to automatically send a reply message to the sender phone number of

the recipient message. The reply can be a plain text or a WAPPUSH SMS. A WAPPUSH SMS is basically a specially encoded message which includes a link to a WAP or webpage address.

Unlike the Autoreply user, the AutoReplyEasy user does not require you to edit rules following a rule syntax in the autoreply script file. Instead of having to set rules in the script file, you only have to edit your reply message. (This is the reason for the distinction "Easy" in its name.)

The reply message can contain the following special keywords. These keywords will be replaced to the appropriate content in the message text before the reply message is sent.

\$MSG	The incoming message text
\$SENDER	The originator number
\$RECEIVER	The recipient number

You can use the <u>graphical user interface</u> of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway to install and configure an AutoReplyEasy user.

Installation

To start installing and configuring an AutoReplyEasy user, click the Add button in the top righthand corner of the Users and Applications panel on the right of the Management Console. You can also add a user by clicking the Add user item in the Users and applications menu (Figure 1).



Figure 1 - Adding a user

This will bring up an interface consisting of two panels.

The panel on the left contains a list of users that have been installed. In the bar at the bottom of

the panel you can read how many users have been installed.

The panel on the right contains a list of users that can be installed.

Each user in the left-hand panel is listed with a unique name (and the user type stated in brackets).

Each user in the right-hand panel is listed with the name of its type and a brief description of what it can be used for.

To start installing an AutoReplyEasy user, click the **Install** link in the respective entry in the list (Figure 2).



When installing a user (type), you need to give it a unique username. Clicking the **Install** link will bring up the **AutoReplyEasy user installation** panel. Here, you need to enter a unique username in the **Username** field.

Configuration

The **Autoreply script** tab of the **Configuration** panel will show up after you have specified a unique username for the AutoReplyEasy user (Figure 3).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🛛 🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 - 💽 🛃 😭 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🧭
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/default
OZEKI 🔮 Google 💌
Bobby (AutoReplyEasy) - Configuration
Autoreply script Logging
AutoReplyEasy script file: autoreply_Bobby.txt
AutoReplyEasy type: SMS:TEXT
This is the reply message. SMS:WAPPUSH

Figure 3 - The AutoReplyEasy script tab

This tab contains an uneditable text box, a dropdown menu and an editable text box. The uneditable text box is for the name of the AutoReplyEasy script file. This file name, which includes the unique name you have specified for your AutoReplyEasy user during the installation, is provided by the program.

In the **AutoReplyEasy type** dropdown menu, you can select the type of your reply message. In the editable text box below, you can simply edit your reply message.

To configure logging related to the AutoReplyEasy user, click the **Logging** tab in the **Configuration** panel.

The tab has a **Logging** and a **Log file settings** section. Here, you can choose whether to make the program write log entries about sent and received messages in human readable format and/or log SMS messaging related to rules that have been applied.

You should check one or both of the checkboxes, as logfiles can be useful in debugging communication problems (Figure 4).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 🐇 📓 🏠 🔎 Search 🥎 Favorites 🧭
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/default
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌 🙀 🐑
Bobby (AutoReplyEasy) - Configuration Autoreply script Logging Logging A detailed communication log can be maintaned for this user. Please soptions. Enabling logging helps in resolving problems. Image: Complexity of the second sec
Log applied matching rules Log file settings Log rotation saves disk space. Please specify the maximum size for th number of rotated files. Log directory Figure 4 - Logging options

In the **Log file settings** section of the tab, you can make specifications for the size and the number of available logfiles.

Log rotation saves disk space, as it ensures that older (and probably no longer needed) logfiles will be automatically deleted from the log directory, which is specified in the **Log directory** text box. By default, the access path to the logfiles is: C:\Program Files\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\Logs

In the **Maximum log file size** text box in the **Logfile settings** section, you can specify the maximum size of a logfile. Once this size is reached, a new logfile will be created. Specify the number of kilobytes for the size of a logfile by entering a positive whole number. By default, the maximum logfile size is 2000 kB.

In the **Number of rotated files** text box, specify the maximum number of rotated logfiles that are saved. Specify this number by entering a positive whole number. By default, the number of logfiles that are saved is 4 (see Figure 4 above).

If you are content with the default specifications, leave the text boxes unchanged.

To modify the configuration or to view server events related to an installed user, open the panel of the user's account. To do this, click the name of the user in the **Users and Applications** panel of the **Management Console.** In the panel of the user's account, click the link of the task you wish to perform.

File user

This chapter explains how to install and configure a File user for SMS messaging using the graphical user interface of the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software. You will be provided with step-by-step instructions on how to install and configure this user, along with explanations about the different file formats you can use to send and receive SMS messages with the File user.

Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway allows, among others (see the <u>Users and Applications</u> page), the installation and configuration of a file user.

A File user allows you to send and receive messages using text files. When an incoming message arrives, the File user creates a text file for the message and places it into the incoming directory. If you would like to send a message, all you have to do is place a text file into the outgoing directory. The File user will periodically check this outgoing directory for messages to be sent. If it finds messages there, they will be sent out by the File user.

When you install a File user, Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway will automatically create the incoming and the outgoing directory along with other directories for SMS messages related to the File user. These directories can be found in a collection directory named **smsTemp** by default. You can rename this collection directory and the subdirectories. However, make sure you specify them correctly for the File user in the respective edit boxes containing the paths in the **General** tab of the **Configuration** panel (see the Configuration section below).

You can use the <u>graphical user interface</u> of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway to install and configure a File user.

Installation

To start installing and configuring a File user, click the **Add** button in the top right-hand corner of the **Users and Applications** panel on the right of the **Management Console**. You can also add a user by clicking the **Add user** item in the **Users and applications** menu (Figure 1).

File Edit View Favorites Tools Help	arch	📌 Fa	vorites 🎸) ⊘-	2 0		CEA.
	arch	📌 Far	vorites 🎸	9 3-			CEA
Address A http://127.0.0.1.9501/					36		1
1001000 100///12/10/0/1/2001/						Edit	
OZEKI Google 👻	w	Ĉ	lehetöség		Vir T	érkép	Elvira
OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY							
Compose Reply Forward Print Del Service providers	Inbou	and rou	uting 🚮				٥
SMPPO (SMPPO) O 0	Name	Prov	vider Send	er Receive	r Keyword	User	Mode
Idle, waiting for messages	defaulti	n AN'ı	ANY ANY	ANY	ANY	admin	move

Figure 1 - Adding a user

This will bring up an interface consisting of two panels.

The panel on the left contains a list of users that have been installed. In the bar at the bottom of the panel you can read how many users have been installed.

The panel on the right contains a list of users that can be installed.

Each user in the left-hand panel is listed with a unique name (and the user type stated in brackets).

Each user in the right-hand panel is listed with the name of its type and a brief description of what it can be used for.

To start installing a File user, click the Install link in the respective entry in the list (Figure 2).

File Edit View Favorites Tools He Image: Back Image: Solution State Image: Solution State	-	📌 Favorites	<i>€</i> ∂•	ا چ	w - 🛄	111
Address an http://127.0.0.1:9501/default	?layout=ME	ENUVIEW&ME	NU=USERS&N	MAIN=US	ERINSTALL Térkép	- Elvir
Users and Applications & PA admin (Standard) Autorephy1 (AutoRephy) butp1 (Standard) Peer (SMPP) Sul1 (SOL) Sul2 (SOL) Teddy (Standard)	Add u	Autore The au to vario AutoRo The Au Colour The co incomi the cor	cation ard user install ugin generates ply user install toreply user ma ius phone numb plyEasy user inst toReplyEasy user inst lour SMS protocong SMS messa itent providers r ictionality.	kes it pos bers base <u>nstall</u> er makes all ol was int ges to 3ro	ssible to rep ed on the ser s it easy to re troduced by d party conte	ly to inc nder ad sply to in the Hur nt provi

Figure 2 - Installing a File user

When installing a user (type), you need to give it a unique username. Clicking the **Install** link will bring up the **File user installation** panel. Here, you need to enter a unique username in the **Username** field.

General configuration

The **General** tab of the **Configuration** panel will show up after you have specified a unique username for the File user (Figure 3).

The upper section of the tab contains the **File format** dropdown menu. Select an appropriate file format: **List**, **Simple** or **Verbose**. (For more information, see the File formats section below.)

Below the **File format** dropdown menu, there is an edit box. In this, you can specify how often the program should check the outgoing directory for messages to send. Enter the number of seconds in numerical format, representing a positive whole number. If you are content with the default specification (every 2 seconds), leave the edit box unchanged (Figure 3).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 🐁 📓 🏠 🔎 Search 🤺 Favorites 🥝
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/default
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌 🐨 🐨
Sammy (File) - Configuration
General Logging Settings File format: List Check outgoing directory every 2 seconds for messages to a
Directories INBOX - Save incoming messages into this directory
C:\smsTemp\smsin OUTBOX - Outgoing directory searched for text files containing outgoi
C:\smsTemp\smsout SENT - Successfully sent messages will be saved into this directory:
Figure 3 - Setting the file format and the query frequency

The lower section of the tab contains five edit boxes containing paths to directories. Each path includes a different subdirectory name. As mentioned above, the installation of the File user automatically creates different directories for messages. The status of a message defines which directory it can be found in. Each path leads to a directory containing messages of a specific status (Figure 4).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 🐁 📓 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🧭
Address 🙆 http://127.0.0.1:9501/userprops?user=Sammy&mode=configu
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌 Scarborough 🙀 🏹
Sammy (File) - Configuration
General Logging Settings File format: List Check outgoing directory every 2 seconds for messages to se
Directories INBOX - Save incoming messages into this directory
C:\smsTemp\smsin
OUTBOX - Outgoing directory searched for text files containing outgoing
C:\smsTemp\smsout SENT - Successfully sent messages will be saved into this directory:
CLIVE Ouccessionly sent messages will be saved into this directory.

Figure 4 - Default paths

The first directory (INBOX) is for incoming messages, i.e., messages delivered to Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway and destined to the File user (according to <u>inbound routing</u> rules).

The second directory (OUTBOX) is for outgoing messages, i.e., messages originated by the File user for Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway to send out (according to <u>outbound routing</u> rules).

The third directory (SENT) is for messages that have been successfully sent out and accepted by an SMS Center for delivery.

The fourth directory (FAILED) is for messages that have failed to be sent out. These messages have not been accepted by the SMS Center for delivery.

The fifth directory (DELIVERED) is for messages that have been delivered to the recipient phone. When Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway receives a delivery report from the SMS Center, a sent message will be inserted into this directory.

Sending an SMS message

When you wish to send a message using the file plugin your application and the SMS engine will work on the same set of files. This cooperation can have conflicts if the same file is accessed by the SMS engine and your application at the same time. To avoid the possible conflicts you can use a locking mechanism when you use the the File API.

In the following example I will give you the steps you should take if you wish to send files using a safe way. (These steps are particularly important if you are using the network to put files to be sent into the SMSout directory. If you use FTP, NFS or Samba to access the remote directory make sure you follow these steps.)

To perform sending 4 directories are used:

1.) C:\smsTemp\smsout\ - the outgoing directory

2.) C:\smsTemp\smssent\ - the directory that holds the messages that were successfully sent
3.) C:\smsTemp\smsfailed\ - the directory that holds the messages that could not be sent.
4.) C:\smsTemp\smsdelivered\ - the directory that holds the messages that have arrived to the destination handset.

To send an SMS first you should create a "lock" file in the outgoing directory. A lock file is used to make sure the SMS Engine will not start to read the real file containing the messages while the file is still beeing written. The lock file is an empty file, that has a name that matches the real file. The lock file name has a special extension: .lock. This extension is appended to the end of the filename. After the lock file is created you can edit the real file containing the outgoing message text. When you are finished simply delete the lock file.

Step 1.) Create: C:\smsTemp\smsout\mysms.sml.lock

Step 2.) Create: C:\smsTemp\smsout\mysms.sml Write : C:/smsout/mysms.sml

Step 3.) Delete: C:\smsTemp\smsout\mysms.sml.lock

After you have created your file, you need to wait. The SMS Engine will delete your file, and will try to send the messages. When the sending is done a new text file will be placed into the smssent or the smsfailed directory based on the sending results. When the file is created the same locking steps are performed.

Please take a look at the following diagram:



Figure 1 - Sending an SMS using the file user

If the new text file is saved into the sent directory, it means the message was successfully delivered to the SMS network. If delivery reports are configured on the service provider connection configuration form and delivery reports are supported by the SMS service provider, you will receive a status report sms when the SMS is delivered to the destination handset. If this happens, the SMS engine will create a text file with the same locking steps in the smsdelivered directory.

File formats

As mentioned above, Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway supports the following file formats: simple, verbose and list. You can use any of these formats to send a message. To select a particular format use the configuration form of the file user.

The simple file format

If you select the simple file format in the dropdown menu (see Figure 3 above), each incoming message will be saved in a separate file. The name of the file is the *sender phone number*, and the only line of the file contains the message. For example:

c:\smsout\+36203105366

Hello world

To send messages using the simple file format, create a separate textfile for each outgoing message and place these files into the **smsout** directory. The name of the textfile has to be the recipient phone number. When the message has been sent out, the textfile will be automatically deleted from the directory.

Note that if you want to send more than one message to the same recipient phone number, you can only place a new message into the outgoing directory if the previous message has been sent out and is no longer there. This is because you cannot have two files with the same name in the same directory. If the previously inserted file is still in the directory (has not yet been sent out), you can only insert the new file by overwriting the previous file. Therefore, if you insert a new file with the same name (which is the telephone number of the recipient) into the outgoing directory, your previous SMS message will not be sent out at all. This is because the file containing it will be replaced with a new one. Replacing the previous file is essentially equal to deleting it.

Accordingly, if you select the simple file format, an incoming message from a specific sender phone number will overwrite (delete) the previous message from the same number. Therefore, it is always only the latest message from a specific phone number that will be saved in the inbox. This may be inconvenient if you wish to save more than one SMS message from the same sender. Take this into consideration when you select the file format in the respective dropdown menu.

On the other hand, this file format may be convenient for position tracking SMS applications. The movement of vehicles can be tracked with a GSM device transmitting the vehicle's position coordinates via SMS to the File user of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway. In this case, it may not be problematic (or it may even be desirable) that only the latest report is saved in the inbox.

The verbose file format

The verbose file format is similar to the simple file format inasmuch as each message resides in a separate file. The difference is that the file contains more information than just the message text. The main advantage of this file format is that you can place into the directory more than one file containing a message to the same destination (phone number). You can give each file any name, which has to be different from the name(s) of any other files(s). Note that the extension of the file has to be **.sms**.

The first line in the file has to contain the sender phone number, the second line contains the recipient phone number, and the message text follows these in the next line. For example:

c:\smsout\anyname.sms

+36203105366 +36209937723 The message text

The list file format

The list file format is a convenient way to send and receive a large number of SMS messages. In this case more than one message is stored in the same file.

For outgoing messages you should create a text file in which each line contains a message with the recipient's phone number (in international format) before it. The phone number and the message text is separated by a space character. When the messages are ready to be sent, place the file into the outgoing (smsout) directory. The file name needs to have the **.sml** extension (sml stands for SMS list). For example:

c:\smsout\list.sml

```
+36205555366 This is the first message
+36209937723 This is the second message
+36307789723 Use Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway!
```

The XML file format

The XML file format you can use is:

```
<Envelope>
<MessageType>SMS:TEXT</MessageType>
<Originator>+36203105366</Originator>
<Recepient>+36209937723</Recepient>
<Subject>Hello world</Subject>
</Envelope>
```

You should place this text file into the c:tmpsmsout directory. For example you can save it as "c:\tmp\smsout\mysms.txt"

Please note that if you wish to change the file extension to xml from txt, you must modify the extension setting on the "Special" tab of the file plugin configuration form.

Logging configuration

To configure logging related to the File user, click the **Logging** tab in the **Configuration** panel. The tab has a **Logging** and a **Log file settings** section. Here, you can choose whether to make the program write log entries about sent and received messages in human readable format and/or log file content.

You should check one or both of the checkboxes, as logfiles can be useful in debugging communication problems (Figure 5).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer			
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help			
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 🖓 📓 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🤣			
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/userprops?user=Sammy&mode=configu			
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌 Scarborough 🙀 🌾			
Sammy (File) - Configuration			
General Logging Logging A detailed communication log can be maintaned for this connection. Plea the logging options. Enabling this feature helps in resolving problems.			
Log file content			
Log rotation saves disk space. Please specify the maximum size for the log files and the number of rotated files.			
Log directory C1Program Filoc) Ozoki Ozoki NG - SMS Gatowavill o Figure 5 - Logging options			

In the **Log file settings** section of the tab, you can make specifications for the size and the number of available logfiles.

Log rotation saves disk space, as it ensures that older (and probably no longer needed) logfiles will be automatically deleted from the log directory, which is specified in the **Log directory** text box. By default, the path to the logfiles is: C:\Program Files\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\Logs

In the **Maximum log file size** text box in the **Logfile settings** section, you can specify the maximum size of a logfile. Once this size is reached, a new logfile will be created. Specify the number of kilobytes for the size of a logfile by entering a positive whole number. By default, the maximum logfile size is 2000 kB.

In the **Number of rotated files** text box, specify the maximum number of rotated logfiles that are saved. Specify this number by entering a positive whole number. By default, the number of logfiles that are saved is 4 (see Figure 4 above).

If you are content with the default specifications, leave the text boxes unchanged.

To modify the configuration or to view server events related to an installed user, open the panel of the user's account. To do this, click the name of the user in the **Users and Applications** panel

of the **Management Console.** In the panel of the user's account, click the link of the task you wish to perform (Figure 6).

CZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Micros	oft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help	
🔇 Back 🔹 🕥 - 💌 🗟 🏠 🔎	Search 🐈 Favorites 🔗 🎯 😼 🔤 · 🛄 🏭 .
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/userprops	s?user=Sammy&mode=configure
ozekiĝ Google 👻	😻 🕼 🔛 😻 Vir Térkép Elvira
Sammy (File)	Sammy (File) - Configuration
Image: Section 2 User Sammy This is a standard user, who can use the browser-based user interface for messaging. Configure Events Uninstall Inbox (0) Outbox (0) Sent (0) Sent (0) Not sent (0) Deleted items (0)	General Logging Settings File format: List Check outgoing directory every 2 seconds for Directories INBOX - Save incoming messages into this directory C\smsTemp\smsin OUTBOX - Outgoing directory searched for text files cor C\smsTemp\smsout SENT - Successfully sent messages will be saved into

Figure 6 - Clicking a user-related task link

HTTP Client User

This chapter explains how to install and configure an HTTP Client user for SMS messaging using the graphical user interface of the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software.

Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway allows, among others (see the <u>Users and Applications</u> page), the installation and configuration of an HTTP Client user.

The HTTP Client takes incoming messages and passes them in an HTTP GET or an HTTP POST request to an external webserver. The HTML page returned by the webserver can contain SMS messages that will be sent by the server (Figure 1).



Figure 1 - Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway as an HTTP SMS Gateway

The HTTP client is a very convenient feature of Ozeki NG Gateway, as it can translate mobile communication into HTTP-based communication. The Ozeki NG Gateway works as both a gateway and a translator between mobile communication and the Internet. It enables you to create HTTP client connections that can forward messages to a web address (URL).

You can use the <u>graphical user interface</u> of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway to install and configure any user.

To start installing and configuring an HTTP Client user, click the **Add** button in the top righthand corner of the **Users and Applications** panel on the right of the **Management Console**. You can also add a user by clicking the **Add user** item in the **Users and applications** menu (Figure 2).

CZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microso		and the second second second second					
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help							
🚱 Back 🔹 🌍 🔹 📓 🏠 🔎 S	Search	📌 Favorite	es 🚱	8-3			11
Address 🗃 http://127.0.0.1:9501/						Edit	
ozeki 🖉 Google 💌	w	Ces lehe	töség		Vir Té	rkép	Elvira
OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY							
- File - Edit - Service providers - Users and ap	plication	s . View .	Help				
Compose Reply Forward Print Del							
Compose Reply Forward Print Del)						
	Inbou	und routing	- 6% -	▶ 88			•
Compose Reply Forward Print Del Service providers	Inbou	und routing Provider	Sender	Receiver	Keyword	User	Mod
Compose Reply Forward Print Del	-	Provider	-		Keyword	User admin	Mo
Compose Reply Forward Print Del Service providers	Name	Provider	Sender	Receiver		-	Mor
Compose Reply Forward Print Del Service providers	Name	Provider	Sender	Receiver		-	Mor
Compose Reply Forward Print Del Service providers	Name	Provider	Sender	Receiver		-	Mo
Compose Reply Forward Print Del Service providers	Name	Provider	Sender	Receiver		-	Mod
Compose Reply Forward Print Del Service providers	Name defaulti	Provider	Sender	Receiver		-	

Figure 2 - Adding a user

OZEKI INFORMATIKAI KFT

This will bring up an interface consisting of two panels.

The panel on the left contains a list of users that have been installed. In the bar at the bottom of the page you can read how many users have been installed.

The panel on the right contains a list of users that can be installed.

Each user in the left-hand panel is listed with a unique name (and the user type stated in brackets).

Each user in the right-hand panel is listed with the name of its type and a brief description of what it can be used for.

To add an HTTP user, click the **Install** link in the respective entry in the list (Figure 3).



When installing a user (type), you need to give it a unique username. Clicking the **Install** link will bring up the **HTTP Client user installation** panel. Here, you need to enter a unique username in the **Username** field.

Once you have installed an HTTP Client user, you can start to configure it. After you have provided a unique name for the HTTP Client user and clicked **OK**, the **Configuration** panel will open.

The first tab that will show up is the **HTTP settings** tab.

In this panel you need to specify HTTP Client settings. This information is provided by the SMS service provider when you subscribe to the service (Figure 4).


Figure 4 - The HTTP settings tab

In the **Target URL** template you can specify the URL of the HTTP server. This URL can contain certain keywords that will be replaced before the URL is called. The following keywords can be used:

Keyword	Description	
\$originator	riginator This denotes the sender telephone number.	
\$recipient	recipient This denotes the recipient telephone number.	
\$messagetype This the text containing the SMS message format.		
\$messagedata This contains the message text.		
\$receivedtime This is the timestamp, denoting when the message was received.		
\$senttime	\$senttime This is the timestamp, denoting when the message was sent.	
\$messageid	This is the unique identifier string of the message. This identifier is generated by Ozeki NG - SMS	
sillessagelu	Gateway.	
\$dcs	Edcs The SMS data coding scheme.	
\$pid	The protocol identifier.	
\$operator	The instance name of the service provider connection that received the message.	

Below this template, you can specify the HTTP request method by selecting the **GET** or the **POST** radio button.

The HTTP transaction is initiated by the SMS Gateway and is served by a web based application. ASP, PHP, JSP are good options to create a web based application that can process the incoming messages. These applications can optionally return one or more response SMS messages in the HTTP response. The format for the HTTP response is discussed on the <u>SMS Message format</u> page. An example of the response your application can return is:

OZEKI INFORMATIKAI KFT

SMS:TEXT {Vodafone} {+447778888888} {+4477799999999} {Hello world}

To configure logging related to the HTTP user, click the **Logging** tab in the **Configuration** panel.

The tab has a **Logging** and a **Log file settings** section. Here, you can choose whether to make the program write log entries about sent and received messages in human readable format and/or log low level communication. Choosing the latter option will make the program produce logfiles containing binary codes representing the communication data.

You should check at least the **Log sent and received messages in human readable format** checkbox, as logfiles can be useful in debugging communication problems (Figure 5).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 🛛 📓 😭 🔎 Search 🤶 Favorites 🤣 👔
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/userprops?user=Webserver&mode=con
OZEKI 🖉 Google 👻 🐨 🗤 🐑
Webserver (HTTPClient) - Configuration
HTTP settings Logging Advanced Logging A detailed communication log can be maintaned for this connection. Plea the logging options. Enabling this feature helps in resolving problems. Use Log sent and received messages in human readable format
Log low level communication
Log file settings
Log rotation saves disk space. Please specify the maximum size for the log files and the number of rotated files.
Log directory: C\Program Files\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\Logs Figure 5 - Logging options

In the **Log file settings** section of the tab, you can make specifications for the size and the number of available logfiles.

Log rotation saves disk space, as it ensures that older (and probably no longer needed) logfiles will be automatically deleted from the log directory, which is specified in the **Log directory** text box. By default, the access path to the logfiles is: C:\Program Files\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\Logs

In the **Maximum log file size** text box in the **Logfile settings** section, you can specify the maximum size of a logfile. Once this size is reached, a new logfile will be created. Specify the number of kilobytes for the size of a logfile by entering a positive whole number. By default, the maximum logfile size is 2000 kB.

In the **Number of rotated files** text box, specify the maximum number of rotated logfiles that are saved. Specify this number by entering a positive whole number. By default, the number of logfiles that are saved is 4 (see Figure 5 above).

If you are content with the default specifications, leave the text boxes unchanged.

To modify the configuration or to view server events related to an HTTP Client user, open the panel of the user's account. To do this, click the name of the user in the **Users and Applications** panel of the **Management Console.** In the panel of the user's account, click the link of the task you wish to perform (Figure 6).



Figure 6 - Clicking a user-related task link

Colour SMS User

This chapter explains how to install and configure a Colour SMS user for SMS messaging using the graphical user interface of the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software.

Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway allows, among others (see the <u>Users and Applications</u> page), the installation and configuration of a Colour SMS user.

The Colour SMS protocol was developed by T-mobile Hungary for premium rate SMS services. It is an easy to use HTTP based SMS protocol. When a customer tries to access a premium rate SMS service by sending an SMS to a premium rate phone number, the SMSC transfers this message as an HTTP post request to the HTTP Server operated by the content provider. The content provider returns a response to the HTTP request in XML format. This response is sent as an SMS message back to the customer. The HTTP server operated by the service provider is Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway. This user implements this functionality (Figure 1).



Due to the nature of the HTTP protocol, it is always required to return a response to incoming messages in a short period of time. The Colour SMS protocol is often used with other connection methods, such as UCP to make delayed responses to incoming messages possible. Using a UCP connection, response messages can be sent at a later time, which is useful if you would like to set up periodic SMS notifications, such as weekly news service.

You can use the <u>graphical user interface</u> of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway to install and configure any user.

To start installing and configuring a Colour SMS user, click the Add button in the top right-hand corner of the Users and Applications panel on the right of the Management Console. You can also add a user by clicking the Add user item in the Users and applications menu. (Figure 2).

CZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microso	oft Inte	ernet	Explore	eг				
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help								
🚱 Back 🔹 🌍 🔹 📓 💋 🔊	Search	Transfer Fa	avorites	0	8-8		- 🗔	12
Address 🗃 http://127.0.0.1:9501/							Edit	
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌	w	Ĉ	lehetös	ég	w	Vir	Térkép	Elvira
OZEKING - SMS GATEWAY - File - Edit - Service providers - Users and ap Compose Reply Forward Print Del Compose Compose Comp)				. 63			(a)Er
Service providers	Inbou		uting				_	
Idle, waiting for messages	default			Sender ANY	Receiver ANY	Keywo ANY	admin	Mode

Figure 2 - Adding a user

This will bring up an interface consisting of two panels.

The panel on the left contains a list of users that have been installed. In the bar at the bottom of the page you can read how many users have been installed.

The panel on the right contains a list of users that can be installed.

Each user in the left-hand panel is listed with a unique name (and the user type stated in brackets).

Each user in the right-hand panel is listed with the name of its type and a brief description of what it can be used for.

To add a Colour SMS user, click the Install link in the respective entry in the list (Figure 3).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer				
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help				
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 - 📓 🛃 🏠 🔎 Search 🤺 Favorites 🤣				
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/default?layout=MENUVIEW&MENU=USE				
OZEKI 🖉 Google 🔽 🙀 🕵 booking				
Add user or application				
Standard user install This plugin generates random outgoing SMS messages. Good for dev				
Autoreply user install The autoreply user makes it possible to reply to incoming messages and the mes				
AutoReplyEasy user install The AutoReplyEasy user makes it easy to reply to incoming message:				
Colour SMS user install The colour SMS protocol was introduced by the Hungarian GSM servic incoming SMS messages to 3rd party content providers in HTTP reque the content providers return a response SMS message in each HTTP this functionality.				
Database user install Figure 3 - Installing a Colour SMS user				

When installing a user (type), you need to give it a unique username. Clicking the **Install** link will bring up the **Colour SMS user installation** panel. Here, you need to enter a unique username in the **Username** field.

Once you have installed a Colour SMS user, you can start to configure it. After you have provided a unique name for the Colour SMS user and clicked **OK**, the **Configuration** panel will open.

The first tab that will show up is the **HTTP settings** tab.

In this panel you need to specify HTTP Client settings. This information is provided by the SMS service provider when you subscribe to the service (Figure 4).

🕘 OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Ex	plorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help	
🕝 Back 🔹 🕥 - 💽 🗟 🏠 🔎 Search 🤺 Fave	orites 🚱
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/default	
OZEKI 🖉 Google 🔽 🖉 🖉	booking
Mickey (ColourSMS) - Configuration	
HTTP settings Logging Advanced Connection Please specify the HTTP Client settings. (This informal provider, when you subscribe for the service.) Target URL: Itep://127.0.0.1:82/sms/coloursms.php? sessionid=\$messageid&srcaddr=06xxyyyyyy/&destadd=0&data=\$messagedata	

Figure 4 - The HTTP settings tab

In the **Target URL** template you can specify the URL of the HTTP server. This URL can contain certain keywords that will be replaced before the URL is called.

Below this template, you can specify the HTTP request method by selecting the **GET** or the **POST** radio button.

To configure logging related to the Colour SMS user, click the **Logging** tab in the **Configuration** panel.

The tab has a **Logging** and a **Log file settings** section. Here, you can choose whether to make the program write log entries about sent and received messages in human readable format and/or log low level communication. Choosing the latter option will make the program produce logfiles containing binary codes representing the communication data.

You should check at least the **Log sent and received messages in human readable format** checkbox, as logfiles can be useful in debugging communication problems (Figure 5).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 🛛 📓 😭 🔎 Search 🤺 Favorites 🥝
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/default
OZEKI 🖉 Google 🔽 🛛 🗤 🚱 booking
Mickey (ColourSMS) - Configuration
HTTP settings Logging Advanced Logging A detailed communication log can be maintaned for this connection. Pla the logging options. Enabling this feature helps in resolving problems.
Log sent and received messages in human readable format Log low level communication
Log file settings Log rotation saves disk space. Please specify the maximum size for the log files and the number of rotated files.
Figure 5 - Logging options

In the Log file settings section of the tab, you can make specifications for the size and the number of available logfiles.

Log rotation saves disk space, as it ensures that older (and probably no longer needed) logfiles will be automatically deleted from the log directory, which is specified in the Log directory text box. By default, the access path to the logfiles is: C:\Program Files\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\Logs

In the Maximum log file size text box in the Logfile settings section, you can specify the maximum size of a logfile. Once this size is reached, a new logfile will be created. Specify the number of kilobytes for the size of a logfile by entering a positive whole number. By default, the maximum logfile size is 2000 kB.

In the Number of rotated files text box, specify the maximum number of rotated logfiles that are saved. Specify this number by entering a positive whole number. By default, the number of logfiles that are saved is 4 (see Figure 5 above).

If you are content with the default specifications, leave the text boxes unchanged.

To modify the configuration or to view server events related to a Colour SMS user, open the panel of the user's account. To do this, click the name of the user in the **Users and Applications** panel of the **Management Console.** In the panel of the user's account, click the link of the task you wish to perform (Figure 6).



Figure 6 - Clicking a user-related task link

E-mail User

This chapter provides an introduction to the E-mail user. You can learn what it can be used for, and how to install it using the graphical user interface of the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software. You are also provided with links to respective pages instructing you how to configure it to send an e-mail as an SMS message and to send an SMS message as an e-mail.

Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway allows, among others (see the <u>Users and Applications</u> page), the installation and configuration of an E-mail user. This is an automated user that can be used to realize two-way e-mail - SMS gateway service. It can forward an incoming e-mail as an SMS message to a specified phone number (or phone numbers), and an incoming SMS message as an e-mail to a specified e-mail address or e-mail addresses (Figure 1).



Figure 1 - System architecture of the service

The Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software acts as an e-mail client, using an SMTP server to send, and a POP3 server to receive messages. You can use its <u>graphical user interface</u> to install and configure an E-mail user.

For detailed instructions on how to realize a two-way E-mail - SMS gateway service and a detailed explanation of Figure 1, check out the <u>How to Set up an E-mail - SMS Gateway</u> page.

To start installing and configuring an E-mail user, click the **Add** button in the top right-hand corner of the **Users and Applications** panel on the right of the **Management Console**. You can also add a user by clicking the **Add user** item in the **Users and applications** menu (Figure 2).

CZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microso	oft Inte	ernet Expl	огег				
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help							
🔇 Back • 🌍 • 💌 🖻 🏠 🔎 s	Search	📌 Favorit	es 🥝	8-8			11
Address Address Address Address Address					6	Edit	
ozeki 🖉 Google 💌	w	Ces lehe	töség	w	Vir Téi	rkép	Elvin
OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY							
Compose Reply Forward Print Del	Inbou	und routin	a 6% -	▶ &			
BIG DA SMPPO (SMPPO) O O	Name	Provider	Sender ANY	Receiver	Keyword	User	Mod
Idle, waiting for messages							
	1	(s) installed					

Figure 2 - Adding a user

OZEKI INFORMATIKAI KFT

This will bring up an interface consisting of two panels.

The panel on the left contains a list of users that have been installed. In the bar at the bottom of the panel you can read how many users have been installed.

The panel on the right contains a list of users that can be installed.

Each user in the left-hand panel is listed with a unique name (and the user type stated in brackets).

Each user in the right-hand panel is listed with the name of its type and a brief description of what it can be used for.

To start installing an E-mail user, click the **Install** link in the respective entry in the list (Figure 3).



When installing a user (type), you need to give it a unique username. Clicking the **Install** link will bring up the **E-mail user installation** panel. Here, you need to enter a unique username in the **Username** field.

After specifying a unique username for the E-mail user, the **E-mail to SMS** tab of the **Configuration** panel will show up. Now you can start to configure the user. To find out how to configure it to forward an incoming e-mail as an incoming SMS message to a

specified phone number, check out the <u>E-mail to SMS Configuration</u> page. To learn how to configure it to send an incoming SMS message to a specified e-mail address,

read the <u>SMS to E-mail Configuration</u> page.

To modify the configuration or to view server events related to an installed user, open the panel of the user's account. To do this, click the name of the user in the **Users and Applications** panel of the **Management Console.** In the panel of the user's account, click the link of the task you wish to perform (Figure 4).

🕲 OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Mozilla	Firefox
Eájl Szerkesztés <u>N</u> ézet Előz <u>m</u> ények Kör	nyvjelzők <u>E</u> szközök <u>S</u> úgó
 	host:9501/default?layout=MENUVIEW8MAIN=USERMAIN8M
🗣 Bevezetés 🔝 Friss hírek. <u>G</u> Mozilla Firefox I	Kezdőoldal
OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY	
 File - Edit - Service providers - Users and ap 	plications - View - Help
Compose Reply Forward Print Del	Emailuser (Email) - Events
User Emailuser	3/28/2007 9:17:57 AM - LOGLINESBEFORECHECKSIZE
A This is a standard user, who can	3/28/2007 9:17:57 AM - LOGMAXFILESIZE
use the browser-based user	3/28/2007 9:17:57 AM - LOGMESSAGES
Configure Events Uninstall	3/28/2007 9:17:57 AM - LOGOUTGOING 3/28/2007 9:17:57 AM - PASSWORD
Conligure Events Oniristali	3/28/2007 9:17:57 AM - POLLINTERVAL
	3/28/2007 9:17:57 AM - POP3FROMDUMBER
* Inbox (0)	3/28/2007 9:17:57 AM - POP3MAXMESSAGELENGTH
* Outbox (0)	3/28/2007 9:17:57 AM - POP3NUMBERINSUBJECT

Figure 4 - User-related task links

E-mail to SMS Configuration

This section provides you with step-by-step instructions on how to configure the E-mail user of the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software to forward an incoming e-mail as an SMS message to a specified phone number.

The E-mail user, which is one of the installable users of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway, can forward an incoming e-mail as an SMS message to a specified phone number. It will periodically download e-mails from a POP3 e-mail account and forward the first 160 characters of the body of an e-mail to the phone number specified in the configuration form of the user. It can also forward an e-mail as an SMS message to a phone number (or phone numbers) specified in the subject line of the e-mail (Figure 1).



After the installation of the E-mail user (for installation instructions, check out the <u>E-mail User</u> page), you can start to configure it using the <u>graphical user interface</u> of the software.

After specifying a unique username for the E-mail user, which is the last step of the <u>installation</u>, the **E-mail to SMS** tab of the **Configuration** panel will show up. This tab consists of the **POP3** settings and the **SMS** settings section (Figure 2).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 · 📓 🗟 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🧐
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/userprops?user=Emailuser&mode=confi
OZEKI 🖉 Google 👻 🙀 🕼
Emailuser (Email) - Configuration
E-mail to SMS SMS to E-mail Advanced Filter Logging POP3 Settings The SMS server can periodically download incoming e-mail messages Downloaded e-mail messages will be forwarded in an SMS message to number. The subject line of the e-mail can also contain telephone numb
POP3 Server: mail.server.com Po
POP3 Username: username
POP3 Password: password
Download interval: 10 sec. Delete downloaded e
└── SMS Settings ────
Send SMS to (phone number): +36201234567

Figure 2 - The E-mail to SMS tab

As mentioned above, Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway can periodically download incoming e-mail messages from a POP3 account. The downloaded e-mail messages will be forwarded by SMS to a specified phone number. The subject line of the e-mail can also contain telephone numbers.

In the POP3 Server edit box in the POP3 settings section, specify the address of the server.

In the **Port** edit box, enter the number of the POP3 port.

In the POP3 Username edit box, specify the username of the POP3 user account.

In the **POP3 Password** edit box, specify the password of the POP3 user account.

In the **Download interval** edit box, you can specify how often the program should check the POP3 account for new messages to download.

In the SMS settings section, specify a recipient phone number in the Send SMS to (phone number) edit box. This is the phone number that the SMS (the first 160 characters of the e-mail) will be sent to. Specify it in international format, starting with the leading plus sign (+).

If you check the **Use the phone numbers in the subject line** checkbox below, the SMS will be sent to the phone number(s) in the subject line of the e-mail if it contains any. In this case, the SMS message will not be sent to the phone number specified in the **Send SMS to (phone number)** edit box. It will only be sent to the phone number(s) specified in the e-mail subject line. If it contains more than one phone number, they have to be separated with a semicolon. It should look something like this: +36703384532;+36303658734;+36203462111

In the **Maximum message length** edit box, specify how many of the first characters of the email message should be sent as an SMS message. Enter the number in numerical format representing a positive whole number. If you specify a larger number than 160, a concatenated (i.e. more than one) SMS message will be sent. A long message will be split into single pieces. Then, each piece can contain a maximum of 153 characters. This is because the information for concatenation needs to be stored in the SMS. Each piece will be sent as a single SMS message. When they reach the destination, the recipient mobile phone will combine them back to one long message. If you are content with the default value (160) in the edit box, leave it unchanged.

If you check the **Include the sender e-mail address in the SMS** checkbox, you can include the sender e-mail address at the beginning of the downloaded e-mail message.

In the **Filter** tab, you can make specifications as to which e-mails should be forwarded as SMS messages to one or more mobile phones. As you may receive a large number of e-mails (including a great deal of spam), you may have to pay a large amount of money if all of them are forwarded via SMS. Therefore, it is advisable to specify the sender(s), the receiver(s) and the keyword(s) in the subject lines of the e-mails to be forwarded via SMS (Figure 3).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
File Edit View Favorites Tools Help	
🚱 Back 🔹 🕥 - 💽 🗟 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🤣	
Address 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/userprops?user=Emailuser&mode=com	nfi
OZEKI∰ Google ▼ 🛛 👷 🐑	
Emailuser (Email) - Configuration	
E-mail to SMS SMS to E-mail Advanced Filter Logging	
To addresses: somebody100@yahoo.com	_
Keywords in Subject: order	

Figure 3 - The Filter tab

In the **From addresses** edit box, you can specify the e-mail address(es) from which e-mails should be forwarded via SMS. You can enter one or more e-mail addresses, separated with a semicolon (;).

In the **To addresses** edit box, you can specify the e-mail address(es) of recipients whose incoming e-mails should be forwarded via SMS. You can enter one or more e-mail addresses, separated with a semicolon (;).

In the **Keywords in Subject** edit box you can specify one or more keywords that should be included in the subject line(s) of email(s) to be forwarded via SMS. You can enter one or more keywords, separated with a semicolon (;).

The specifications in Figure 3 above will result in the E-mail user forwarding *only* e-mails sent from somebody100@hotmail.com to somebody100@yahoo.com, including the keyword "order" in their subject lines. You could add other sender and recipient e-mail addresses or keywords in the respective edit box, which would increase the set of e-mails to be forwarded as SMS messages.

If you need different specifications, e.g. you want the E-mail user to forward an e-mail *only* if the sender address is somebody100@hotmail.com, the recipient is someone200@yahoo.com, and the keyword is "invoice", you need to add and configure another E-mail user. If you put someone200@yahoo.com next to somebody100@yahoo.com, and "invoice" next to "order", the number of possible combinations of the sender address, the recipient address and the keyword will be increased. As a result, if an e-mail is from somebody100@hotmail.com, the recipient is somebody100@yahoo.com and the keyword is "invoice", then the email will be forwarded as an SMS message. To avoid this, specify the sender, the recipient and the keyword in the **Filter** tab in the **Configuration** panel of a different E-mail user. (You can add, install and configure as many users as you like.)

To find out how to configure the E-mail user of the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway to send an incoming SMS message as an e-mail, check out the <u>SMS to E-mail Configuration</u> page.

For detailed instructions on how to realize a two-way E-mail - SMS gateway service, check out the <u>How to Set up an E-mail - SMS Gateway</u> page.

SMS to E-mail Configuration

This page provides you with step-by-step instructions on how to configure the E-mail user of the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway software to forward an incoming SMS message as an e-mail to a specified e-mail address.

The E-mail user, which is one of the installable users of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway, can forward incoming SMS messages from a standard e-mail client to a specified e-mail address (or e-mail addresses). It will send e-mails using an SMTP server. The e-mail address is the first word of the SMS message. You can also specify this e-mail address in the configuration form of the E-mail user.



Figure 1 - Incoming SMS sent out as e-mail

You can use the <u>graphical user interface</u> of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway to send an incoming SMS message as an e-mail.

After specifying a unique username for the E-mail user, the **Configuration** panel will show up. To start performing the SMS to E-mail configuration, click the **SMS to E-mail** tab.

This tab consists of the E-mail Settings and the SMTP Server section (Figure 2).

🗿 OZEKI NG - SMS G	ATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
File Edit View Fav	vorites Tools Help
🚱 Back 🔹 🌍 🐇	📓 👔 🏠 🔎 Search 👷 Favorites 🥝
Address 🙆 http://127.	.0.0.1:9501/userprops?user=Mary&mode=configure
ozeki 🖉 🛛 Google 💌	
Mary (Email) - Config	uration
can specify a pre	ige arrives, it can be forwarded to one or more e-mail a adefined e-mail address, or you can rely on the e-mail a Forward incoming SMS messages to the following e-m noreply@ozeki.hu
	Use e-mail address in SMS if present.
Send a copy of e	ach e-mail to:
CC (e-mail):	
	nails are relayed by an SMTP server. Please specify the gure 2 - The SMS to E-mail tab

If an SMS message arrives, it can be forwarded to one or more e-mail addresses. You can specify a e-mail address in the configuration form, or you can rely on the e-mail address information in the SMS itself.

In the **To (e-mail)** edit box in the **E-mail settings** section, you can specify the e-mail address to send incoming SMS messages to.

Check the **Use e-mail address in SMS if present** checkbox below the edit box to make the program send the SMS message to the e-mail address specified in the SMS message itself. If you check this checkbox, the e-mail will not be sent to the e-mail address specified in the configuration form. It will only be sent to the e-mail address(es) specified in the SMS itself. The e-mail addresses have be separated with a colon. It should look something like this: someaddress@hotmail.com;anotheraddress@yahoo.com;a_third_address@freemail.hu

In the **CC** (e-mail) edit box at the bottom of the **E-mail settings** section, you can specify another e-mail address to send a copy of an incoming SMS message to. Note, however, that if you rely on the e-mail addresses in the SMS itself, the e-mails will not be sent to this address. Then, they will only be sent to the e-mail addresses specified in the SMS.

OZEKI INFORMATIKAI KFT

Outgoing e-mails are relayed by an SMTP server. In the SMTP server section, you can specify the address and the port of the SMTP server. Enter the information in the respective edit boxes.

If your SMTP server requires authentication, open the **Advanced** tab and set the username and password (Figure 3).

Some SMTP servers require user authentication for security reasons. To send messages using such an SMTP server, check the **My SMTP server requires authentication** checkbox, and specify your SMTP username and password in the respective edit boxes.

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Mozilla Firefox			
Eájl Szerkesztés <u>N</u> ézet Előz <u>m</u> ények <u>K</u> önyvjelzők <u>E</u> szközök <u>S</u> úgó			
 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			
🏶 Bevezetés 🔯 Friss hírek <u>G</u> Mozilla Firefox Kezdőoldal			
📄 OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY 🛛 🔄 OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY			
Emailuser (Email) - Configuration			
Email to SMS SMS to Email Advanced			
Some SMTP servers require user authentication for security reasons. If you wish to send messages using such an SMTP server, please spe your SMTP username and password.			
My SMTP server requires authentication.			
SMTP Username: username			
SMTP Password: password			
Use this email address as the sender address for outgoing SMS mess			

Figure 3 - The Advanced tab

In the **E-mail** edit box at the bottom of the tab, you can specify an e-mail address as the sender address for outgoing e-mails.

To find out how to configure it to forward an incoming e-mail as an incoming SMS message to a specified phone number, check out the <u>E-mail to SMS Configuration</u> page.

For detailed instructions on how to realize a two-way E-mail - SMS gateway service, check out the <u>How to Set up an E-mail - SMS Gateway</u> page.

Autoreply Database User

This guide gives you information on how to create an autoresponding application that uses information stored in your database. The solution presented on this webpage can be used with any database server (Microsoft SQL, Oracle, MySQL, Sybase, etc...). This solution is ideal to create the following service (Figure 1):

- 1.) A mobile user sends in a keyword in an SMS message to the system.
- 2.) The system looks up the response SMS message from the database based on this keyword.
- 3.) The system sends the response SMS message back to the mobile user.

I assume you already have a <u>working service provider connection</u> configured, that is capable of sending and receiving messages (e.g. you have a GSM modem attached to your server computer and your GSM modem is configured in Ozeki NG).



Figure 1 - System architecture

Step 1 - Setup the Autoreply Database User

In order to create the explained service first you need to install an Autoreply Database User (Figure 2). Detailed information about how this user can be installed is available in the <u>"Autoreply Database User installation guide"</u>.



Figure 2 - Install the Autreply Database User for SMS information queries

Step 2 - Create the database layout

The next step is to create your database table, that stores the response SMS messages (Figure 3). In our example we use Microsoft SQL Express as the database server. The following guide gives you information on how you can create a database layout using SQL Express: <u>Create database layout for SMS autoresponses</u>. In our example we use the following table. (Of course you can change the table layout according to your needs and you can use multiple database tables.)

```
> select * from autoreplymessage;
id
         keyword
                                        msq
                      _____
_____
                                                    _____
___
1
          default
                                        There is no data for this keyword.
2
                                        Red is a good color.
          red
3
                                        Blue is not the best option.
          blue
(3 rows affected)
```

Figure 3 - Database table layout for SMS information query

Step 3 - Configure the Autoreply Database User to use your database

When your database is ready, you need to enter the database connection information (connection type and connection string) into the database settings configuration form of the Autoreply Database user. This configuration form can be opened by clicking on the "Database setup" menu item (Figure 4).



Figure 4 - Database settigns for SMS information query

On this form you can select the database connection type and you can enter the connection string. In our example (for SQL Express) the connection information that should be used is:



For other database servers, such as Oracle, MySQL, etc..., you can find information about how to format the connection string in the <u>Database Connection Strings guide</u>.

Step 4 - Write the autoresponding command script

The final step to make SMS information query possible is to write the script file. The script file is a plain text file that controls which SQL command should be executed when an incoming SMS arrives. You can edit the scriptfile with notepad or any other text editor. In our example the location of the script file is:

C:\Program Files\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\config\TestApp\sqlscript.txt

The contents of the script file in our example has three sections (Figure 5). The first two sections are triggered for a

response SMS if the keyword "RED" or "BLUE" is received in an SMS message. The final section creates the default response message if something else was received.

```
C:\Program Files\Ozeki\Ozeki\Ozeki\G - SMS Gateway\config\TestApp\sqlscript.txt
k^RED
SELECT '$sender',msg from autoreplymessage where keyword='red'
k^BLUE
SELECT '$sender',msg from autoreplymessage where keyword='blue'
k.*
SELECT '$sender',msg from autoreplymessage where keyword='default'
```

Figure 5 - example script file

The structure of the autoreply script is explained in the following documents:

Script file structure for SMS information query from database Sample script file for SMS information query from database.

Step 5 - Testing the solution

After this is done, you can test the solution by sending an SMS message to your SMS gateway. The SMS gateway will forward the message to the Autoreply Database User, where the command script will be executed for the response. The response will be returned by an SQL SELECT query defined in the script file. After the appropriate SQL SELECT is executed the response messages will be sent back to you in SMS. To track what is going on, read the logs in the following directory:

C:\Program Files\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\Logs

Autoreply Database User installation guide

This guid gives you the steps to install the autoreply database user.



OZEKI INFORMATIKAI KFT

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY 2.	5.4 - 127.0.0.1:9501 (admin) - Windov
🕒 🗸 🖉 http://127.0.0.1:95	501/default?layout=MENUVIEW8MEr 💉 🍫 🕽
🚖 🙀 🍘 OZEKI NG - SMS GATE	WAY 2.5.4 - 127.0
OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY • File • Edit • Service provider conne	ctions - Users and applications - View - Help
Compose Reply Forward Print	
Users/Applications 🎎	Autoreply Database user install
admin (Standard)	To install a Autoreply Database user, fir
	User name: TestApp
Users/Applications	stApp (Autoreply Database) - Configuration
admin (Standard) TestApp (Autoreply Database)	General Logging Advanced
	Default response Always send a response message when a message Default response message:
	Thank you for the message!
	Service interval This service runs in the following period:
	2008-01-05 09:50:15 - 2008-09-06 09:50:15
	Send a response message if the service has not yet so Not yet started response message:
	The service has not yet started

Create database layout for SMS autoresponses

In this guide we create an example database layout for an autoresponding SMS application that uses data stored in an SQL datatabase. We use the Microsoft SQL Express database server that can be downloaded from the Microsoft website.

Step 1. - Download and install Microsoft SQL Express.

You can download the Microsoft SQL Exrpess Database Server from the following location:

Download details: Microsoft SQL Server 2005 Express Edition

Step 2 - Create your database tables in Microsoft SQL Express

You can create a database and the appropriate database tables by opening a windows command prompt (Start->Run->cmd.exe), and starting the SQL Command interpreter by typing:

C:\sqlcmd -S .\SQLExpress

Once the SQL command interpreter is running, you should enter the following commands

```
create database ozeki
GO
use ozeki
GO
CREATE TABLE
autoreplymessage (
 id int IDENTITY
(1,1),
keyword varchar(30),
msg varchar(160),
);
GO
sp addLogin
'ozekiuser',
'ozekipass'
GO
sp addsrvrolemember
'ozekiuser',
'sysadmin'
GO
```

Figure 1 - SQL Create table script

Step 3 - Put some data into your keyboard database

To be able to create a response automatically for certain keywrods we must fill the autoreplymessage database table:

insert into

autoreplymessage (keyword, msg) values ("default", "There is no data for this keyword."); insert into autoreplymessage (keyword, msg) values ("red", "Red is a good color."); insert into autoreplymessage (keyword, msg) values ("blue", "Blue is not the best option."); GO

Step 4 - Make Microsoft SQL Express ready to accept your username and password

Unless you have mixed mode authentication configured in SQL express, you will not be able to connect to your database from Ozeki NG because Ozeki NG runs as a system service in the background. To enable mixed - mode authentication, you should open the registry editor (Start->run->regedit.exe) and in the Registry you should change the LoginMode value from 1 to "2", here:

HKEY_LOCAL_MACHINE\SOFTWARE\Microsoft\Microsoft
SQL Server\MSSQL.1\MSSQLServer
LoginMode =2

After this change you might have to restart the SQL Express to make sure the changes take effect.

File structure for controling SQL information query from database

This ducument explain the file structure of the script file that is used to control which SQL query is executed when an incoming SMS message arrives to the system.

Introduction

The script file contains **sections**. Sections are separated by an empty line. There is now limit for the number of sections. When the script is consulted sections are read sequentally. The first section that matches an incoming SMS is used to create the response SMS message.

A section contains a **condition** and a set of SQL commands called **action** (Figure 1). The condition is the first line in the section. Any number of SQL commands can follow this line. If the condition matches all the SQL commands following the condition will be executed until an empty line is found. The SQL commands can return one or more response messages.

C:\Progr les\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\config\TestApp\sqlsc k^RED INSERT INIO log (sender,message) VALUES ('\$sender','\$messagedata'); SELECT '\$sender',msg FROM autoreplymessage WHERE keyword='red' k.*

Figure 1 - Sections in the script file

Condition

The conidition is a single line statement. It has two parts **the match target selector**, and the **match pattern** (Figure 2). The match selector is a single letter, that determines which part of the incoming SMS message is checked with the matching pattern.



Figure 2 - Information query condition

The match selector letter can be one of the following:



The match pattern is a standard regular expression. Regular expressions are explain in the <u>Regualar expressions</u> <u>tutorial</u>.

Some examples:

.* - matches any letter
^abc.* - matches a text starting with abc
.*abc.* - matches a text that contains abc

Action

OZEKI INFORMATIKAI KFT

If the condition matches the incoming SMS message, the SQL commands in the section will be executed. You can use one ore more SQL SELECT statements to query the information for the response messages and you can use SQL INSERT, SQL UPDATE or any other SQL statement to modify the database. Before the SQL commands are executed on the database, the following words are replaced in them:

\$originator - is replaced to the sender telephone number of the messages \$recipient - is replaced to the telephone number that received the message \$messagedata - is replaced to the message text \$keyword - is replaced to the keyword in the message \$senttime - is replaced to the timestamp, that represents when the message was sent \$receivedtime - is replaced to the timestamp, that represents when the message was received \$messagetype - is replaced to the message type (in most cases this will be SMS:TEXT) \$id - is replaced to the unique string identifier of the message \$operator - is replaced to the name of the service provider connection that received the message

The SQL statements will be executed in the order they follow each other. Every SQL statement must be written on a single line.

(Hint: In most cases you will only use one SQL SELECT to get the content for the response SMS message.)

Response

When SELECT SQL statements are executed, they can return one or more response messages. A response message is a row in the result set of the SQL select. A row in the result set should contain the following columns:

```
recipient - The 1st column in the result set (Mandatory)
messageData - The 2nd column in the result set (Mandatory)
messageType - The 3rd column in the result set (Optional)
sender - The 4th column in the result set (Optional)
operatorNames - The 5th column in the result set (Optional)
```

The SMS gateway will process the returened results and will send them as SMS messages.

Example

The following is an example script that matches two keywords: RED and BLUE and handles unmatched incoming messages with a default response.

C:\Program Files\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway\config\TestApp\sqlscript.txt		
k^RED		
INSERT	<pre>INTO log (sender,message) VALUES ('\$sender','\$messagedata');</pre>	
SELECT	'\$sender',msg FROM autoreplymessage WHERE keyword='red'	
k^BLUE		
SELECT	'\$sender',msg FROM autoreplymessage WHERE keyword='blue'	
k .*		
SELECT	'\$sender',msg FROM autoreplymessage WHERE keyword='default'	

Client software

If you wish to provide SMS functionality for office users, you can install desktop client software that communicates with Ozeki NG SMS gateway. To serve desktop clients, you need to configure standard user accounts in the SMS gateway.

Outlook SMS Client

The Outlook SMS Client plugin creates a button in Microsoft Outlook. If the button is pressed a message composer window is opened. In this window the SMS message can be created and by clicking on the send button it is sent over the network to the Ozeki NG SMS Gateway for delivery.



The sent messages are saved in the sent items folder of Outlook.

If an incoming message arrives it is saved in the inbox folder of Outlook.

The user of this Outlook SMS Client can use the addressbook of outlook to look up and select the appropriate phone numbers for delivery.

Sending SMS messages from Excel

On this page you can learn how to send SMS messages from Excel using the Ozeki NG -SMS Gateway software. You can read a short introduction about the Excel files you need to use, and you are provided with details about the Messages.xls spreadsheet, explaining what each column is for. You can also learn how to configure the Excel macro connection and how to set the appropriate security level in the Excel client file to allow sending messages.

Introduction

The Excel SMS client of Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway enables you to send SMS messages from Microsoft Excel. For this, you just need to open two Excel spreadsheets: <u>Messages.xls</u> and <u>Ozeki.xls</u>. In the Messages.xls spreadsheet, you need to put the telephone numbers in the first and the messages in the second column. To learn what the other columns are for, read the Messages spreadsheet section below.

In the Ozeki.xls Excel spreadsheet you will find a macro you can start by clicking the **Send all** button. This macro will connect to Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway over the office LAN or the

Internet and will send the SMS messages you have edited in the Messages.xls spreadsheet. The parameters for this network connection can be edited on the Ozeki.xls spreadsheet.

Using the Excel Client allows you to keep a record of the SMS messages you have sent in an Excel spreadsheet. You can identify which of the messages you have sent belongs to a given telephone number. They are in the same row in the spreadsheet.

For sending messages, the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway program and Excel do not need to be on the same computer. You can send messages from different computers in an office network. You just need to enter the IP of the server PC running Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway (Figure 1).



Figure 1 - Sending SMS from different computers

Both Excel files you have to use can be found in the C:\Program Files\Ozeki\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway directory after the program has been installed. (From here, they can be moved to any other folder.) You can also open the Excel files by clicking their icons below the Manage OzekiNG file icon (Figure 2).

User	 Office dokumentum megnyitása Set Program Access and Defaults Új Office dokumentum Windows Catalog Windows Update Accessories 	Windows Media Play Windows Messenge Ozeki SMS Client OzekiNG OzekiNG activePDF
Internet	Canon Corel Graphics Suite 11	5 5
Gate E-mail Outlook Express	m EditPlus 2	,
Calculator	m Games Microsoft Office	•
A Microsoft Outle indítása	m Microsoft Office eszközök Mozilla Firefox	> >
W Microsoft Word	m Nero	•
Adobe Acrobat 6.0 Professional	🛅 Ozeki Message Server 🛅 Ozeki SMS	• •
Notepad	 Ozeki Weboffice PADGen 	•
Figure 2	2 - Manage OzekiNG and Exce	l file icons

The main steps of sending SMS messages from Excel are:

- 1. Creating a list of messages
- 2. Opening the Excel file sending SMS
- 3. Starting the macro sending SMS
- 4. Sending out messages

First, make sure the Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway program has started. If not, start it. (For details, check out the **What to do if the service is not running** section on the <u>Login problems</u> page.)

Open the Messages Excel spreadsheet for editing the telephone numbers and the texts of the SMS mesages. Open the spreadsheet by clicking its icon to do the editing (Figure 2).

Once you have opened this Excel file, you can start entering, in the appropriate cells, all the information required for SMS messages to be sent (Figure 3). In Excel, entering information in or applying a function to a range of cells can be done by typing, copying and pasting or dragging cells.

E N	licrosoft Excel - Message	19	
:0	Ele Edit Yew Insert	Figmat Icols Data Window Help Adobe PDF	
	S	🍄 🕮 X 🗈 🖄 - 🕩 🔊 - 🗠 - 🤐 Σ - ½1 🕺 🏭 🐴 100% 🖃 😡 📕	
1	🖏 🌄 🚦 Arial CE	• 10 • B / U 斯蒂普通 骤%,% 综 课 课 田·	- Ch -
	B4 • 1/2 T	his is the fourth message. It is a bit longer than the fourth.	
	A	B	C
1	+36203105366	This is the first message	
2	+36209937723	This is the second message. It is longer than 160 characters. A long message will be split into single pieces. Then, each piece can contain a maximum of 153 characters.	
3	+36703393456	This is the third message.	
4	+363067897656	This is the fourth message. It is a bit longer than the fourth.	1
5			1
6			
7			
8			
9			
10			
11			
12			
13			
14			
15			
16			
17			
18			

Figure 3 - Edited Excel spreadsheet for SMS messages

The Messages spreadsheet

The information related to a message to be sent is in different cells of the same row in the Excel spreadsheet. Some of the information has to be entered/edited manually, and some will be entered/edited automatically. Each cell involved in the editing requires a specific kind of information.

- The cell in Column A is for the telephone number you are going to send the message to. Enter the telephone number in international format (starting with + and the country code, without using any spaces).
- The cell in Column B is for the SMS message. Note that if a message is longer than 160 characters, it will be sent in two or more parts. A long message will be split into single pieces. Then, each piece can contain a

maximum of 153 characters. This is because the information for concatenation needs to be stored in the SMS. Each piece will be sent as a single SMS message. When they reach the destination, the recipient mobile phone will combine them back to one long message.

- The number in the Column D cell shows how many characters you have used composing your message. Be careful not to delete the function in the D1 cell. If you happen to delete it, you can copy it from this page and enter it in D1: =LEN(B1)
- The Column E cell is for the message type.
- The Column F cell is for the name of the service provider connection you use for sending out the message. For information about service provider connections, check out the <u>Service Provider Connections</u> page.

The Excel client file

When you have finished editing all the messages to be sent out, open the Excel client. It is automatically installed along with Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway. Do not close the Messages spreadsheet before you open this file. After the messages are edited, the Messages spreadsheet has to stay open along with the Ozeki.xls file.

The Excel client file is - just like the Messages file - in the C:\Program Files\Ozeki\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway directory. To start the Excel client, double-click Ozeki.xls. (You can click it after opening the C:\Program Files\Ozeki\Ozeki\OzekiNG - SMS Gateway directory or clicking the file icon (see Figure 2 above). This file contains an Excel macro that can be started by pressing the Send all button. This macro will connect to Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway over the office LAN or the Internet and will send the SMS messages you have edited in the Messages spreadsheet. The parameters for this network connection can be edited in the Ozeki.xls spreadsheet (Figure 4).

Microsoft Excel - Ozeki				
🗐 Eile Edit View Insert Format Too	ols <u>D</u> ata <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp Ad	obe PDF		
i di 🗃 🖬 🕞 🗃 🖳 🖤 🎎 i X	🗈 🔁 • 🟈 🔊 • (° •)	$\bigotimes \Sigma \cdot 2 \downarrow \chi$		
🔁 🔁 🖏 🖕 🕴 Arial CE 🔹	10 - B I U 📑 🗃	·≡ 💀 🛒 %		
A1 🔹 🎓 OZEKI NG E	xcel Support			
A	В	С		
1 OZEKI NG Excel Support				
2				
3 OZEKI NG IP:	127.0.0.1:9501			
4 OZEKI NG Account:	admin			
5 OZEKI NG Password:	abc123			
6				
7 Send all				
8 Send all				
9				
10 Credits:	Unlimited			
11				
12				
13				
14				
15				
10				

Figure 4 - Starting the Excel SMS Macro

When you have opened the file, click on the **Send all** button. Then, the Message Server will send out the messages if the Excel macro connection is already configured and the security level is appropriate. If Excel's security level is not appropriate, i.e. **Very high** or **High**, for sending messages, you can see one of the following messages (Figure 5, Figure 6):

OZEKI INFORMATIKAI KFT

Microsoft Excel
Macros are disabled because the security level is set to Very High. To run th
lower setting and verify the macros are signed and trusted.

Figure 5 - Very High security level



Figure 6 - High security level

Then you should change the security level to **Medium** or **Low**. Select the **Tools/Macro/Security** menu item. In the **Security Level** tab, select **Medium** or **Low** (Figure 7).

	licrosoft Excel - Ozeki.xls				
-	Ele Edit Yew Insert Format	Toc	is Data Window Help		
10	😂 🛃 47) - 😡 📲 🛊 Arial CE	45	Spelling F7	U	
	G20 🕶 🏂	13,	Research Alt+Click		
5.1	A	1	Error Checking		C
1	OZEKI Message Server Excel Sug		Shared Workspace		
2	OZEKI Message Server IP:		Share Workbook	-	
4	OZEKI Message Server Account		Protection +		
5	OZEKI Message Server Passwo		Online Collaboration		
6			Unine Collaboration		
7	Send all		Formula Auditing		
8			Macro +	>	Macros
	Credits:		Customize		Record New M
Secu	rity		<u>? ×</u>		Security
177	curity Level Trusted Publishers				
US2	concy cever Trusted Publishers		1		⊻isual Basic Ed
C	Very High. Only macros installed in trus			60	Microsoft Scrip
	to run. All other signed and unsigned m	acro	s are disabled.		
C	High. Only signed macros from trusted run. Unsigned macros are automatically				
C	Medium. You can choose whether or no macros	k to	run potentially unsafe		

Figure 7 - Changing the security level

If the security level is **Medium**, you receive the following message (Figure 8):



Figure 8 - Enabling macros

Click the **Enable Macros** button. To configure the Excel macro connection (Figure 9), specify the IP address and the server port of the computer, divided by a colon. Also, specify the server account and the password.

1	Microsoft Excel - Ozeki	
:0)	Eile Edit View Insert Format	<u>Iools Data Window H</u> elp Ado <u>b</u> e PDF
10	📴 🖬 🖪 🔒 🖪 🖪 🖏 🖤 🎎 I	🕺 🗈 🎘 • 🏈 🔊 • (° •) 🎭 🗵 • 🏄 🏅
I	🕄 🐮 💂 🕴 Arial CE	- 10 - B I U = = = = = .
-		Excel Support
	A	ВС
1	OZEKI NG Excel Support	
2		
3	OZEKI NG IP:	127.0.0.1:9501
4	OZEKI NG Account:	admin
5	OZEKI NG Password:	abc123
6		
7	Send all	
8	Send all	
9		
10	Credits:	Unlimited
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		

Figure 9 - Configuring the Excel macro connection

You only have to do this once, and the next time you want to send messages, you just need to click the **Send all** button. If you have created a different user in the **Message Server**, specify the username and the password. After Credits, in the column B cell you can specify the maximum number of SMS messages a user can send out. When you have finished the configuration, click the **Send all** button. Then the **SMS sender** window will show up. It contains a drop-down menu of open Excel files to be processed. Select the one(s) containing the messages to be sent out, and click **OK** (Figure 10).

	A			В			
1	+362031053	66	This is the first message	61070k			
2 +36209937723		This is the second message. It is longer than 160 characters. A long me be split into single pieces. Then, each piece can contain a maximum of characters.					
3	+367033934	56	This is the third message.				
4	+3630678978			e. It is a bit longer than the fourth	It is a bit longer than the fourth.		
5							
6							
7	81	Ozeki					
8		UZCHI					
9			A	В	C		
10	1	OZEKI	NG Excel Support				
11	2						
12	3		NG IP:	127.0.0.1:9501			
13	4		NG Account:	admin			
14	5	OZEKI	NG Password:	abc123			
15	6				1		
16	7		Send all				
17	8	1					
18	9	1					
19	10	Credit	s:	Unlimited			
20	11			Sms sender			
20	12			Sins senuer			

Figure 10 - Sending out messages

After clicking **OK** (and sending out the messages), a new browser window will open, containing a list of the messages that have been sent, displaying if they have been accepted by Ozeki NG - SMS Gateway for delivery (Figure 11).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY - Microsoft Internet Explorer
Fájl Szerkesztés Nézet Kedvencek Eszközök Súgó
🔇 Vissza 🔹 🕥 👻 📓 🏠 🔎 Keresés 🤺 Kedvend
Cím 🕘 http://127.0.0.1:9501/ozeki
OZEKI 🖉 Google 💌 🐨 🐨
Message accepted for delivery. Message ID: QJTSHHML Recipient: +36203105366
Message accepted for delivery.
Message ID: LAIUUIHF
Recipient: +36209937723
Message accepted for delivery. Message ID: FAPUDZSW
Recipient: +36703393456
Message accepted for delivery. Message ID: AYXNCZCY Recipient: +363067897656
Figure 11 - Messages accepted for delivery

After the messages have been sent, you can check their status by opening the sender's user account. To find out how to open a user account, check out the <u>Users and Applications</u> page. The

screenshots on this page illustrate sending SMS messages from the admin user's account (Figure 12).

OZEKI NG - SMS GATEWAY • File • Edit • Service provider connections • U Compose Reply Forward Print Del	Jsers and applications • View • Help		
admin (Standard)	admin (Standard) - outbox		
User admin	Delete selected items: Delete Move s		
This is a human user that can use	Phone number Message		
program for SMS messaging after logging in.	+36203105366 This is the first message		
Configure Events	+36209937723 This is the second message. It is long message will be split into single piece		
	+36703393456 This is the third message.		
Outbox (4) Sent (0) Not sent (0) Delivered (0) Deleted items (0)	□ 🖂 +363067897656 This is the fourth message. It is a bit lo		

Figure 12 - Messages in the Sent folder in the user account

Ozeki SMS Client

The Ozeki SMS Client works like a simple e-mail client. It makes it possible to send and receive SMS messages from an office desktop computer. The messages are sent through Ozeki NG SMS Gateway. The messages are stored in folders and the state of the messages are continuously updated.



The user of this client receives delivery reports about the following events: "message is accepted for delivery", "message delivered to the network", "message delivered to the handset".